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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS
This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains “forward-looking statements”, as defined in the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 that reflect,
when made, the Company’s expectations or beliefs concerning future events that involve risks and uncertainties. Forward-looking statements frequently
are identified by the words “anticipate,” “assume,” “believe,” “continue,” “could,” “estimate,” “expect,” “forecast,” “future,” “intend,” “likely result,”
“may,” “might,” “plan,” “potential,” “predict,” “project,” “seek”, “should,” “target,” “would” and other similar words and phrases. Similarly, statements
herein that describe the Company’s objectives, plans or goals, including with respect to restaurant closures and re-openings, new restaurant openings and
acquisitions or closures, capital expenditures, strategy, financial outlook, liquidity outlook, our effective tax rate, and the impact of healthcare inflation and
recent accounting pronouncements, also are forward-looking statements. Actual results could differ materially from those projected, implied or anticipated
by the Company’s forward-looking statements. Some of the factors that could cause actual results to differ include: the negative impact the COVID-19
pandemic has had and will continue to have on our business, financial condition and results of operations; reductions in the availability of, or increases in
the cost of, USDA Prime grade beef, fish and other food items; changes in economic conditions and general trends; the loss of key management personnel;
the effect of market volatility on the Company’s stock price; health concerns about beef or other food products; the effect of competition in the restaurant
industry; changes in consumer preferences or discretionary spending; labor shortages or increases in labor costs; the impact of federal, state or local
government regulations relating to income taxes, unclaimed property, Company employees, the sale or preparation of food, the sale of alcoholic beverages
and the opening of new restaurants; political conditions, civil unrest or other developments and risks in the markets where the Company’s restaurants are
located; harmful actions taken by the Company’s franchisees; the inability to successfully integrate franchisee acquisitions into the Company’s business
operations; economic, regulatory and other limitations on the Company’s ability to pursue new restaurant openings and other organic growth opportunities;
a material failure, interruption or security breach of the Company’s information technology network; the Company’s indemnification obligations in
connection with its sale of the Mitchell’s Restaurants; the Company’s ability to protect its name and logo and other proprietary information; an impairment
in the financial statement carrying value of our goodwill, other intangible assets or property; gains or losses on lease modifications; the impact of litigation;
the restrictions imposed by the Company’s credit agreement; changes in, or the suspension or discontinuation of, the Company’s quarterly cash dividend
payments or share repurchase program; and the inability to secure additional financing on terms acceptable to the Company. For a discussion of these and
other risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ from those contained in the forward-looking statements, see “Risk Factors” in this
Annual Report on Form 10-K. All forward-looking statements are qualified in their entirety by this cautionary statement, and the Company undertakes no
obligation to revise or update this Annual Report on Form 10-K to reflect events or circumstances after the date thereof. You should not assume that
material events subsequent to the date of this Annual Report on Form 10-K have not occurred.

Unless the context otherwise indicates, all references in this report to the “Company,” “Ruth’s,” “we,” “us”, “our” or similar words are to Ruth’s Hospitality
Group, Inc. and its subsidiaries.

PART I
Item 1.

BUSINESS

Introduction
Ruth’s Hospitality Group, Inc. develops and operates fine dining restaurants under the trade name Ruth’s Chris Steak House. As of December 27, 2020,
there were 149 Ruth’s Chris Steak House restaurants, including 74 Company-owned restaurants, three restaurants operating under contractual agreements
and 72 franchisee-owned restaurants, including 21 international franchisee-owned restaurants in Aruba, Canada, China, Hong Kong, Indonesia, Japan,
Mexico, Singapore and Taiwan.
On July 29, 2019, we completed the acquisition of substantially all of the assets of three franchisee-owned Ruth’s Chris Steak House restaurants located in
Philadelphia, PA, King of Prussia, PA and Garden City, NY (the “MBR Franchise Acquisition”) for a cash purchase price of $18.6 million. The acquisition
was funded with debt through the Company’s senior credit facility. The results of operations, financial position and cash flows of the MBR Franchise
Acquisition are included in our consolidated financial statements as of the date of the acquisition. For additional information, see Note 3 of the
consolidated financial statements.
The Company has a 52/53-week fiscal year ending the last Sunday in December. Fiscal years 2020, 2019, and 2018 each had 52 weeks. The 2020 fiscal
year ended December 27, 2020, the 2019 fiscal year ended December 29, 2019, and the 2018 fiscal year ended December 30, 2018.
The following description of the Company’s business should be read in conjunction with the information in Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations in Item 7, Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations of this
Annual Report on Form 10-K and the consolidated financial statements included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
Background
Ruth’s Hospitality Group, Inc. is a Delaware corporation formerly known as Ruth’s Chris Steak House, Inc. The Company was founded in 1965 when
Ruth Fertel mortgaged her home for $22 thousand to purchase “Chris Steak House,” a 60-seat restaurant located near the New Orleans Fair Grounds
racetrack. After a fire destroyed the original restaurant, Ruth relocated her restaurant to a new 160-seat facility nearby. As the terms of the original purchase
prevented the use of the “Chris Steak House” name at a new restaurant, Ruth added her name to that of the original restaurant—thus creating the “Ruth’s
Chris Steak House” brand.
The Company’s expansion began in 1972, when Ruth opened a second restaurant in Metairie, a suburb of New Orleans. In 1976, the first franchisee-owned
Ruth’s Chris Steak House opened in Baton Rouge, Louisiana. In 2005, the Company and certain selling shareholders completed an initial public offering of
the Company’s common stock, which is currently listed on the Nasdaq Global Select Market under the ticker symbol “RUTH”.
COVID-19 Impact
In March 2020, the World Health Organization declared the novel coronavirus 2019 (COVID-19) a pandemic and the United States declared it a National
Public Health Emergency, which has resulted in a significant reduction in revenue at the Company’s restaurants due to mandatory restaurant closures,
capacity limitations, social distancing guidelines or other restrictions mandated by governments across the world, including federal, state and local
governments in the United States. As a result of these developments, the Company experienced a significant negative impact on its revenues, results of
operations and cash flows.
For further information on the impact of COVID-19 and actions taken by the Company in response to the pandemic, see Note 1 of the consolidated
financial statements.
Ruth’s Chris Steak House
With 149 restaurants as of December 27, 2020, Ruth’s Chris Steak House is one of the largest upscale steakhouse companies in the world. The menu
features a broad selection of high-quality USDA Prime and Choice grade steaks and other premium offerings served in Ruth’s Chris’ signature fashion
—“sizzling”— complemented by other traditional menu items inspired by its New Orleans heritage. Ruth’s Chris complements its distinctive food
offerings with an award-winning wine list.
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The Ruth’s Chris brand reflects its 55-year commitment to the core values instilled by its founder, Ruth Fertel, of caring for guests by delivering the highest
quality food, beverages and genuine hospitality in a warm and inviting atmosphere.
Strengths
The Company believes that the key strengths of its business model are the following:
Premier Upscale Steakhouse Brand
The Ruth’s Chris Steak House brand is one of the strongest in the upscale steakhouse segment of the restaurant industry, with high levels of brand
awareness. The Company has been recognized for its award-winning core wine list, for which a majority of its Company-owned restaurants received
“Awards of Excellence” from Wine Spectator magazine.
Appealing Dining Experience
At Ruth’s Chris restaurants, the Company seeks to exceed guests’ expectations by offering high-quality food with warm, friendly service. The Company’s
entire restaurant staff is dedicated to ensuring that guests enjoy a superior dining experience. The Company’s team-based approach to table service is
designed to enhance the frequency of guest contact and speed of service without intruding on the guest experience. Additionally, Ruth’s Chris is recognized
by Nation’s Restaurant News as #1 for ambiance, with each location expressing a local influence.
Strategy
Historically, the Company’s strategy is to deliver a total return to shareholders by maintaining a healthy core business, growing with a disciplined
investment approach and returning excess capital to shareholders. The Company strives to maintain a healthy core business by growing sales through
traffic, managing operating margins and leveraging its infrastructure. In March 2020, the World Health Organization declared the novel coronavirus
(COVID-19) a pandemic and the United States declared it a National Public Health Emergency, which has resulted in us focusing on a shorter-term strategy
that preserves liquidity and maximizes restaurant operating income. Longer-term, the Company intends to return to a balanced strategy that is focused on
maintaining a healthy balance sheet and a healthy core business, being disciplined in evaluating future growth opportunities and returning excess capital to
shareholders. While the uncertainty of the virus continues, as more clarity on the return to a “new normal” becomes evident, the Company will evaluate
disciplined growth opportunities in markets with attractive sales attributes and solid financial returns. The Company believes that its franchisee program is
a point of competitive differentiation and looks to grow its franchisee-owned restaurant locations as well. From time to time, the Company may also
consider acquiring franchisee-owned restaurants at terms that it believes are beneficial to both the Company and the franchisee.
Improve Sales/Profitability
The Company strives to improve sales and profitability by focusing on:
•

Ensuring food quality through consistent preparation and presentation;

•

Expanding its brand appeal through continued menu innovation and facility remodels;

•

Increasing brand awareness through enhanced media advertising at the national and local levels;

•

Enhancing and/or developing innovative marketing programs through its website (e.g., www.ruthschris.com), social media, digital media and email
communication;

•

Creating and/or growing revenue opportunities via Ruth’s Catering, Take-out and Delivery, Private Dining, the sale of Gift Cards and opening for
lunch in selected markets; and

•

Opening new restaurants.
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Expand Relationships with New and Existing Franchisees and Others
The Company intends to grow its franchising business by expanding the rights of existing franchisees to open new restaurants and potentially developing
relationships with a limited number of new franchisees. The Company believes that building relationships with quality franchisees is a cost-effective way to
grow and strengthen the Ruth’s Chris brand and generate additional revenues. The Company intends to continue to focus on providing operational guidance
to its franchisees, including the sharing of “best practices” from Company-owned Ruth’s Chris restaurants.
In fiscal year 2020 no new franchisee-owned restaurants were opened. In fiscal year 2019 one franchisee-owned restaurant opened in Chongquing,
China. In fiscal year 2018 franchisees opened two new restaurants in Ft. Wayne, IN and Markham, Canada. One new franchisee-owned restaurant is
expected to open by the end of fiscal year 2021.
The Company and its franchise and licensing partners have opened or relocated ten new Ruth’s Chris Steak Houses worldwide during the three-year period
ended December 2020.
Menu
The Ruth’s Chris menu features a broad selection of high-quality USDA Prime grade steaks and other premium offerings served in Ruth’s Chris signature
fashion—“sizzling” on a 500 degree plate and topped with butter and fresh parsley—complemented by other classic American steakhouse menu items.
USDA Prime is the highest meat grade level, which refers to the superior quality and evenly distributed marbling that enhances the flavor of the steak. The
Ruth’s Chris menu also includes premium quality chicken, crab, fish, lamb chops, lobster and shrimp.
The Ruth’s Chris restaurants offer nine standard appetizer items, including New Orleans-style barbequed shrimp, mushrooms stuffed with crabmeat, spicy
shrimp, chilled seafood tower and osso bucco ravioli, as well as four to five different salads. Our restaurants also offer a variety of potatoes and vegetables
as side dishes. For dessert, crème brûlée, traditional bread pudding with whiskey sauce, chocolate sin cake, cheesecake and other selections are
available. As part of the Company’s response to COVID-19, our restaurants are offering a limited menu to maximize restaurant efficiency and reduce
waste.
The Company’s wine list features bottles typically ranging in price from $46 to over $1,000. Individual restaurants may supplement their 225-bottle core
wine list with approximately 20 additional selections that reflect local market tastes. Most of the Company’s Ruth’s Chris restaurants also offer over 17-20
wines-by-the-glass, 10 handcrafted cocktails and numerous beers, premium liquors and alcoholic dessert drinks.
Dinner entrees are generally priced from $32 to $99. Ruth’s Chris is predominately open during dinner hours with only a limited number of restaurants
open for lunch. The lunch menu offers entrees generally ranging in price from $13 to $29. The blended guest check average at Ruth’s Chris was
approximately $82 during fiscal year 2020 with food sales representing 81% of the guest check and the remainder represented by beverage sales. While the
Ruth’s Chris core menu is similar at all of its restaurants, the Company seasonally introduces new items such as limited time and prix fixe offerings that
allow it to give its guests additional choices while taking advantage of fresh sourcing and advantageous cost opportunities.
Restaurant Operations and Management
The Ruth’s Chris Chief Executive Officer and Vice President of Operations have primary responsibility for managing Company-owned restaurants and
participate in analyzing restaurant-level performance and strategic planning. The Company has seven regional vice presidents who oversee restaurant
operations at Company-owned restaurants, one vice president to whom the regional vice presidents report and one vice president who has oversight
responsibility for franchisee-owned restaurants. In addition, restaurant education and training is overseen by a regional staff dedicated to the ongoing
training and development of customer service employees and kitchen staff.
A typical Company-owned restaurant employs four managers, including a general manager, two front-of-the-house managers and an executive chef. The
Company-owned restaurants also typically have approximately 54 hourly employees. Staffing levels at Company-owned restaurants have been lower in
fiscal year 2020 due to the impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic.
Purchasing
The Company’s ability to maintain consistent quality throughout its restaurants depends in part upon its ability to acquire food and other supplies from
reliable sources in accordance with its specifications. Purchasing at the restaurant level is directed primarily by the executive chef, who is trained in the
Company’s purchasing philosophy and specifications, and who works with regional and corporate managers to ensure consistent sourcing of fish, produce
and other supplies.
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During fiscal year 2020, the Company purchased substantially all the beef it used in Company-owned Ruth’s Chris restaurants from two vendors, Sysco
Specialty Meat Group (a subsidiary of Sysco) and Stock Yards Packing (a subsidiary of US Foods). Each vendor supplied about half of the Company’s
beef requirements. In addition, the Company has a distribution arrangement with a national food and restaurant supply distributor, Distribution Market
Advantage, Inc. (DMA), which purchases products for the Company from various suppliers and through which all the Company-owned Ruth’s Chris Steak
House restaurants receive a significant portion of their food supplies.
Quality Control
The Company strives to maintain quality and consistency in its Company-owned restaurants through careful training and supervision of personnel and
standards established for food and beverage preparation, maintenance of facilities and conduct of personnel. The primary goal of the Company’s training
and supervision programs is to ensure that its employees display the characteristics of its brand and values that distinguish it from its competitors.
Restaurant managers in Company-owned restaurants must complete a training program that is typically seven to eight weeks long, during which they are
instructed in multiple areas of restaurant management, including food quality and preparation, guest service, alcoholic beverage service, liquor regulation
compliance and employee relations. Restaurant managers also receive operations manuals relating to food and beverage preparation and restaurant
operations. Restaurant managers are certified by the National Restaurant Association Educational Foundation for food safety.
In addition to our internal quality control measures, the Ruth’s Chris Steak House restaurants also employ an independent third-party food safety firm to
ensure proper training, food safety and the achievement of the highest standards for cleanliness throughout the restaurant through routine quarterly
unannounced inspections. The Company instructs chefs and assistants on safety, sanitation, housekeeping, repair and maintenance, product and service
specifications, ordering and receiving food products and quality assurance. At the Ruth’s Chris restaurants, the executive chef, together with the restaurant
managers, oversees a line check system of quality control and must complete a quality assurance checklist verifying the flavor, presentation and proper
temperature of the food and beverages.
Marketing and Promotions
The goals of the Company’s marketing efforts are to increase restaurant sales by attracting new guests, increasing the frequency of visits by current guests,
enhancing the guest experience, driving innovation, improving brand recognition in new markets or markets where it intends to open a restaurant and to
communicate the overall uniqueness, value and quality exemplified by the restaurants. The Company uses multiple media channels to accomplish these
goals and complements its national advertising with targeted local media such as print, digital media, influencer marketing, search engine marketing,
satellite radio and outdoor billboards.
Advertising
In fiscal year 2020, the Company spent $6.9 million, or 2.5% of its revenues, in total marketing and advertising expenditures, which included spending on
online initiatives, in-store gift card promotion, traditional public relations, social media and influencer marketing. During fiscal year 2020, the Company’s
online strategy also included an emphasis on continued website improvement and personalized and targeted emails with special offers and announcements,
as well as emails regarding off-premise dining options, holiday offers and personalized birthday and anniversary invitations. In fiscal year 2020, Ruth’s
Chris Steak House continued its participation in a co-branded campaign with the American Express Membership Rewards program and the American
Express Gold Card partnership. Many of the Company’s restaurants also conduct off-site meal drops for front-line-workers and first responders and
schedule events to strengthen community ties and increase local market presence. The Company’s franchisees also conduct their own local media and
advertising plans.
Gift Cards
The Company sells Ruth’s Chris gift cards at most of its Ruth’s Chris Steak House restaurants, including franchises, on its website and through its toll-free
number. E-gift cards, which may be purchased on the Company’s e-commerce gift card website, are emailed directly to the recipient and are redeemable in
the same manner as physical gift cards. Ruth’s Chris gift cards are also sold in third-party retail outlets and are available through redemption of American
Express Membership Rewards points. Offering gift cards at third-party retailers and e-gift cards gives Ruth’s Chris the opportunity to maximize lastminute gift-giving and address its patrons’ requests for convenient, immediate purchases. Ruth’s Chris patrons frequently purchase gift cards for holidays,
including Christmas, Hanukkah, Valentine’s Day, Mother’s Day and Father’s Day, and other special occasions. In fiscal year 2020, Company and franchise
sales of Ruth’s Chris gift cards aggregated approximately $49.4 million system-wide, compared to $68.5 million in fiscal year 2019. Ruth’s Chris gift cards
are redeemable at both Company and franchisee-owned Ruth’s Chris restaurants.
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Franchise Program and Relationship
Under the Company’s franchise program, the Company offers certain services and licensing rights to the franchisee to help maintain consistency in systemwide operations. The Company’s services include training of personnel, construction assistance, providing the new franchisee with standardized operating
procedures and manuals, business and financial forms, consulting with the new franchisee on purchasing and supplies and performing supervisory quality
control services. The Company conducts reviews of its franchisee-owned restaurants to ensure compliance with its standards.
As of December 27, 2020, the Company’s 72 franchisee-owned Ruth’s Chris restaurants are owned by 25 franchisees with the three largest franchisees
owning 32 restaurants in total.
Under the Company’s current franchise program, each franchise arrangement consists of a development agreement, if multiple restaurants are to be
developed, with a separate franchise agreement executed for each restaurant. The Company’s current form of development agreement grants exclusive
rights to a franchisee to develop a minimum number of restaurants in a defined area, typically during a three-to-five-year period. Individual franchise
agreements govern the operation of each restaurant opened and have a 20-year term with two renewal options each for additional ten-year terms if certain
conditions are met. The Company’s current form of franchise agreement requires franchisees to pay a 5% royalty on gross revenues plus up to a 1%
advertising fee applied to national advertising expenditures. All of the franchisee-owned locations experienced disruptions to their business from COVID19, and as a result, the Company waived franchise royalty requirements until their dining rooms were re-opened.
Under the Company’s current form of development agreement, and unless agreed otherwise, the Company collects a $50 thousand development fee, which
is credited toward the $150 thousand franchise fee, for each restaurant the franchisee has rights to develop. Under the Company’s current form of the
franchise agreement, it collects up to $150 thousand of the full franchise fee at the time of executing the franchise agreement for each restaurant. If one
restaurant is to be developed, a single unit franchise agreement is executed and the $150 thousand franchise fee is collected at signing.
Information Systems and Restaurant Reporting
All of the Company’s restaurants use computerized point-of-sale systems, which are designed to promote operating efficiency, provide corporate
management timely access to financial and marketing data and reduce restaurant and corporate administrative time and expense. These systems record each
order and print the food requests in the kitchen for the cooks to prepare. The data captured for use by operations and corporate management includes gross
sales amounts, cash and credit card receipts and quantities of each menu item sold. Sales and receipts information is generally transmitted to the corporate
office daily.
The Company’s corporate systems provide management with operating reports that show Company-owned restaurant performance comparisons with
budget and prior year results. These systems allow the Company to monitor Company-owned restaurant sales, food and beverage costs, labor expense and
other restaurant trends on a regular basis.
Service Marks
The Company has registered the main service marks “Ruth’s Chris” and its “Ruth’s Chris Steak House, U.S. Prime & Design” logo, as well as other service
marks used by its restaurants, with the United States Patent and Trademark Office and in the foreign countries in which its restaurants operate. The
Company has also registered in other foreign countries in anticipation of new store openings within those countries. The Company is not aware of any
infringing uses that could materially affect its business. The Company believes that its service marks are valuable to the operation of its restaurants and are
important to its marketing strategy.
Seasonality
The Company’s business is subject to seasonal fluctuations. Historically, the percentage of its annual revenues earned during the first and fourth fiscal
quarters have been higher relative to other quarters due, in large part, to increased restaurant sales during the year-end holiday season and the popularity of
dining out in the fall and winter months. The impact of COVID-19 resulted in higher revenue during the first fiscal quarter of 2020 compared to other
quarters which was atypical compared to prior year results.
Human Capital
Our approach to Human Capital is defined by our strong culture of taking care of people, which reflect our roots in the single steak house started by Ruth
Fertel over fifty-five years ago, define the essence of Ruth’s Chris Steak House, and determine how we take care of all of Our People: Guests, Team
Members, Franchise Owners, Vendor Partners, Community, and Investors.
5

None of the Company’s employees (our “Team Members”) are covered by a collective bargaining agreement. In response to the COVID-19 pandemic, and
the resulting temporary closures of, or state and local government-imposed capacity restrictions on, our restaurants, many of our hourly Team Members
were placed on temporary furlough. As of December 27, 2020, the Company employed 4,363 persons, of whom 369 were salaried and 3,994 were hourly
personnel, who were employed in the positions set forth in the table below. In response to the COVID-19 pandemic, and the resulting temporary closures of
our restaurants, many of our hourly Team Members were placed on temporary furlough. As of the end of fiscal year 2020, 1,731 Team Members remained
on furlough due to the continuing impacts of the pandemic, including locally mandated closures and capacity restrictions.
Number of
Employees

Functional Area

Senior Officers / Corporate VPs / Operations VPs
General Managers
Managers
Regional Corporate Chefs / Executive Chefs
Non-Salaried Restaurant Staff
Corporate Salaried
Corporate Non-salaried
Total number of employees

21
77
145
79
3,986
47
8
4,363

We believe the stability of our leadership team is a critical driver of our ability to steward the Company’s brand and to deliver consistently the brand
standards and experiences our Guests expect. The average tenure of our Field Leadership (VP Level) is approximately fifteen years, the average tenure of
our Restaurant Leadership (General Managers and Chefs) is greater than nine years, and the average tenure of our home office leadership is ten years. In
addition, 20% of our General Managers and approximately 25% of our Chefs have been with the company for more than fifteen years, and our Vice
President of Operations recently celebrated his 30th anniversary with the Company.
Our diverse team reflects our commitment to attracting, retaining, and developing a workforce that reflects the communities in which we live and
work. Across the Company, approximately 59% of our Team Members are racially or ethnically diverse and 33% identify as female. Of our Named
Executive Officers 80% identify as female and 63% of our Board of Directors identify as female. Consistent with our commitment to diversity, we hired a
Director of Diversity and Inclusion in November of 2020.
We believe that providing competitive benefits to our Team Members is integral to ensuring we achieve our goal of attracting and retaining the best team in
the industry. As such, we offer our Team Members competitive pay and health care benefits. Hourly Team Members are eligible for health care and
vacation benefits after one year of service if they average 24 hours of work and receive company-paid life insurance when meeting the same criteria. As
part of our commitment to our Team Members’ health and well-being during the global pandemic, the Company paid both the Employer and Employee
portions of health care premiums for our furloughed Team Members while their restaurants were closed or operating take-out and delivery only through the
third quarter of fiscal year 2020.
Our commitment to our Team Members does not stop with providing competitive pay and benefits. In 2005, following the impact of Hurricane Katrina, we
created the RUTHS Fund to support our Team Members experiencing hardship. The RUTHS Fund is supported primarily by home office and field Team
Member contributions, and over the course of 2020, the fund paid out $645 thousand in grants, benefiting over 600 of our Team Members who applied for
support.
Finally, the COVID-19 pandemic provided us with the opportunity to reinforce our commitment to the health and safety of our people. A sample of
additional steps we are taking to keep our Team Members and guests safe include: increased sanitation processes, enhanced COVID-19 safety training and
certification of our hourly and management team, voluntary capacity restrictions in select markets to protect our Team Members and guests, and daily
health screenings of all restaurant Team Members. The impact of this increased vigilance was an average weekly exclusion rate (the number of Team
Members excluded from work divided by the total number of Team Members working) of less than 1% over the third and fourth quarters of fiscal year
2020.
Government Regulation
The Company is subject to extensive federal, state and local government regulation, including regulations relating to public health and safety, zoning and
fire codes and the sale of alcoholic beverages and food. The Company maintains the necessary restaurant, alcoholic beverage and retail licenses, permits
and approvals. Federal and state laws govern the Company’s relationship with its employees, including laws relating to minimum wage requirements,
overtime, tips, tip credits and working conditions. A significant number of the Company’s hourly employees are paid at rates related to federal or state
minimum wage. During 2020, governmental entities acted to increase minimum wage rates in several jurisdictions where Company-owned restaurants are
located.
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The Company is subject to laws and regulations relating to the preparation and sale of food, including regulations regarding product safety, nutritional
content and menu labeling. The Company is subject to laws and regulations requiring disclosure of calorie, fat, trans fat, salt and allergen content.
Beginning in May 2018, the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act of 2010 (“ACA”) has required restaurant companies, such as the Company, to
disclose calorie information on their menus. The Food and Drug Administration has rules to implement this provision that require restaurants to post the
number of calories for most items on menus or menu boards and to make available more detailed nutrition information upon request. A number of states,
counties and cities have also enacted menu labeling laws requiring restaurant companies, such as the Company, to disclose certain nutrition information on
their menus, or have enacted legislation restricting the use of certain types of ingredients in restaurants some of which are preempted by the federal law.
Many of the current requirements are inconsistent or are interpreted differently from one jurisdiction to another. The long-term effect of such labeling
requirements on consumer choices, if any, is unclear at this time.
The Company maintains an employee benefits program that provides self-insured and insured coverage to employees that meet the applicable requirements
under the program. Employees can elect to enroll dependents that meet eligibility criteria. Coverage includes health, dental, vision, short- and long-term
disability, life insurance and other voluntary ancillary benefits. Employees share in the cost of other coverage at varying levels. The Company has
historically funded a majority of the cost of employee health benefits. The ACA requires that employers offer health care coverage that is qualified and
affordable. Coverage must be offered to all “full-time” employees, as defined by the ACA. The Company routinely reviews its health benefit plans to
assure conformity with the ACA. The hours of service eligibility criteria the Company requires for health benefits are lower than required under the ACA.
Approximately 68% of eligible employees elect to participate in the Company’s health benefit plans.
The offer and sale of franchises are subject to regulation by the U.S. Federal Trade Commission (“FTC”) and many states. The FTC requires that the
Company furnish to prospective franchisees a franchise disclosure document containing prescribed information. A number of states also regulate the sale of
franchises and require state registration of franchise offerings and the delivery of a franchise disclosure document to prospective franchisees. The
Company’s noncompliance could result in governmental enforcement actions seeking a civil or criminal penalty, rescission of a franchise, and loss of its
ability to offer and sell franchises in a state, or a private lawsuit seeking rescission, damages and legal fees.
Competition
The restaurant business is highly competitive and highly fragmented, and the number, size and strength of the Company’s competitors vary widely by
region. The Company believes that restaurant competition is based on, among other things, quality of food products, customer service, reputation,
restaurant location, atmosphere, name recognition and price. The Company’s restaurants compete with a number of upscale steakhouses within their
markets, both locally owned restaurants and restaurants within regional or national chains. The principal upscale steakhouses with which the Company
competes are Fleming’s, The Capital Grille, Smith & Wollensky, The Palm, Del Frisco’s Double Eagle Steakhouse, Fogo de Chão, Morton’s The
Steakhouse, Eddie V’s and other local fine dining restaurants. The Company’s competitors may be better established in certain of the Company’s existing
markets and/or markets into which the Company intends to expand.
Available Information
The Company maintains a website at www.rhgi.com. The Company makes available free of charge, through the investor relations section of its website, its
Annual Reports on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, Current Reports on Form 8-K and amendments to those reports electronically filed or
furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”). In addition, these filings are
available to the public on the SEC’s website through its EDGAR filing system at www.sec.gov. Such information is available on the Company’s website as
soon as reasonably practicable after it is filed with the SEC. Additionally, the Company’s Code of Ethics may be accessed within the Investor Relations
section of its website. Information found on the Company’s website is not part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K or any other report filed with the SEC.
Item 1A.

RISK FACTORS

In addition to the other information in this Annual Report on Form 10-K, the following risk factors should be considered carefully in evaluating the
Company and its business. Additional risks and uncertainties not presently known to us or that the Company currently deems immaterial may also impair
its business operations. If any of these certain risks and uncertainties were to actually occur, the Company’s business, financial condition or results of
operations could be materially adversely affected. In such case, the trading price of the Company’s common stock could decline and its investors may lose
all or part of their investment. These risks and uncertainties include the following:
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Risks Related to Our Ability to Operate and Grow Our Business
The COVID-19 outbreak has disrupted and is expected to continue to disrupt our business, which has and could continue to materially affect our
operations, financial condition and results of operations for an extended period of time.
The government responses related to COVID-19 across the world and our Company’s responses to the outbreak have disrupted and will continue to disrupt
our business. In the United States, containment efforts to slow the transmission of the virus that have been mandated by federal, state and local
governments, include encouraging individuals to practice social distancing, restricting gathering in groups, and, in some areas, completely restricting
individuals from non-essential movements outside of their homes. In response to the COVID-19 outbreak and these changing conditions, we closed the
dining rooms in each of our Company-owned and managed restaurants during the month of April and transitioned our services to take-out and delivery
operations in 69% of our restaurants. As of December 27, 2020, 70 of the 77 Company-owned and -managed restaurants were open, which included 51
restaurants offering limited capacity dining service and 19 restaurants offering take-out and delivery service only. As of December 27, 2020, seven
Company-owned restaurants were temporarily closed. If the COVID-19 pandemic reaccelerates and federal, state and local governments impose
restrictions again, we may again be forced to close some or all of our dining rooms, which would cause us to lose revenue and incur additional
expenses. We have closed certain restaurants, modified work hours for our Team Members and identified and implemented cost savings measures
throughout our operations. The COVID-19 outbreak and these responses have affected and will continue to adversely affect our revenue and operating
margin and we cannot predict how long the outbreak will last or what other government responses may occur.
The COVID-19 outbreak has also adversely affected our ability to open new restaurants. Due to the uncertainty in the economy and to preserve liquidity,
we paused all construction of new restaurants and major remodel projects at existing restaurants in fiscal year 2020. These changes may materially and
adversely affect our ability to grow our business, particularly if these construction pauses are in place for a significant amount of time.
As a result of the COVID-19 outbreak, we may be unable to secure additional liquidity. To improve our liquidity position, we have fully drawn the
$115 million capacity of our revolving credit facility. If we fail to comply with our financial covenants, including a monthly liquidity covenant through
June 2021, and are unable to remedy or obtain a waiver or amendment, an event of default would result. There can be no guarantee that additional liquidity
will be readily available or available on favorable terms to the Company in the future. The equity markets in the United States have been volatile due to
the COVID-19 outbreak and the Company’s stock price has fluctuated significantly. Continued volatility in the equity markets and our stock price could
negatively impact our ability to raise capital.
Our operations could be further disrupted if large numbers of our employees or members of our senior management team are diagnosed with COVID-19. If
a significant percentage of our workforce is unable to work, whether because of illness, quarantine, limitations on travel or other government restrictions in
connection with COVID-19, our operations may be negatively impacted, potentially materially adversely affecting our liquidity, financial condition or
results of operations. Team Members might seek and find other employment during the COVID-19 business interruption, which could materially adversely
affect our ability to properly staff and re-open our restaurants with experienced Team Members when the business interruptions caused by COVID-19 abate
or end.
Our suppliers could be adversely impacted by the COVID-19 outbreak. If our suppliers’ employees are unable to work, whether because of illness,
quarantine, limitations on travel or other government restrictions in connection with COVID-19, we could face shortages of food items or other supplies at
our restaurants and our operations and sales could be adversely impacted by such supply interruptions. The Company took measures to reduce payments to
its landlords and vendors during fiscal year 2020 and is still in discussions with approximately 20% of its landlords to reduce its payments. We are unable
to predict the outcome of these discussions and the extent to which we will be able to negotiate to reduce or modify rent obligations. With rent payments
being delayed, landlords may terminate our leases or could take other actions that restrict our ability to access or re-open our stores in a timely manner. As
of December 27, 2020, we were engaged in legal proceedings with six landlords or former landlords. We have pursued or continue to pursue these matters
vigorously but there can be no assurance that we will prevail in litigation. The Company negotiated with its vendors during fiscal year 2020 to secure
reductions and deferrals on obligated payments while its locations were operating in take-out and delivery status. These negotiations were concluded prior
to the end of fiscal year 2020.
We have transitioned some of our employees, primarily home office support functions, to work remotely in an effort to mitigate the spread of COVID19. We are prepared to operate in this manner for the foreseeable future, if necessary. While we have business continuity procedures in place to guide our
response to a crisis, our attention may be diverted away from normal operations and our resources may be constrained.
Additional government regulations or legislation due to COVID-19, in addition to decisions we have made and may make in the future, relating to the
compensation of and benefit offerings for our restaurant Team Members could also have an adverse effect on our
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business. We cannot predict the types of additional government regulations or legislation that may be passed relating to employee compensation due
to COVID-19 outbreak.
We could experience other potential impacts due to COVID-19 pandemic that are not completely known at this time, including, but not limited to, charges
from potential adjustments and impairment charges to the carrying amount of goodwill, indefinite-lived intangible assets and long-lived assets. We have
incurred impairment charges and could incur additional impairment charges in the future. Our actual results may differ materially from the Company’s
current estimates as the scope of the COVID-19 pandemic evolves, depending largely though not exclusively on the duration of the disruption to our
business.
A lack of availability of suitable locations for new restaurants, the inability to renew leases at existing restaurants on similar terms and conditions, or a
decline in the quality of the locations of our current restaurants may adversely affect our sales and results of operations.
The success of our restaurants depends in large part on their locations. All but one of our Company-owned restaurant premises are leased. If we do not
renew leases when the lease terms expire, or if we are unable to renew leases on favorable terms and conditions, our operating results could be negatively
impacted. Possible declines in neighborhoods where our restaurants are located or adverse economic conditions in areas surrounding those neighborhoods
could also result in reduced sales in those restaurants. Desirable locations for new restaurant openings or for the relocation of existing restaurants may not
be available at an acceptable cost when we identify a particular opportunity for a new restaurant or relocation. In addition, construction costs for new
locations may fluctuate. The occurrence of one or more of these events could have a significant adverse effect on our sales and results of operations.
Our strategy to open franchisee-owned restaurants subjects us to extensive government regulation, compliance with which might increase our
investment costs and restrict our growth.
We are subject to the rules and regulations of the FTC and various international and state laws regulating the offer and sale of franchises. The FTC requires
that we furnish to prospective franchisees a franchise disclosure document containing prescribed information and can restrict our ability to sell franchises.
A number of states also regulate the sale of franchises and require the obtaining of a permit and/or registration of the franchise disclosure document with
state authorities and the delivery of the franchise disclosure document to prospective franchisees. Non-compliance with those laws could result in
governmental enforcement actions seeking a civil or criminal penalty, rescission of a franchise, and loss of our ability to offer and sell franchises in a state,
or a private lawsuit seeking rescission, damages and legal fees, which could have a material adverse effect on our business.
The terms of our senior credit agreement may restrict our ability to operate our business and to pursue our business strategies.
Our senior credit agreement contains, and any agreements governing future indebtedness would likely contain, a number of restrictive covenants that
impose significant operating and financial restrictions on us. Our senior credit agreement, as amended, which was entered into on February 2, 2017, limits
our ability, among other things, to:
•

pay dividends or purchase stock in excess of the limits permitted under the credit facility;

•

borrow money or issue guarantees;

•

make investments;

•

use assets as security in other transactions;

•

sell assets or merge with or into other companies;

•

enter into transactions with affiliates; and

•

create or permit restrictions on our subsidiaries’ ability to make payments to us.

Our ability to engage in these types of transactions is limited even if we believe that a specific transaction would contribute to our future growth or improve
our operating results. Our senior credit agreement also requires us to maintain compliance with certain financial ratios. Our ability to comply with these
ratios may be affected by events outside of our control. Any non-compliance would result in a default under our senior credit agreement and could result in
our lenders declaring our senior debt immediately due and payable, which would have a material adverse effect on our financial position, consolidated
results of operations and liquidity.
We pay interest under our senior credit agreement based on the London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”). The U.K. Financial Conduct Authority (the
“FCA”), which regulates LIBOR, announced that the FCA will no longer persuade or compel banks to submit rates for the calculation of LIBOR after
2021. On November 30, 2020, ICE Benchmark Administration (“IBA”), the administrator of LIBOR, with the support of the United States Federal
Reserve and the FCA, announced plans to consult on ceasing publication of LIBOR on December 31, 2021 for only the one week and two month LIBOR
tenors, and on June 30, 2023 for all other LIBOR tenors.
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While this announcement extends the transition period to June 2023, the United States Federal Reserve concurrently issued a statement advising banks to
stop new LIBOR issuances by the end of 2021. In light of these recent announcements, the future of LIBOR at this time is uncertain and any changes in the
methods by which LIBOR is determined or regulatory activity related to LIBOR’s phaseout could cause LIBOR to perform differently than in the past or
cease to exist. While our senior credit agreement includes a mechanism for an alternate rate to LIBOR, there is no guarantee that the discontinuance of
LIBOR will not result in financial market disruptions or significant increases in benchmark interest rates or borrowing costs, any of which may have an
adverse effect on us.
We depend on external sources of capital, which may not be available in the future.
Historically, we have relied upon external sources of capital to fund our working capital and other requirements. Currently, we utilize our senior credit
agreement to fund a portion of our working capital and other financing requirements. Any non-compliance with any restrictive or financial covenants in our
senior credit agreement could result in a default and could result in our lenders declaring our senior debt immediately due and payable, which would have a
material adverse effect on our financial position, consolidated results of operations and liquidity.
If we are required to seek other sources of capital, additional capital may or may not be available on favorable terms or at all. Our access to third-party
sources of capital depends on a number of factors, including the market’s perception of our current and potential future earnings. Furthermore, additional
equity offerings may result in substantial dilution of stockholders’ interests. If we are unable to access sufficient capital or enter into financing
arrangements on favorable terms in the future, our financial condition and results of operations may be materially adversely affected.
Food safety and food-borne illness concerns throughout the supply chain may have an adverse effect on our business.
Food safety is a top priority, and we dedicate substantial resources to ensuring that our customers enjoy safe, quality food products. However, food safety
risks are common throughout the restaurant industry and cannot be eliminated. Food safety issues could be caused by food suppliers, distributors or
franchisees and, as a result, be out of our control. In addition, regardless of the source or cause, any report of food-borne illness such as E. coli, norovirus,
hepatitis A, trichinosis, shigella, typhoid fever or salmonella, and other food safety issues including food tampering or contamination, at one of our
restaurants could adversely affect the reputation of our brand and have a negative impact on our sales. Even instances of food-borne illness, food
tampering or other food contamination occurring solely at restaurants of our competitors could result in negative publicity about the food service industry
generally and adversely impact our sales. The occurrence of food-borne illnesses or food safety issues could also adversely affect the price and availability
of affected ingredients, resulting in higher costs and lower margins.
If our vendors or distributors do not deliver food and beverages in a timely manner we may experience supply shortages and/or increased food and
beverage costs.
Our ability to maintain consistent quality throughout Company-owned restaurants depends in part upon our ability to purchase USDA Prime and Choice
grade beef, seafood and other food products in accordance with our rigid specifications. During fiscal year 2020, the country experienced supply
disruptions due to closures of processing locations necessitated in the meat packing industry due to workforce COVID-19 infections. The Company
purchased additional supplies of beef as a precaution against potential supply disruption. The Company did not experience any disruption during the fiscal
year 2020 and was able to purchase substantially all of the beef used in Company-owned Ruth’s Chris restaurants from two vendors, Sysco Specialty Meat
Group (a subsidiary of Sysco) and Stock Yards Packing (a subsidiary of US Foods). Each vendor supplied about half of the Company’s beef requirements.
In addition, we currently have a long-term distribution arrangement with a national food and restaurant supply distributor, DMA, which purchases products
for us from various suppliers, and through which each of our Company-owned Ruth’s Chris Steak House restaurants receive a significant portion of their
food supplies. Consolidation in our supply chain due to mergers and acquisitions may change the relationships we have with our existing vendors and
distributors and/or result in fewer alternative supply sources for purchasing our food supplies, which could result in an increase in prices. If for any reason
our vendors or distributors cease doing business with us, we could experience supply shortages in certain Company-owned restaurants and could be
required to purchase supplies at higher prices until we are able to secure an alternative supply source. Any delay we experience in replacing vendors or
distributors on acceptable terms could increase food costs or, in extreme cases, require us to temporarily remove items from the menu at one or more
Company-owned restaurants.
Labor shortages or increases in labor costs could slow our growth or harm our business.
Our success depends in part upon our ability to continue to attract, motivate and retain employees with the qualifications to succeed in our industry and the
motivation to apply our core service philosophy, including regional operational managers, restaurant general
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managers and chefs. If we are unable to continue to recruit and retain sufficiently qualified individuals, our business and growth could be adversely
affected. Competition for these employees could require us to pay higher wages, which could result in higher labor costs.
In addition, we have a substantial number of hourly employees who are paid wage rates at or based on the federal or state minimum wage and who rely on
tips as a large portion of their income. Governmental entities have acted to increase minimum wage rates in several jurisdictions where Company-owned
restaurants are located. The federal minimum wage may be increased and there likely will be additional minimum wage increases implemented in other
states in which we operate or seek to operate. Likewise, changes to existing tip credit laws (which dictate the amounts an employer is permitted to assume
an employee receives in tips when calculating the employee’s hourly wage for minimum wage compliance purposes) continue to be proposed and
implemented at both the federal and state government levels. The current federal proposal would increase the minimum wage to $15 per hour over the next
four years. The State of Florida, where the Company has a significant number of restaurants, recently voted to increase the minimum wage to $15 per hour
over the next six years. As federal and/or state minimum wage rates increase and allowable tip credits decrease, we may need to increase not only the wage
rates of our minimum wage employees but also the wages paid to our employees who are paid above the minimum wage, which will increase our labor
costs. Proposals on paid sick leave could also increase our labor costs. None of our employees are represented by a collective bargaining unit. Should
some of our employees elect to be represented by a collective bargaining unit, our labor costs may increase due to higher wage rates and/or the
implementation of work rules. We may be unable to increase our prices to pass these increased labor costs on to our guests, in which case our margins
would be negatively affected.
Regulations affecting the operation of our restaurants could increase operating costs and restrict growth.
Each of our restaurants must obtain licenses from regulatory authorities allowing us to sell liquor, beer and wine, and each restaurant must obtain a food
service license from local health authorities. Each restaurant’s liquor license must be renewed annually and may be revoked at any time for cause, including
violation by the Company or its employees of any laws and regulations relating to the minimum drinking age, advertising, wholesale purchasing and
inventory control. One of our locations was cited for a violation in fiscal year 2018 and was penalized by a two-week closure in fiscal year 2019.
In certain states, including states where we have a large number of restaurants or where we may open restaurants in the future, the number of liquor licenses
available is limited and licenses are traded at market prices. If we are unable to maintain existing licenses, or if we choose to open a restaurant in those
states, the cost of a new license could be significant. Obtaining and maintaining licenses is an important component of each of our restaurant’s operations,
and the failure to obtain or maintain food and liquor licenses and other required licenses, permits and approvals would materially adversely impact existing
restaurants or our growth strategy.
We are also subject to a variety of federal and state labor laws, pertaining to matters such as minimum wage and overtime pay requirements, unemployment
tax rates, workers’ compensation rates and citizenship requirements. Government-mandated increases in minimum wages, overtime pay, paid leaves of
absence, mandated health benefits, COVID related labor regulations, or increased tax reporting and tax payment requirements for employees who receive
gratuities or a reduction in the number of states that allow tips to be credited toward minimum wage requirements could increase our labor costs and reduce
our operating margins. In addition, the Federal Americans with Disabilities Act prohibits discrimination based on disability in public accommodations and
employment. Although our restaurants are designed to be accessible to the disabled, we could be required to make modifications to our restaurants to
provide service to, or make reasonable accommodations for, disabled persons.
We rely on information technology in our operations and a failure to maintain a continuous and secure network, free from material failure,
interruption, or security breach, could harm our ability to effectively operate our business, damage our reputation and negatively affect our operations
and profits.
We rely on information systems across our operations, including for marketing programs, point-of-sale processing systems in our restaurants, online
purchases of gift cards and various other processes and transactions. The failure of these systems to operate effectively, delays in transitioning to upgraded
or replacement systems, a material network breach in the security of these systems, or any other failure to maintain a continuous and secure network could
adversely affect our reputation, negatively affect our results of operations, subject us to litigation or action by regulatory authorities and result in substantial
harm to us or an individual. As privacy and information security laws and regulations change and cyber risks evolve, we may incur additional costs to
ensure we remain in compliance, to protect guest, employee and Company information. We currently carry insurance coverage to protect ourselves against
some of these risks. However, our inability to continue to obtain such insurance coverage at reasonable costs also could have a material adverse effect on
our financial condition and results of operations.
We accept electronic payment cards, including credit, debit and gift cards, from our guests for payment in our restaurants and on our websites. We also
receive and maintain certain personal information about our customers and employees. Most of our sensitive data, including information related to
employees, guests, credit cards, gift cards and financial statements, is stored or processed by third-party vendors. We, and some of our vendors, have
experienced breaches but they have not had a material impact on operations or our financial position. If we, or one of our vendors, experienced a material
security breach, we could become subject to claims, lawsuits
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or other proceedings for purportedly fraudulent transactions arising out of the theft of credit or debit card information, theft of gift card information,
compromised security and information systems, failure of our employees to comply with applicable laws, the unauthorized acquisition or use of such
information by third parties, or other similar claims.
We frequently defend against unauthorized attempts to breach our network, but we are not aware of a major security breach. We employ both internal and
external consultants to conduct auditing and testing for weaknesses in our systems, controls, firewalls and encryption and intend to maintain and upgrade
our security technology and operational procedures to prevent such damage, security breaches or other disruptive problems. In April 2020, we received a
cyber threat from an anonymous source. We engaged a third party to assess the threat and confirmed that our IT systems were secure. We continuously
monitor data security and evaluate our network for known security breaches. However, because the techniques used to obtain unauthorized access, to
disable or degrade service, or to sabotage computer systems change frequently and may be difficult to detect for long periods of time, we may be unable to
anticipate these techniques or successfully implement adequate preventive security measures. There can also be no assurance that we would detect a cyber
incident or prevent cyberattacks from penetrating our systems. Any such incidents or proceedings could negatively affect our reputation and our results of
operations, cause delays in guest service, require significant capital investments to remediate the problem, and could result in the imposition of penalties or
cause us to incur significant unplanned losses and expenditures, including those necessary to remediate any damage to persons whose personal information
may have been compromised. Furthermore, because of legislative and regulatory rules, we may be required to notify employees or the owners of the credit
and debit card information of any data breaches, which could harm our reputation and financial results, as well as subject us to litigation or other
proceedings by regulatory authorities.
We may not be able to compete successfully with other restaurants, which could reduce revenues.
The restaurant industry is intensely competitive with respect to price, service, location, food quality, atmosphere and overall dining experience. Our
competitors include a large and diverse group of well-recognized upscale steakhouse and upscale casual restaurant chains, including steakhouse and
seafood chains as well as restaurants owned by independent local operators. Some of our competitors have substantially greater financial, marketing and
other resources, and may be better established in the markets where our restaurants are or may be located. If we cannot compete effectively in one or more
of our markets, we may be unable to maintain recent levels of comparable restaurant sales growth and/or may be required to close existing restaurants.
Risks Related to Financial Performance or General Economic Conditions
Increases in the prices of, or reductions in the availability of, any of our core food products could reduce our operating margins and revenues.
We purchase large quantities of beef, particularly USDA Prime grade beef, which is subject to significant price fluctuations due to seasonal shifts, climate
conditions, industry demand and other factors. Our beef costs represented approximately 45% of our food and beverage costs during fiscal year 2020. We
typically buy our beef on the “spot” market and from time to time we will enter into longer term pricing and supply agreements. As of December 27, 2020,
we have negotiated set pricing on approximately 65% of our beef supply through March 2021 at an expected savings of approximately 15% in the first
fiscal quarter of 2021 compared to current market prices. The market for USDA Prime grade beef is particularly volatile. If prices increase, or we are
unsuccessful in our long-term pricing and supply agreements, or the supply of beef is reduced, our operating margins could be materially adversely
affected.
In addition, under the Federal Meat Inspection Act and the Poultry Products Inspection Act, the production, processing or interstate distribution of meat and
poultry products is prohibited absent federal inspection. If there is a disruption to the meat inspection process, we could experience a reduction in supply
and a corresponding increase in meat prices, which could be significant, either of which could materially impact our operating margin and results of
operations.
In the recent past, certain types of seafood have experienced fluctuations in availability. Seafood is also subject to fluctuations in price based on availability,
which is often seasonal. If certain types of seafood are unavailable, or if our costs increase, our results of operations could be adversely affected.
An impairment in the financial statement carrying value of our goodwill, other intangible assets or property could adversely affect our financial
condition and consolidated results of operations.
Goodwill and owned franchise rights must be reviewed for potential impairment annually and when triggering events are detected. We performed our
annual impairment test of goodwill and franchise rights as of November 29, 2020 using a qualitative assessment. Using the qualitative approach, we
evaluated factors, including but not limited to: recent financial performance, forecasts for future cash flows, the Company’s stock price and market
capitalization, recent impairment tests, legal factors, the business climate, and the competitive environment.
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We review property and equipment, which includes leasehold improvements, and operating lease right-of-use (ROU) assets for impairment when events or
circumstances indicate these assets might be impaired. We test for impairment using historical cash flow, forecasts and other relevant facts and
circumstances as the primary basis for our estimates of future cash flows. The analysis is performed quarterly at the restaurant level for indicators of
impairment. In determining future cash flows, we make significant estimates with respect to future operating results of each restaurant over the expected
remaining life of the primary asset in the restaurant.
We cannot accurately predict the amount and timing of any impairment of assets. Should the financial statement carrying value of goodwill, other
intangible assets or property and equipment become impaired, there could be an adverse effect on our financial condition and consolidated results of
operations.
We cannot assure our stockholders that we will resume quarterly cash dividends on our common stock or repurchase shares of our common stock
under our share repurchase program. Failure to resume payment of quarterly cash dividends to our stockholders or repurchase shares of our common
stock under our share repurchase program could cause the market price for our common stock to decline.
During fiscal year 2020, we discontinued paying quarterly cash dividends to holders of our common stock and ceased the repurchase of shares of our
common stock under our share repurchase program due to impacts from COVID-19. Our ability to pay future quarterly cash dividends or repurchase shares
of our common stock will be subject to, among other things, our results of operations, financial condition, business prospects, capital requirements,
contractual restrictions, any new indebtedness we may incur, restrictions imposed by applicable law, tax considerations and other factors that our Board of
Directors deems relevant. There can be no assurance that we will resume payment of a quarterly cash dividend or repurchase shares of our common stock
in the future. Any reduction or discontinuance by us of the payment of quarterly cash dividends or the repurchase of shares of our common stock under our
share repurchase program could cause the market price of our common stock to decline. Moreover, our failure or inability to resume paying quarterly cash
dividends at historical levels could result in a lower market valuation of our common stock.
Local conditions, adverse weather conditions, natural disasters, acts of violence, terrorism or civil unrest, could adversely affect our business.
Certain of the regions in which we operate (including Florida and California where we have a significant number of restaurants) have been, and may in the
future be, subject to adverse local conditions, events, terrorist attacks, adverse weather conditions, or natural disasters, such as earthquakes, floods,
hurricanes and wildfires. Any of the foregoing events may result in physical damage, temporary or permanent closure, lack of an adequate work force, or
temporary or long-term disruption in the supply of food, beverages, electric, water, sewer and waste disposal services necessary for our restaurants to
operate. Depending upon its magnitude, any of the foregoing could severely damage our restaurants and/or adversely affect our business, results of
operations or financial condition.
We currently maintain property and business interruption insurance through the aggregate property policy for each of our company-owned locations.
However, if there is a major disaster, such coverage may not be adequate. In addition, upon the expiration of our current insurance policies, adequate
insurance coverage may not be available at reasonable rates, or at all.
We have disaster recovery procedures and business continuity plans in place to address most events of a crisis nature (including hurricanes and other
natural disasters) including back up and off-site locations for recovery of electronic and other forms of data and information. However, if we are unable to
fully implement our disaster recovery plans, we may experience delays in recovery of data, inability to perform vital functions, tardiness in required
reporting and compliance, failures to adequately support restaurant operations and other breakdowns in normal communication and operating procedures
that may have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations, financial condition and exposure to administrative and other legal claims.
The cost of our employee health care benefit program may increase in the future.
We maintain an employee benefits program that provides self-insured and insured coverage to employees that meet the applicable requirements under the
program. Employees can elect to enroll dependents that meet eligibility criteria. Coverage includes health, dental, vision, short- and long-term disability,
life insurance and other voluntary ancillary benefits. Employees share in the cost of other coverage at varying levels. The Company has historically funded
a majority of the cost of health benefits.
The Company routinely reviews its health benefit plans to assure conformity with government regulations. Approximately 68% of eligible employees elect
to participate in our health benefit plans. The “hours of service” eligibility criteria for the Company’s health benefits plan are lower than those required by
law. In the future, proportionately more employees may elect to participate in our health benefit plans. We are unable to reliably predict to what extent, if
any, the percentage of eligible employees who elect health care coverage will increase in the future. Because we fund a majority of the cost of health
benefits, our financial accounting expense will increase to the extent that additional employees elect to participate in the Company’s health benefit plans.
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Certain other restaurant companies may curtail the ability of their employees to participate in their health benefit plans by increasing the hours worked
eligibility requirement to the minimum required under the ACA. Such restaurant companies may gain a cost advantage compared to us by reducing the
cost of their employee health benefit programs.
Also, medical inflation has historically tended to outpace general inflation. We are unable to reliably predict the extent to which future medical inflation
will outpace general inflation. Additionally, because our medical benefit program is self-insured, an unusual incidence of large claims may cause our costs
to unexpectedly increase.
Economic downturns or changes in consumer confidence may adversely impact consumer spending patterns.
Economic downturns have in the past and could in the future negatively impact consumer spending patterns. Any decrease in consumer spending patterns
may result in a decline in our operating performance. Economic downturns may reduce guest traffic and require us to lower our prices, which reduces our
revenues and operating income, which may adversely affect the market price for our common stock. In addition, some of our restaurants are located in
areas that we consider tourist or vacation destinations. In those locations, we depend in large part on vacation travelers to frequent our Ruth’s Chris Steak
House restaurants, and such destinations typically experience a reduction in visitors during economic downturns, thereby reducing the potential guests that
could visit our restaurants. A significant portion of our gross revenue comes from business guests and private dining which could also be negatively
affected during an economic downturn or decrease in consumer confidence. This could have a material adverse impact on our results of operations and
growth strategy. Disasters occurring at one of our franchisee’s locations could impact our reputation and our consumers’ perception of our
brand. Moreover, these types of events could negatively impact consumer spending in the impacted regions or, depending on the severity, globally, which
could adversely impact our operating results. In fiscal year 2020 the COVID-19 outbreak caused a global economic downturn. As of March 2021, multiple
variants of the COVID-19 virus are circulating globally that are highly transmissible, and there is uncertainty around vaccine effectiveness on the new
strains of the virus. Uncertainty around vaccine distribution, supply and effectiveness will impact when the negative economic effects as a result of
COVID-19 will abate or end and the timing of such recovery may affect our financial condition.
Litigation concerning food quality, health, employment practices and other issues could require us to incur additional liabilities and/or cause guests to
avoid our restaurants.
Occasionally, our guests file complaints or lawsuits against us alleging that we are responsible for some illness or injury they suffered at or after a visit to
our restaurants. We are also subject to a variety of other claims arising in the ordinary course of our business, including personal injury claims, contract
claims, claims from franchisees, claims from landlords, claims from suppliers, claims alleging violations of federal and state law regarding workplace and
employment matters, harassment and discrimination and similar matters. In addition, we could become subject to class action lawsuits related to these
matters in the future. These actions and proceedings may involve allegations of illegal, unfair or inconsistent employment practices, including wage and
hour violations and employment discrimination; guest discrimination; food safety issues including poor food quality, food-borne illness, food tampering,
food contamination, and adverse health effects from consumption of various food productions or high-calorie foods. We, and other companies in the
restaurant industry, have also been subject to a growing number of claims that the menus and actions of restaurant chains have led to the obesity of certain
of their guests. In addition, we are subject to “dram shop” statutes. These statutes generally permit a person injured by an intoxicated person to recover
damages from an establishment that wrongfully served alcoholic beverages to the intoxicated person. The restaurant industry has also faced recent claims
related to sexual harassment. Regardless of whether any claims against us are valid or whether we are liable, claims may be expensive to defend and may
divert time and money away from our operations and hurt our performance. A judgment that significantly exceeds our insurance coverage for any claims or
for matters not covered by insurance could materially adversely affect our financial condition and results of operations. Our inability to continue to obtain
such insurance coverage at reasonable costs also could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations. Adverse
publicity or a failure to respond effectively resulting from these claims may also negatively impact our reputation and revenues at one or more of our
restaurants.
Tax assessments or unclaimed property audits by governmental authorities could adversely impact our operating results.
We remit a variety of taxes and fees to various governmental authorities, including federal and state income taxes, excise taxes, franchise taxes, property
taxes, sales and use taxes, and payroll taxes. The taxes and fees remitted by us are subject to review and audit by the applicable governmental authorities,
which could result in liability for additional assessments. In addition, we are subject to unclaimed or abandoned property (escheat) laws which require us to
turn over to certain government authorities the property of others held by us that has been unclaimed for a specified period. We are subject to audits by
individual U.S. states regarding our escheatment practices. The legislation and regulations related to tax and unclaimed property matters tend to be complex
and subject to varying interpretations by both government authorities and taxpayers. Although management believes that the positions are reasonable,
various taxing authorities may challenge certain of the positions we have taken, which may also potentially result in additional liabilities for taxes,
unclaimed property and interest in excess of accrued liabilities. Our positions are reviewed as events occur such as the availability of new information, the
lapsing of applicable statutes of limitations, the conclusion of tax audits, the measurement of
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additional estimated liability based on current calculations, the identification of new tax contingencies, or the rendering of relevant court decisions. An
unfavorable resolution of assessments by a governmental authority could negatively impact our results of operations and cash flows in future periods. The
Company has a pending voluntary disclosure agreement with the State of Delaware to resolve potential liability surrounding gift cards.
Market volatility could adversely affect our stock price.
Many factors affect the trading price of our stock, including factors over which we have no control, such as reports on the economy or the price of
commodities, as well as negative or positive announcements by competitors, regardless of whether the report relates directly to our business. In addition to
investor expectations, trading activity in our stock can reflect the portfolio strategies and investment allocation changes of institutional holders. Any failure
to meet market expectations, whether for sales growth rates, earnings per share or other metrics, could adversely affect our share price. During fiscal year
2020, COVID-19 was a source of volatility in the financial markets. This volatility also impacted the Company’s stock price.
In the future we could incur unexpected expenses resulting from the sale of the Mitchell’s Restaurants.
Effective January 21, 2015, we sold the Mitchell’s Restaurants and related assets to Landry’s, Inc. and Mitchell’s Entertainment, Inc., an affiliate of
Landry’s Inc. (together with Landry’s Inc., “Landry’s”). Pursuant to the terms of the purchase agreement, upon closing of the sale of the Mitchell’s
Restaurants, Landry’s assumed the lease obligations of the Mitchell’s Restaurants. However, we have guaranteed Landry’s lease obligations aggregating
$22.7 million under five of the leases which extend until the leases terminate which may continue into 2040 assuming all options are exercised. Separate
from the purchase agreement, Landry’s has agreed to indemnify the Company in the event of a default under any of the leases. There is a risk that adverse
events may occur that require us to defend against or fulfill an indemnity claim, which could result in unexpected expense.
Risks Related to Our Brand
Negative publicity surrounding our brand, the consumption of beef generally, or shifts in consumer tastes, could reduce sales in one or more of our
restaurants and make our brand less valuable.
Our success depends, in large part, upon the reputation of our brand. Negative publicity resulting from poor food quality, illness, injury or other health
concerns, or operating problems including disappointing customer experiences related to one or more restaurants, have occurred in the past, could occur in
the future, and could make our restaurants less appealing to consumers. Further, the influence of social media could make it more difficult for us to
respond to negative publicity in a timely or effective manner. Consumers value readily available information and often act on such information without
further investigation and without regard to its accuracy. The harm may be immediate without affording us the opportunity for redress or correction. In
addition, any shifts in consumer preferences away from the kinds of food we offer, particularly beef, whether because of environmental, dietary or other
health concerns or otherwise, would make our restaurants less appealing and adversely affect revenues. Our restaurants are required to disclose calorie
information on menus, which could have an adverse effect on our revenues and results of operations.
Our franchisees could take actions that harm our reputation and reduce our royalty and restaurant revenues.
We do not exercise control over the day-to-day operations of our franchisee-owned restaurants. While we strive to ensure that franchisee-owned restaurants
maintain the same high operating standards that we demand of Company-owned restaurants, one or more of these restaurants may fail to maintain these
standards or provide a customer experience consistent with our brand standards. Any operational or financial shortcomings of the franchisee-owned
restaurants are likely to be attributed to our system-wide operations and could adversely affect our reputation and damage our brand as well as have a direct
negative impact on the royalty income we receive from those restaurants. Franchisee noncompliance with the operational standards and the terms and
conditions of our franchise agreements may reduce the overall goodwill of our brand, whether through the failure to meet health and safety standards,
engage in quality control or maintain product consistency, adequate succession planning or through the participation in improper or objectionable business
practices. Moreover, unauthorized third parties may use our intellectual property to trade on the goodwill of the Company’s brand, resulting in consumer
confusion or dilution. Any harm to our brand or goodwill, customer confusion or brand dilution could materially and adversely impact our business and
results of operations.
The expansion into international markets by our franchisees also creates additional risks to our brands and reputation.
Our international operations are subject to all the same risks associated with our domestic operations, as well as numerous additional risks. These include,
among other things, international economic and political conditions, foreign currency fluctuations and differing cultures and consumer preferences. We are
also subject to governmental regulation in such international markets, including antitrust and tax requirements, anti-boycott regulations, COVID-19 related
regulations, import/export/customs regulations and other
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international trade regulations, the USA Patriot Act and the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act. Any new regulatory or trade initiatives could impact our
operations in certain countries. Failure to comply with any such legal requirements could subject us to monetary liabilities and other sanctions, which could
harm our business, results of operations and financial condition.
Our failure to enforce our service marks or other proprietary rights could adversely affect our competitive position or the value of our brands.
We own certain common law service mark rights and a number of federal and international service mark registrations, most importantly the Ruth’s Chris
Steak House names and logos, copyrights relating to text and print uses, and other proprietary intellectual property rights. We believe that our service
marks, copyrights and other proprietary rights are important to our success and competitive position. Protective actions we take with respect to these rights
may fail to prevent unauthorized usage or imitation by others, which could harm our reputation, brand or competitive position and, if we commence
litigation to enforce our rights, cause us to incur significant legal expenses.
Item 1B.

UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None.
Item 2.

PROPERTIES

Company-owned restaurants are generally located in spaces leased by wholly-owned direct or indirect subsidiaries. Seventy-three of the Company-owned
Ruth’s Chris restaurants operate in leased space, of which the majority currently provide for an option to renew for terms ranging from approximately five
years to twenty years. Historically, the Company has not had difficulty in renewing its leases in a timely manner. Restaurant leases provide for a specified
annual rent, and some leases call for additional or contingent rent based on sales volumes over specified levels.
The Company reduced its leased space for the corporate headquarters in Winter Park, Florida during fiscal year 2020 from 21,211 square feet to 11,784
square feet with a term set to expire on August 31, 2026.
The Company owns the real estate for one Ruth’s Chris operating restaurant in Ft. Lauderdale, Florida (7,800 square feet).
The following table sets forth information about the Company’s existing Company-owned and franchisee-owned restaurants as of December 27, 2020. As
of this same date, the Company operated 74 Ruth’s Chris restaurants and three restaurants operated under contractual agreements. In addition, franchisees
operated 72 restaurants. Company-owned Ruth’s Chris restaurants range in size from approximately 4,000 to approximately 13,000 square feet with
approximately 180 to 375 seats. The Company expects that future restaurants will range in size from 7,000 to 10,000 square feet with approximately 230 to
250 seats.
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Year Opened

1972
1977
1985
1985
1986
1988
1988
1989
1989
1990
1990
1992
1992
1993
1993
1994
1995
1995
1996
1996
1996
1996
1997
1997
1998
1998
1998
1999
1999
1999
2000
2000
2000
2000
2001
2001
2002
2002
2002
2003
2005
2005
2005
2006
2006
2006

Company-Owned Ruth's Chris Restaurants
Locations
Property Leased or Owned

Metairie, LA
Lafayette, LA
Ft. Lauderdale, FL
Austin, TX
Nashville, TN
Philadelphia, PA
Seattle, WA
Honolulu, HI
Memphis, TN
Weehawken, NJ
Scottsdale, AZ
Palm Desert, CA
Minneapolis, MN
Arlington, VA
Manhattan, NY
San Diego, CA
Long Island, NY
Westchester, NY
Dallas, TX
Troy, MI
Tampa, FL
Bethesda, MD
Irvine, CA
Jacksonville, FL
Louisville, KY
Parsippany, NJ
Northbrook, IL
Coral Gables, FL
Ponte Vedra, FL
Winter Park, FL
Sarasota, FL
Del Mar, CA
Boca Raton, FL
Wailea, HI
Orlando, FL
Greensboro, NC
Woodland Hills, CA
Fairfax, VA
Bellevue, WA
Walnut Creek, CA
Roseville, CA
Boston, MA
Sacramento, CA
Bonita Springs, FL
Mauna Lani, HI
Pasadena, CA

Leased
Leased
Owned
Leased
Leased
Leased
Leased
Leased
Leased
Leased
Leased
Leased
Leased
Leased
Leased
Leased
Leased
Leased
Leased
Leased
Leased
Leased
Leased
Leased
Leased
Leased
Leased
Leased
Leased
Leased
Leased
Leased
Leased
Leased
Leased
Leased
Leased
Leased
Leased
Leased
Leased
Leased
Leased
Leased
Leased
Leased
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Year Opened

1976
1985
1986
1987
1987
1991
1993
1993
1993
1993
1994
1995
1996
1996
1997
1997
1998
1999
2000
2000
2001
2001
2001
2005
2005
2005
2005
2006
2006
2006
2006
2007
2007
2007
2007
2007
2007
2007
2007
2008
2008
2008
2008
2008
2008
2009

Franchisee-Owned Ruth's Chris Restaurants
Locations

Baton Rouge, LA
Mobile, AL
Atlanta, GA
Pittsburgh, PA
Hartford, CT
Richmond, VA
Birmingham, AL
San Antonio, TX
Taipei, Taiwan
Cancun, Mexico
Indianapolis, IN
Toronto, Canada
Taichung, Taiwan
Indianapolis, IN
Kowloon, Hong Kong
Raleigh (Cary), NC
Annapolis, MD
Atlanta, GA
Pikesville, MD
San Antonio, TX
Kaohsiung, Taiwan
Queensway, Hong Kong
Cabo San Lucas, Mexico
Virginia Beach, VA
Baltimore, MD
Atlantic City, NJ
Charlotte, NC
Ocean City, MD
Destin, FL
Huntsville, AL
Edmonton, Canada
Charlotte, NC
Columbia, SC
Mishawaka, IN
Tokyo, Japan
Madison, WI
Calgary, Canada
Rogers, AR
Park City, UT
Aruba
Myrtle Beach, SC
Wilmington, NC
Wilkes-Barre, PA
Raleigh, NC
Savannah, GA
Greenville, SC

Prior Year Opened

2007
2007
2007
2007
2007
2007
2007
2008
2008
2008
2008
2008
2011
2012
2013
2014
2014
2014
2015
2016
2016
2017
2017
2018
2018
2019
2019
2020

Company-Owned Ruth's Chris Restaurants
Locations
Property Leased or Owned

Lake Mary, FL*
Anaheim, CA*
Biloxi, MS
Knoxville, TN
Tyson's Corner, VA
Waikiki, HI
West Palm Beach, FL
Ft. Worth, TX
New Orleans, LA
Princeton, NJ*
Fresno, CA
South Barrington, IL*
Portland, OR
Cincinnati, OH
Houston, TX
Denver, CO
Gaithersburg, MD
Marina del Rey, CA
St. Petersburg, FL
Albuquerque, NM
El Paso, TX
Waltham, MA
Denver, CO
Jersey City, NJ
Paramus, NJ
Columbus, OH
Somerville, MA
Washington, D.C.

Land Leased
Land Leased
Leased
Leased
Leased
Leased
Leased
Leased
Leased
Land Leased
Leased
Land Leased
Leased
Leased
Leased
Leased
Leased
Leased
Leased
Leased
Leased
Leased
Leased
Leased
Leased
Leased
Leased
Leased

Year Opened

2009
2009
2009
2010
2011
2011
2012
2012
2013
2013
2013
2013
2014
2014
2014
2015
2015
2016
2016
2016
2017
2017
2018
2018
2019
2020

Franchisee-Owned Ruth's Chris Restaurants
Locations

St. Louis, MO
Durham, NC
Kennesaw, GA
Salt Lake City, UT
Grand Rapids, MI
Asheville, NC
Singapore
Niagara Falls, Canada
Las Vegas, NV
San Juan, Puerto Rico
Chattanooga, TN
Shanghai, China
Alpharetta, GA
Boise, ID
Taipei, Taiwan
Ann Arbor, MI
San Antonio, TX
Jakarta, Indonesia
Odenton, MD
Greenville, SC
Chengdu, China
Toronto, Canada
Ft. Wayne, IN
Markham, Canada
Chongqing, China
Chesterfield, MO

Ruth's Chris Restaurants Under Contractual Agreement
Year Opened
Locations

2012
2017
2018
*

The Company owns the building and leases the land pursuant to a long-term ground lease.
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Cherokee, NC
Tulsa, OK
Reno, NV

Item 3.

LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

See Note 11 of the Notes to the consolidated financial statements for a summary of legal proceedings.
Item 4.

MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES

None.
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PART II
Item 5.

MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES
OF EQUITY SECURITIES

The Company’s common stock is listed on the Nasdaq Global Select Market under the trading symbol “RUTH.” As of February 24, 2021, there were 97
holders of record of its common stock.
During fiscal year 2020, we suspended paying quarterly cash dividends to holders of our common stock due to impacts from COVID-19. Amendments to
the Company’s Credit Agreement currently prohibit the payment of dividends and share repurchases until our Consolidated Leverage Ratio (as defined in
the Credit Agreement) is less than 2.50:1:00. Future decisions to pay cash dividends continue to be dependent on compliance with our Credit Agreement
and at the discretion of the Board of Directors and will be dependent on our operating performance, financial condition, capital expenditure requirements
and other factors that the Board of Directors considers relevant.
Common Stock Repurchase Program
On November 1, 2019, the Company announced that its Board of Directors approved a share repurchase program under which the Company is authorized
to repurchase up to $60 million of outstanding common stock from time to time in the open market, through negotiated transactions or otherwise
(including, without limitation, the use of Rule 10b5-1 plans), depending on share price, market conditions and other factors. The new share repurchase
program replaced the Company’s previous share repurchase program announced in November 2017, which has been terminated. We did not purchase any
shares during the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2020. The previous share repurchase program had permitted the repurchase of up to $60 million of
outstanding common stock, of which approximately $11.5 million remained unused upon its termination. The Company conducts any open market share
repurchase activities in compliance with the safe harbor provisions of Rule 10b-18 of the Exchange Act. The share repurchase program does not obligate
the Company to repurchase any dollar amount or number of its shares. The program has no termination date. As of December 27, 2020, $41.6 million
remained available for further purchases under the new program. The Company’s ability to make future stock purchases under the program is currently
limited by our credit agreement. Under our credit agreement, we are limited to $100.0 million restricted junior payments, which include cash dividends,
repurchases of common stock and prepayments of subordinated indebtedness, if our consolidated leverage ratio is greater than or equal to
2.00:1.00. During fiscal year 2020 the Company’s consolidated leverage ratio exceeded 2.00:1.00. As of December 27, 2020, $126.4 million of such
payments have been made. As a result of the impacts of our business arising from the COVID-19 pandemic, share repurchases and dividend payments
have been indefinitely suspended.
Stock repurchase activity during the fourth fiscal quarter ended December 27, 2020 was as follows:

Period

September 28, 2020 to November 1, 2020
November 2, 2020 to November 29, 2020
November 30, 2020 to December 27, 2020
Totals for the fiscal quarter

Total Number of Shares
Purchased

Average Price Paid
per Share

Total Number of Shares Purchased
as Part of a Publicly Announced
Program

—
—
—
—

—
—
—
—

—
—
—
—

Maximum Dollar Value that
May Yet be Purchased under
the Program – Amounts in
thousands

$
$
$
$

41,552
41,552
41,552
41,552

Unregistered Recent Sales of Securities
None.
Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Compensation Plans
See Item 12, Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters, of this Annual Report on Form 10-K for
information regarding securities authorized for issuance under the Company’s equity compensation plans.
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Performance Graph
The following table and graph show the cumulative total stockholder return on the Company’s Common Stock with the S&P 500 Stock Index, the S&P
Small Cap 600 Index and the Dow Jones U.S. Restaurants & Bars Index, in each case assuming an initial investment of $100 on December 27, 2015 and
full dividend reinvestment.

CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN
Assuming an investment of $100 and reinvestment of dividends
12/24/2015

Ruth's Hospitality Group, Inc.
S&P 500
S&P Smallcap 600
Dow Jones US Restaurants & Bars

$
$
$
$

12/23/2016

100
100
100
100

$
$
$
$

116
112
127
106

12/29/2017

$
$
$
$

140
136
143
131

12/28/2018

$
$
$
$

147
130
131
142

12/27/2019

$
$
$
$

145
171
161
176

12/27/2020

$
$
$
$

117
203
179
209

All amounts rounded to the nearest dollar.
**********
The stock performance graph should not be deemed filed or incorporated by reference into any other filing made by us under the Securities Act of 1933, as
amended, or the Exchange Act, except to the extent that we specifically incorporate the stock performance graph by reference in another filing.
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Item 6.

SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following table sets forth the Company’s selected financial data for the year indicated and should be read in conjunction with the disclosures in Item 7,
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations, and Item 8, Financial Statements and Supplementary Data, of
this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Certain amounts have been revised to reclassify certain operating revenues and expenses to income from discontinued
operations.

2020

Income Statement Data:
Revenues:
Restaurant sales
Franchise income
Other operating income
Total revenues
Costs and expenses:
Food and beverage costs
Restaurant operating expenses
Marketing and advertising
General and administrative costs
Depreciation and amortization expenses
Pre-opening costs
Gain on lease modifications
Loss on impairments
Total costs and expenses
Operating income (loss)
Other income (expense):
Interest expense
Other
Income from continuing operations
before income tax expense (benefit)
Income tax expense (benefit)
Income (loss) from continuing operations
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of income taxes
Net income (loss)

$

260,763
11,737
5,248
277,748

2019

$

75,831
150,420
6,859
33,248
21,964
1,633
(206)
16,548
306,297
(28,549)
(4,681)
26
(33,204)
(7,910)
(25,294)
—
(25,294) $
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441,361
17,879
8,786
468,026

Fiscal Year Ended
2018
($ in thousands)

$

127,597
214,715
15,432
34,643
21,354
1,824
—
—
415,565
52,461

427,433
17,919
6,982
452,334

2017

$

120,112
206,258
16,639
37,253
18,538
1,875
—
—
400,675
51,659

2016

390,434
17,545
6,844
414,823

$

116,361
185,444
12,724
32,700
14,995
2,013
—
3,904
368,141
46,682

363,147
17,301
5,499
385,947
107,075
172,999
11,406
31,488
13,434
1,986
—
—
338,388
47,559

(2,197)
115

(1,739)
(73)

(821)
53

(1,154)
10

50,379
8,173
42,206
—
42,206

49,847
8,247
41,600
80
41,680

45,914
15,669
30,245
(108)
30,137 $

46,415
15,660
30,755
(290)
30,465

$

$

2020

Basic earnings (loss) per share:
Continuing operations
Discontinued operations
Basic earnings (loss) per share
Diluted earnings (loss) per share:
Continuing operations
Discontinued operations
Diluted earnings (loss) per share
Shares used in computing earnings (loss) per
common share:
Basic
Diluted
Dividends declared per common share
Balance Sheet Data (at end of fiscal year):
Cash and cash equivalents
Total assets
Total long-term debt including current portion
Total shareholders' equity

$
$

$
$

2019
2018
2017
($ in thousands, except per share data)

(0.80) $
—
(0.80) $

1.46
—
1.46

$

(0.80) $
—
(0.80) $

1.44
—
1.44

$

$

$

1.40
0.01
1.41

$

1.37
0.01
1.38

$

$

$

2016

1.00 $
(0.01)
0.99 $

0.97
(0.01)
0.96

0.98 $
(0.01)
0.97 $

0.96
(0.01)
0.95

31,683,920
31,683,920
$
0.15

28,998,382
29,376,980
$
0.52

29,659,461
30,273,841
$
0.44

30,346,999
30,916,364
$
0.36

31,670,189
32,108,965
$
0.28

$

$

$

$

$

95,402
542,674
115,000
107,444
23

5,567
496,876
64,000
94,145

5,062
254,613
41,000
90,132

4,051
242,096
50,000
79,504

3,788
207,472
25,000
79,009

Item 7.

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

This discussion and analysis should be read in conjunction with our consolidated financial statements and related notes to the consolidated financial
statements. We report our financial results on a 52/53-week fiscal year, which ends on the last Sunday in December. Fiscal years 2020, 2019 and 2018 all
had 52 weeks of operations.
Overview
Ruth’s Hospitality Group, Inc. develops and operates fine dining restaurants under the trade name Ruth’s Chris Steak House. As of December 27, 2020,
there were 149 Ruth’s Chris Steak House restaurants, including 74 Company-owned restaurants, three restaurants operating under contractual agreements
and 72 franchisee-owned restaurants, including 21 international franchisee-owned restaurants.
On July 29, 2019, we completed the acquisition of substantially all the assets of three franchisee-owned Ruth’s Chris Steak House restaurants for a cash
purchase price of $18.6 million. The results of operations, financial position and cash flows of the MBR Franchise Acquisition are included in our
consolidated financial statements as of the date of the acquisition. For additional information, see Note 3 of the consolidated financial statements.
All Company-owned Ruth’s Chris Steak House restaurants are located in the United States. The franchisee-owned Ruth’s Chris Steak House restaurants
include 21 international franchisee-owned restaurants in Aruba, Canada, China, Hong Kong, Indonesia, Japan, Mexico, Singapore and Taiwan. In 2018,
the Company opened two new Ruth’s Chris Steak House restaurants – one in Jersey City, NJ in August and one in Paramus, NJ in November. Franchisees
opened two new restaurants during 2018, in Ft. Wayne, IN and Markham, Ontario, Canada. The franchisee-owned Ruth’s Chris Steak House restaurants in
Ridgeland, MS and Dubai, United Arab Emirates were closed in March 2018 and April 2018, respectively. Due to the scheduled expiration of our lease we
closed one of our Ruth’s Chris Steak House restaurants in Washington D.C. in December 2018. In 2019, the Company opened two new Ruth’s Chris Steak
House restaurants – one in Columbus, OH in October and one in Somerville, MA in November. A franchisee opened a new restaurant in 2019 in
Chongqing, China. In 2020, the Company relocated one of its Ruth’s Chris Steak House restaurants in Washington, D.C. due to the expiration of a lease.
Franchisees did not open any new restaurants in 2020. During fiscal year 2020 nine Company-owned Ruth’s Chris Steak House restaurants were
permanently closed and one franchisee-owned Ruth’s Chris Steak House restaurant was permanently closed.
The Ruth’s Chris menu features a broad selection of high-quality USDA Prime and Choice grade steaks and other premium offerings served in Ruth’s
Chris’ signature fashion—“sizzling” and topped with butter—complemented by other traditional menu items inspired by our New Orleans heritage. The
Ruth’s Chris restaurants reflect the 55-year commitment to the core values instilled by our founder, Ruth Fertel, of caring for our guests by delivering the
highest quality food, beverages and service in a warm and inviting atmosphere.
Our Ruth’s Chris restaurants cater to special occasion diners and frequent customers, in addition to the business clientele traditionally served by upscale
steakhouses, by providing a dining experience designed to appeal to a wide range of guests. We believe our focus on creating this broad appeal provides us
with opportunities to expand into a wide range of markets, including many markets not traditionally served by upscale steakhouses. We offer USDA Prime
and other high-quality steaks that are aged and prepared to exact company standards and cooked in 1,800-degree broilers. We also offer veal, lamb, poultry
and seafood dishes and a broad selection of appetizers. We complement our distinctive food offerings with an award-winning wine list. During the fiscal
year 2020, the average check was $82 per person at Company-owned Ruth’s Chris Restaurants.
Recap of Fiscal Year 2020 and Fiscal Year 2019 Operating Results
Operating income for fiscal year 2020 decreased from fiscal year 2019 by $81.0 million to a loss of $28.5 million. Operating loss for fiscal year 2020 was
impacted unfavorably by a $180.6 million decrease in restaurant sales, a loss on impairment of $16.5 million and decreases in franchise income and other
operating income, which were partially offset by decreased food and beverage costs, restaurant operating expenses, marketing and advertising, and general
and administrative expenses. Lower restaurant sales were attributable to the COVID-19 pandemic effect on Company-owned restaurant sales. After-tax
net income (loss) from continuing operations during fiscal year 2020 decreased from fiscal year 2019 by $67.5 million to a loss of $25.3 million. For
information on the impact of COVID-19 and actions taken by the Company in response to the pandemic, see Note 1 of the consolidated financial
statements.
Operating income for fiscal year 2019 increased from fiscal year 2018 by $802 thousand to $52.5 million. Operating income for fiscal year 2019 was
favorably impacted by a $13.9 million increase in restaurant sales and decreases in marketing and advertising and general and administrative expenses,
which were partially offset by increased food and beverage costs, restaurant operating expenses and depreciation and amortization expenses. Higher
restaurant sales were attributable to an increase in both new Company-owned restaurant sales and comparable Company-owned restaurants. After-tax
income from continuing operations during fiscal year 2019
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increased from fiscal year 2018 by $606 thousand to $42.2 million. Fiscal year 2019 net income increased from fiscal year 2018 by $526 thousand to $42.2
million.
Key Financial Terms and Metrics
We evaluate our business using a variety of key financial measures:
Restaurant Sales. Restaurant sales consist of food and beverage sales by Company-owned restaurants. Restaurant sales are primarily influenced by total
operating weeks in the relevant period and comparable restaurant sales growth. Total operating weeks is the total number of Company-owned restaurants
multiplied by the number of weeks each is in operation during the relevant period. Total operating weeks are impacted by restaurant openings and closings,
as well as changes in the number of weeks included in the relevant period. Comparable restaurant sales growth reflects the change in year-over-year or
quarter-over-quarter, as applicable, sales for the comparable restaurant base. We define the comparable restaurant base to be those Company-owned
restaurants in operation for not less than eighteen months prior to the beginning of the fiscal year including the period being measured. Comparable
restaurant sales growth is primarily influenced by customer traffic, which is measured by the number of entrées sold, and the average guest check.
Customer traffic is influenced by the popularity of our menu items, our guest mix, our ability to deliver a high-quality dining experience and overall
economic conditions. Average guest check, a measure of total restaurant sales divided by the number of entrées, is driven by menu mix and pricing.
Franchise Income. Franchise income includes (1) franchise and development fees charged to franchisees, (2) sales-based royalty income and (3) salesbased advertising fees. Franchise royalties consist of 5.0% of adjusted gross sales from each franchisee-owned restaurant. In addition, our more recent
franchise agreements require an advertising fee of up to 1.0% of gross sales to be paid by the franchisee. Under our prior franchise agreements, the
Company would pay 1.0% out of the 5.0% royalty toward national advertising. We evaluate the performance of our franchisees by measuring franchiseeowned restaurant operating weeks, which is impacted by franchisee-owned restaurant openings and closings, and comparable franchisee-owned restaurant
sales growth, which together with operating weeks, drives royalty income.
Other Operating Income. Other operating income consists primarily of breakage income associated with gift cards, and includes fees earned from
management agreements, banquet-related guarantee and services revenue and other incidental guest fees.
Food and Beverage Costs. Food and beverage costs include all restaurant-level food and beverage costs of Company-owned restaurants. We measure food
and beverage costs by tracking cost of sales as a percentage of restaurant sales and cost per entrée. Food and beverage costs are generally influenced by the
cost of food and beverage items, distribution costs and menu mix.
Restaurant Operating Expenses. We measure restaurant operating expenses for Company-owned restaurants as a percentage of restaurant sales. Restaurant
operating expenses include the following:
•

Labor costs, consisting of restaurant management salaries, hourly staff payroll and other payroll-related items, including taxes and fringe benefits.
We measure our labor cost efficiency by tracking hourly and total labor costs as a percentage of restaurant sales;

•

Operating costs, consisting of maintenance, utilities, bank and credit card charges, and any other restaurant-level expenses; and

•

Occupancy costs, consisting of both fixed and variable portions of rent, common area maintenance charges, insurance premiums and real property
taxes.

Marketing and Advertising. Marketing and advertising includes all media, production and related costs for both local restaurant advertising and national
marketing. We measure the efficiency of our marketing and advertising expenditures by tracking these costs as a percentage of total revenues. We have
historically spent approximately 2.5% to 4.0% of total revenues on marketing and advertising. During fiscal year 2020 marketing and advertising was
significantly reduced in response to the COVID-19 pandemic. It is anticipated that spending in this area will increase throughout fiscal year 2021 as the
economy improves.
General and Administrative. General and administrative costs include costs relating to all corporate and administrative functions that support development
and restaurant operations and provide an infrastructure to support future Company and franchisee growth. General and administrative costs are comprised
of management, supervisory and staff salaries and employee benefits, travel, performance-based compensation, stock compensation, information systems,
training, corporate rent, professional and consulting fees, technology and market research. We measure our general and administrative expense efficiency
by tracking these costs as a percentage of total revenues.
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Depreciation and Amortization. Depreciation and amortization includes depreciation of fixed assets and certain definite life intangible assets. We depreciate
capitalized leasehold improvements over the shorter of the total expected lease term or their estimated useful life.
Pre-Opening Costs. Pre-opening costs consist of costs incurred prior to opening a Company-owned restaurant, which are comprised principally of manager
salaries and relocation costs, employee payroll and related training costs for new employees, including practice and rehearsal of service activities as well as
lease costs incurred prior to opening.
Gain on Lease Modifications. Gain on lease modifications consist of gains and losses related to changes in the scope of a lease or the consideration for a
lease that was not included in the original terms of the lease. Costs incurred related to the exit of a signed lease are also included.
Loss on Impairments. Loss on impairments consist of charges recognized by which the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its fair value (net realizable
value for inventory). Impairment charges were taken on fixed assets, inventory, liquor licenses and operating lease right-of-use assets.
Results of Operations
The table below sets forth certain operating data expressed as a percentage of total revenues, unless otherwise marked as a percentage of restaurant sales,
for the periods indicated. Our historical results are not necessarily indicative of the operating results that may be expected in the future. Certain prior year
amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current year presentation of discontinued operations.
Fiscal Year
2020

Revenues:
Restaurant sales
Franchise income
Other operating income
Total revenues
Costs and expenses:
Food and beverage costs (percentage of restaurant
sales)
Restaurant operating expenses (percentage of
restaurant sales)
Marketing and advertising
General and administrative costs
Depreciation and amortization expenses
Pre-opening costs
Gain on lease modifications
Loss on impairment
Total costs and expenses
Operating income (loss)
Other income (expense):
Interest expense, net
Other
Income (loss) from continuing operations before income tax
expense
Income tax expense (benefit)
Income (loss) from continuing operations
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of income taxes
Net income
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2019

2018

93.9%
4.2%
1.9%
100.0%

94.3%
3.8%
1.9%
100.0%

94.5%
4.0%
1.5%
100.0%

29.1%

28.9%

28.1%

57.7%
2.5%
12.0%
7.9%
0.6%
(0.1%)
6.0%
110.3%
(10.3%)

48.6%
3.3%
7.4%
4.6%
0.4%
—
—
88.8%
11.2%

48.3%
3.7%
8.2%
4.1%
0.4%
—
—
88.6%
11.4%

(1.7%)
0.0%

(0.5%)
0.0%

(0.4%)
(0.0%)

(12.0%)
(2.9%)
(9.1%)
—
(9.1%)

10.7%
1.7%
9.0%
—
9.0%

11.0%
1.8%
9.2%
0.0%
9.2%

Fiscal Year 2020 Compared to Fiscal Year 2019
Restaurant Sales. Restaurant sales decreased $180.6 million, or 40.9%, to $260.8 million during fiscal year 2020 from fiscal year 2019. Comparable
Company-owned restaurant sales decreased 40.2%, which consisted of an average check decrease of 6.4%, and a 36.1% decrease in traffic counts as a
result of the COVID-19 pandemic.
Franchise Income. Franchise income decreased $6.1 million, or 34.4%, to $11.7 million during fiscal year 2020 from fiscal year 2019. The decrease is
primarily attributable to a decrease in sales-based royalty income from a sales decrease as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic.
Other Operating Income. Other operating income decreased $3.5 million, or 40.3%, to $5.2 million during fiscal year 2020 from fiscal year 2019. Other
operating income includes our share of income from managed restaurants, gift card breakage revenue and miscellaneous restaurant income. The change in
other operating income was primarily due to a decrease of $1.6 million in breakage revenue and $555 thousand in income from restaurants operating under
contractual agreements.
Food and Beverage Costs. Food and beverage costs decreased $51.8 million, or 40.6%, to $75.8 million during fiscal year 2020 from fiscal year 2019.
Food and beverage costs, as a percentage of restaurant sales, increased 17 basis points to 29.1% compared to fiscal year 2019 largely due to an increase of
1.6% in total beef costs.
Restaurant Operating Expenses. Restaurant operating expenses decreased $64.3 million, or 29.9%, to $150.4 million during fiscal year 2020 from fiscal
year 2019. Restaurant operating expenses, as a percentage of restaurant sales, increased 9.1% to 57.7% compared to fiscal year 2019 primarily due to the
impact of fixed costs on lower restaurant sales in 2020.
Marketing and Advertising. Marketing and advertising expenses decreased $8.6 million, or 55.6% to $6.9 million during fiscal year 2020 from fiscal year
2019. Marketing and advertising, as a percent of total revenue, decreased 80 basis points to 2.5% compared to fiscal year 2019. The decrease in marketing
and advertising expenses during fiscal year 2020 was attributable to the Company reducing expenses in response to the COVID-19 pandemic.
General and Administrative. General and administrative expenses decreased $1.4 million or 4.0% to $33.2 million during fiscal year 2020 from fiscal year
2019. The decrease in general and administrative costs was attributable to a reduction of $1.5 million in compensation costs and a $1.2 million reduction in
travel related expenses partially offset by an increase in professional fees of $1.3 million.
Depreciation and Amortization Expenses. Depreciation and amortization expense increased $610 thousand to $22.0 million during fiscal year 2020,
primarily due to property additions related to new restaurants and remodel projects placed in service within the last twelve months.
Pre-opening Costs. Pre-opening costs remained relatively unchanged at $1.6 million in fiscal year 2020 compared to $1.8 million in fiscal year 2019 and
primarily relate to pre-opening rent expense on locations that the Company has taken possession of the property from the landlord.
Gain on Lease Modifications. Gain on lease modifications was $206 thousand in fiscal year 2020. The Company did not have any gains on lease
modifications during fiscal year 2019. Gain on lease modifications consist of gains and losses related to changes in the scope of a lease or the
consideration for a lease that was not included in the original terms of the lease. Costs incurred related to the exit of a signed lease are also included. The
gain on lease modifications during fiscal year 2020 was attributable to the changes of lease terms in response to the COVID-19 pandemic.
Loss on Impairment. Loss on impairment was $16.5 million in fiscal year 2020. The Company did not have any loss on impairment expense during fiscal
year 2019. Loss on impairments consist of charges recognized by which the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its fair value (net realizable value for
inventory). Impairment charges were taken on fixed assets, inventory, liquor licenses and lease right-of-use assets triggered by the adverse economic
impact of COVID-19.
Interest Expense. Interest expense increased $2.5 million to $4.7 million during fiscal year 2020 from fiscal year 2019. The increase in expense was
primarily due to higher average debt balances during fiscal year 2020 compared to fiscal year 2019.
Other Income. During fiscal year 2020 we recognized $26 thousand of other income. During fiscal year 2019 we recognized $115 thousand of other
expense.
Income Tax Expense (Benefit). The effective income tax rates for fiscal years 2020 and 2019 for continuing operations were 23.8% and 16.2%, respectively.
The effective tax rate for fiscal year 2020 represents an income tax benefit of $7.9 million, whereas the effective tax rate for fiscal year 2019 represents
income tax expense of $8.2 million. The significant change was driven primarily by
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the Company’s generation of a pre-tax loss from continuing operations in fiscal year 2020, compared with the generation of pre-tax income in fiscal year
2019.
Net Income (Loss). Net loss was $25.3 million during fiscal year 2020 compared to $42.2 million net income during fiscal year 2019 due to the factors
noted above.
Fiscal Year 2019 Compared to Fiscal Year 2018
Restaurant Sales. Restaurant sales increased $13.9 million, or 3.3%, to $441.4 million during fiscal year 2019 from fiscal year 2018. The increase was
attributable to a $10.7 million increase in new restaurants and a $3.2 million increase from comparable Company-owned restaurants. Total operating weeks
during fiscal year 2019 increased to 4,139 from 4,027 during fiscal year 2018. Comparable Company-owned restaurant sales increased 0.9%, which
consisted of an average check increase of 1.7%, and 0.8% decrease in traffic counts. New restaurant sales primarily increased in fiscal year 2019 due to an
increase in 66 operating weeks from the MBR Franchise Acquisition in July 2019 and new restaurants in Jersey City, Paramus and Columbus.
Franchise Income. Franchise income decreased $40 thousand, or 0.2%, to $17.9 million during fiscal year 2019 from fiscal year 2018. The decrease is
primarily attributable to a decrease in sales-based royalty income from the MBR Franchise Acquisition.
Other Operating Income. Other operating income increased $1.8 million, or 25.8%, to $8.8 million during fiscal year 2019 from fiscal year 2018. Other
operating income includes our share of income from managed restaurants, gift card breakage revenue and miscellaneous restaurant income. The increase in
other operating income was primarily due to an increase of $1.1 million in breakage revenue and $716 thousand in income from restaurants operating under
contractual agreements, including a full year of operations of the new location in Reno, NV.
Food and Beverage Costs. Food and beverage costs increased $7.5 million, or 6.2%, to $127.6 million during fiscal year 2019 from fiscal year 2018. Food
and beverage costs, as a percentage of restaurant sales, increased 80 basis points to 28.9% compared to fiscal year 2018 largely due to an increase of 8.4%
in total beef costs.
Restaurant Operating Expenses. Restaurant operating expenses increased $8.5 million, or 4.1%, to $214.7 million during fiscal year 2019 from fiscal year
2018. Restaurant operating expenses, as a percentage of restaurant sales, increased 40 basis points to 48.6% compared to fiscal year 2018 primarily due to
occupancy related increases.
Marketing and Advertising. Marketing and advertising expenses decreased $1.2 million, or 7.3% to $15.4 million during fiscal year 2019 from fiscal year
2018. Marketing and advertising, as a percent of total revenue, decreased 40 basis points to 3.3% compared to fiscal year 2018. The decrease in marketing
and advertising expenses during fiscal year 2019 was attributable to a planned decrease in marketing research investments.
General and Administrative. General and administrative expenses decreased $2.6 million or 7.0% to $34.6 million during fiscal year 2019 from fiscal year
2018. The decrease in general and administrative costs was attributable to a reduction of $1.5 million in compensation costs and a $989 thousand reduction
in franchisee acquisition and integration costs.
Depreciation and Amortization Expenses. Depreciation and amortization expense increased $2.8 million to $21.4 million during fiscal year 2019, primarily
due to property additions related to new restaurants and remodel projects placed in service within the last twelve months including $581 thousand of
depreciation and amortization related to the MBR Franchise Acquisition.
Pre-opening Costs. Pre-opening costs remained relatively unchanged at $1.8 million in fiscal year 2019 compared to $1.9 million in fiscal year 2018.
Interest Expense. Interest expense increased $458 thousand to $2.2 million during fiscal year 2019 from fiscal year 2018. The increase in expense was
primarily due to higher average debt balances during fiscal year 2019 compared to fiscal year 2018.
Other Income. During fiscal year 2019 we recognized $115 thousand of other income. During fiscal year 2018 we recognized $73 thousand of other
expense.
Income Tax Expense. During fiscal year 2019 we recognized $8.2 million in income tax expense. The effective tax rate, including the impact of discrete
items, decreased to 16.2% during fiscal year 2019 compared to 16.5% during fiscal year 2018. The effective tax rate decreased during fiscal year 2019
primarily due to an increased impact from the FICA tip credit and a reduction in disallowed executive compensation which was partially offset by a higher
state income tax rate.
Income from Continuing Operations. Income from continuing operations of $42.2 million during fiscal year 2019 increased by $606 thousand compared to
fiscal year 2018 due to the factors noted above.
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Income (Loss) from Discontinued Operations, net of income taxes. There was no income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of income taxes during
fiscal year 2019 compared to income of $80 thousand during fiscal year 2018. Discontinued operations includes the recurring revenues and expenses of
closed restaurants and related income taxes.
Net Income. Net income was $42.2 million during fiscal year 2019 compared to $41.7 million net income during fiscal year 2018 due to the factors noted
above.
Segment Profitability
Segment profitability information for the Company’s two operating segments is presented in Note 17 of the consolidated financial statements.
Potential Fluctuations in Quarterly Results and Seasonality
Our quarterly operating results may fluctuate significantly as a result of a variety of factors. See “Risk Factors” and “Quantitative and Qualitative
Disclosures About Market Risk” for a discussion of certain material risks that could affect our quarterly operating results.
Our business is also subject to seasonal fluctuations. Historically, the percentages of our annual total revenues during the first and fourth fiscal quarters
have generally been higher due, in part, to the year-end holiday season and the popularity of dining out in the fall and winter months. Accordingly, results
for any one quarter are not necessarily indicative of results to be expected for any other quarter or for any year, and comparable restaurant sales for any
particular period may decrease.
Liquidity and Capital Resources
Overview
Our principal sources of cash during fiscal year 2020 were net cash provided by operating activities, borrowings under our senior credit facility and the
issuance of capital stock. Our principal uses of cash during fiscal year 2020 were for principal repayments under our senior credit facility, common stock
repurchases, capital expenditures, and dividend payments. Cash flows from discontinued operations are combined with the cash flows from continuing
operations within each of the categories on our statement of cash flows.
In October 2019, our Board of Directors approved a new share repurchase program authorizing the Company to repurchase up to $60 million of
outstanding common stock from time to time. The new share repurchase program replaced the previous share repurchase program announced in October
2017, which has been terminated. During fiscal year 2020, prior to the World Health Organizations’ declaration of the COVID-19 pandemic, we
repurchased 902,000 shares at an aggregate cost of $13.2 million or an average cost of $14.66 per share, under a Rule 10-b5-1 plan. All repurchased shares
were retired and cancelled. As of December 27, 2020, $41.6 million remained available for future purchases under the share repurchase program.
During the second quarter of fiscal year 2013, we commenced paying quarterly cash dividends to holders of common and restricted stock. In the first
quarter of fiscal year 2020, we paid a cash dividend of $0.15 per share, or $4.4 million in the aggregate. We paid a quarterly cash dividend of $0.13 per
share, or $3.8 million to $4.0 million in the aggregate, during each of the quarters of fiscal year 2019. As a result of the impacts to our business arising
from the COVID-19 pandemic, the Company has suspended its share repurchase program and dividend payments. Amendments to the Company’s
revolving credit facility currently prohibit the payment of dividends and share repurchases until our Consolidated Leverage Ratio (as defined in the
revolving credit facility) is less than 2.50:1.00.
We believe that our current cash position, $95.4 million as of December 27, 2020, coupled with our anticipated cash flow from operations should provide
us with adequate liquidity in fiscal year 2021.
Senior Credit Facility
As of December 27, 2020, prior to the Sixth Amendment (as defined and described below), we had $115.0 million of outstanding indebtedness under our
senior credit facility and approximately $4.8 million of outstanding letters of credit. As of December 27, 2020, the weighted average interest rate on our
outstanding debt was 3.8% and the weighted average interest rate on our outstanding letters of credit was 2.9%. In addition, the commitment fee on the
daily unused average portion of our senior credit facility was 0.4%.
On February 2, 2017, the Company’s senior credit facility is available pursuant to a credit agreement entered into with Wells Fargo Bank, National
Association as administrative agent, and certain other lenders (as amended as of the end of fiscal year 2020, the “Credit Agreement”). The Credit
Agreement provides for a revolving credit facility of $120.0 million with a $5.0 million subfacility of letters of credit and a $5.0 million subfacility for
swingline loans. The Credit Agreement, as amended in January 2021, has a maturity date of February 2, 2023.
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At the Company’s option, revolving loans may bear interest at (i) LIBOR, plus an applicable margin or (ii) the highest of (a) the rate publicly announced by
Wells Fargo as its prime rate, (b) the average published federal funds rate in effect on such day plus 0.50% and (c) one month LIBOR plus 1.00%, plus an
applicable margin (the rate described in this clause (ii) prior to adding the applicable margin, the “Base Rate”). The applicable margin is based on the
Company’s actual leverage ratio as defined in the Credit Agreement (“Consolidated Leverage Ratio”), ranging (a) from 1.50% to 2.50% above the
applicable LIBOR rate or (b) at the Company’s option, from 0.50% to 1.50% above the applicable Base Rate. From May 7, 2020, the date of the Third
Amendment to the Credit Agreement (the “Third Amendment”), until the Calculation Date for the fiscal quarter ending March 28, 2021, interest rates on
loans under the Credit Agreement are 2.75% and 1.75% above the LIBOR Rate and Base Rate, respectively, and the fee for the daily unused availability
under the revolving credit facility is 0.40%. Thereafter, interest rate margins and the fee for the unused commitment will be calculated based on the
Consolidated Leverage Ratio in accordance with the Credit Agreement. The term “Calculation Date” means the date five (5) business days after the day on
which the Company provides a compliance certificate required for its most recently ended fiscal quarter.
The Credit Agreement contains customary representations and affirmative and negative covenants (including limitations on indebtedness and liens) as well
as financial covenants, as described below, requiring a minimum fixed coverage charge ratio as defined in the Credit Agreement (“Fixed Charge Coverage
Ratio”) limiting the Company’s Consolidated Leverage Ratio and requiring the Company to hold a certain specified amount of cash. The Credit
Agreement also contains events of default customary for credit facilities of this type (with customary grace periods, as applicable), including nonpayment
of principal or interest when due; material incorrectness of representations and warranties when made; breach of covenants; bankruptcy and insolvency;
unsatisfied ERISA obligations; unstayed material judgment beyond specified periods; default under other material indebtedness; and certain changes of
control of the Company. If any event of default occurs and is not cured within the applicable grace period or waived, the outstanding loans may be
accelerated by lenders holding a majority of the commitments and the lenders’ commitments may be terminated. The obligations under the Credit
Agreement are guaranteed by certain of the Company’s subsidiaries and are secured by a lien on substantially all of the Company’s personal property assets
other than any equity interest in current and future subsidiaries of the Company.
Among the covenant obligations with which the Company must comply, the Credit Agreement requires the Company to comply with the following:
•

Minimum aggregate cash holding requirements through March 2021 in an amount equal to the following amount for each month set forth below:
October 2020
November 2020
December 2020
January 2021
February 2021
March 2021

$44,000,000
$44,000,000
$53,000,000
$55,000,000
$56,000,000
$58,000,000

•

Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio of at least 1.25 to 1.00. The Third Amendment waived the requirement to maintain any Fixed Charge Coverage
Ratio for the remainder of fiscal year 2020 but, commencing with the fiscal quarter ending March 28, 2021, requires that the Company maintain a
Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio of not less than 1.25 to 1.00 on an annualized basis, which will exclude the impact of fiscal year 2020. Under the
Third Amendment, the Company is limited in its ability to complete acquisitions until it can demonstrate compliance with the minimum Fixed
Charge Coverage Ratio following the end of the fiscal quarter ending March 28, 2021.

•

Consolidated Leverage Ratio of not more than 2.75 to 1.00. The Third Amendment waived any Consolidated Leverage Ratio requirement for the
remainder of fiscal year 2020 but, commencing with the fiscal quarter ending March 28, 2021, requires a Consolidated Leverage Ratio based on
annualized calculations, which will exclude the impact of fiscal year 2020, not to exceed the following thresholds for the periods indicated:
Period
The last day of the first Fiscal Quarter of the 2021 Fiscal Year
The last day of the second Fiscal Quarter of the 2021 Fiscal
Year
The last day of the third Fiscal Quarter of the 2021 Fiscal Year

Maximum Ratio
5.00 to 1.00
4.50 to 1.00
4.00 to 1.00
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The last day of the fourth Fiscal Quarter of the 2021 Fiscal
Year and thereafter

3.00 to 1.00

Under the Credit Agreement, the Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio and Consolidated Leverage Ratio requirements remain in effect through maturity of the
loan on February 2, 2023 but the minimum cash holding requirement ends March 2021.
The Credit Agreement allows for non-maintenance capital expenditures when the Consolidated Leverage Ratio is 2.50 to 1.00 or greater in an amount not
to exceed 75% of the amount by which Consolidated EBITDA earned during the immediately preceding fiscal quarter exceeds $7.5 million (“Excess
EBITDA”). The Company and its subsidiaries may make non-maintenance capital expenditures with Excess EBITDA at any time after such Excess
EBITDA is earned until the Consolidated Leverage Ratio has been reduced to less than 2.50 to 1.00. The Credit Agreement provides that the Company and
its subsidiaries may make capital expenditures in any fiscal year in an amount equal to 75% of consolidated EBITDA for the immediately preceding fiscal
year when the Consolidated Leverage Ratio is equal to or greater than 1.50 to 1.00 but less than 2.50 to 1.00. When the Consolidated Leverage Ratio is
less than 1.50 to 1.00, the Company and its subsidiaries may make capital expenditures in an unlimited amount.
The Company currently is prohibited from paying any dividends or repurchasing any shares of its common stock if the Company cannot demonstrate that
its Consolidated Leverage Ratio is less than 2.50 to 1.00 (both before and after giving effect to the proposed repurchase or dividend), as determined
commencing with the second fiscal quarter of 2020.
During the second quarter of fiscal year 2020 the Company received and repaid $20.0 million in loans under the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic
Security Act (CARES Act).
Subsequent Amendment of the Credit Agreement
Subsequent to the end of fiscal year 2020, the Company entered into a Sixth Amendment to Credit Agreement (“Sixth Amendment” and the Credit
Amendment as amended by the Sixth Amendment, the “Amended Credit Agreement”) which makes certain amendments to the Credit Agreement. The
Sixth Amendment provides for a $10.0 million commitment reduction from the $120.0 million available under the Credit Agreement so that the Amended
Credit Agreement will provide for a $110.0 revolving credit facility. The commitment reduction will be effective as of March 29, 2021, the first day of the
Company’s second fiscal quarter for 2021, and if on such date, extensions of credit under the Amended Credit Agreement exceed $110 million, the
Company will immediately repay the amount of such excess. Like the Credit Agreement, the Amended Credit Agreement has a $5.0 million subfacility of
letters of credit and a $5.0 million subfacility for swingline loans.
From January 28, 2021 until the Calculation Date for the fiscal quarter ending December 26, 2021, interest rates on loans under the Amended Credit
Agreement are 3.00% and 2.00% above the LIBOR Rate and Base Rate, respectively, and the fee for the daily unused availability under the revolving credit
facility is 0.40%. Thereafter, interest rate margins and the fee for the unused commitment will be calculated based on the Consolidated Leverage Ratio
(calculated on an actual rather than annualized basis).
Under the Credit Agreement, the Company had to have a Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio of at least 1.25 to 1.00 as of the Company’s fiscal quarter ending on
March 28, 2021. The Sixth Amendment waives such requirement but provides that commencing with the fiscal quarter ending June 27, 2021, the
Company must maintain a Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio of not less than 1.25 to 1.00. For purposes of required compliance with the 1.25 to 1.00 ratio,
Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio will be calculated on an annualized basis, which will exclude the impact of fiscal year 2020 and first fiscal quarter of 2021,
through the end of fiscal year 2021, and on an actual basis thereafter.
The Credit Agreement required the Company to have a Consolidated Leverage Ratio of not more than 5.00 to 1.00 as of the last day of the first fiscal
quarter of 2021. The Sixth Amendment waives such requirement but provides that commencing with the fiscal quarter ending June 27, 2021, the Company
must maintain a Consolidated Leverage Ratio not to exceed the following thresholds for the periods indicated:

Period
The last day of the second Fiscal Quarter of the 2021 Fiscal
Year
The last day of the third Fiscal Quarter of the 2021 Fiscal Year
The last day of the fourth Fiscal Quarter of the 2021 Fiscal
Year

Maximum Ratio
5.00 to 1.00
4.50 to 1.00
4.00 to 1.00
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The last day of the first Fiscal Quarter of the 2022
Fiscal Year and thereafter

3.00 to 1.00

For purposes of calculating required compliance with the maximum ratio, Consolidated Leverage Ratio will be calculated on an annualized basis, which
will exclude the impact of fiscal year 2020 and first fiscal quarter of 2021, through the end of fiscal year 2021, and on an actual basis thereafter.
The Sixth Amendment requires the Company and its subsidiaries to meet minimum aggregate cash holding requirements through June 2021 in an amount
equal to the following amount for each month set forth below:
January 2021
February 2021
March 2021
April 2021
May 2021
June 2021

$50,000,000
$50,000,000
$50,000,000
$40,000,000
$40,000,000
$40,000,000

Pursuant to the Amended Credit Agreement, the Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio and Consolidated Leverage Ratio requirements remain in effect through
maturity of the loan on February 2, 2023 but the minimum cash holding requirement ends in June 2021.
The Sixth Amendment limits non-maintenance capital expenditures by the Company and its subsidiaries to no more than $5.0 million during fiscal year
2021. The Company and its subsidiaries may fund such non-maintenance capital expenditures during fiscal year 2021 with (i) 75% of consolidated
EBITDA earned during a fiscal quarter in excess of $7.5 million (“Capital Expenditure Basket Amount”) and/or (ii) net cash proceeds from the saleleaseback of a real property located in Florida. If the Company and its subsidiaries do not use the entire Capital Expenditure Basket Amount in any fiscal
quarter, such unutilized amount may be carried forward to increase the aggregate amount of consolidated capital expenditures permitted to be made until
the Company can demonstrate that the Consolidated Leverage Ratio is less than 2.50 to 1.00 for the period of four fiscal quarters most recently ended.
Beginning in fiscal year 2022, the Amended Credit Agreement provides that the Company and its subsidiaries may make capital expenditures in any fiscal
year in an amount equal to 75% of consolidated EBITDA for the immediately preceding fiscal year when the Consolidated Leverage Ratio is equal to or
greater than 1.50 to 1.00 but less than 2.50 to 1.00. When the Consolidated Leverage Ratio is less than 1.50 to 1.00, the Company and its subsidiaries may
make capital expenditures in an unlimited amount.
For purposes of determining to what extent capital expenditures may be made, the Consolidated Leverage Ratio will be calculated on an actual rather than
on an annualized basis.
Capital Expenditures and Acquisition of Restaurants
Capital expenditures in fiscal year 2020, which aggregated $10.6 million, pertained primarily to $6.7 million for new restaurants and $3.3 million for
restaurant remodel and capital replacement projects. Capital expenditures in fiscal year 2019, which aggregated $50.3 million, pertained primarily to $14.4
million for restaurant remodel and capital replacement projects; $11.0 million for new restaurants and $18.6 million related to the acquisition of the MBR
Franchise Acquisition from the owner franchisee. Capital expenditures in fiscal year 2018, which aggregated $31.9 million, pertained primarily to $13.1
million for new restaurants and $14.7 million for restaurant remodel projects. We anticipate capital expenditures in fiscal year 2021 will be approximately
$8.0 to $10.0 million. We relocated one location in Washington, D.C. to a new leased location in January 2020 and currently expect to open one to two
more Company-owned restaurants at leased locations in fiscal year 2021.
Cash Flows
The following table summarizes our primary sources and uses of cash (in thousands):

2020

Net cash provided by (used in):
Operating activities
Investing activities
Financing activities
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

$

$
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20,085 $
(10,620)
80,370
89,835 $

Fiscal Year
2019

72,910 $
(50,281)
(22,124)
505 $

2018

78,294
(31,907)
(45,376)
1,011

Operating Activities. Operating cash inflows pertain primarily to restaurant sales and franchise income. Operating cash outflows pertain primarily to
expenditures for food and beverages, restaurant operating expenses, marketing and advertising and general and administrative costs. Operating activities
provided cash flow all three fiscal years primarily because operating revenues have exceeded cash-based expenses.
Investing Activities. Fiscal year 2020 investing activities were primarily related to capital expenditure projects. Fiscal year 2019 pertained primarily to both
the acquisition of franchisee owned restaurants and capital expenditure projects. Fiscal year 2018 investing activities were primarily related to capital
expenditure projects.
Financing Activities. Financing activities provided cash in fiscal year 2020 and used cash in fiscal years 2019 and 2018. During fiscal year 2020
we: issued common stock for $49.6 million; increased the debt outstanding under our senior credit facility by $51.0 million; repurchased common stock of
$13.2 million; paid dividends of $4.4 million; paid $1.6 million in employee taxes in connection with the vesting of restricted stock; and paid $962
thousand in deferred financing costs. During fiscal year 2019 we: repurchased common stock of $25.8 million; increased the debt outstanding under our
senior credit facility by $23.0 million; paid dividends of $15.6 million; and paid $3.7 million in employee taxes in connection with the vesting of restricted
stock and the exercise of stock options. We paid $3.7 million in taxes in connection with the vesting of restricted stock and the exercise of stock options
because some recipients elected to satisfy their individual tax withholding obligations by having us withhold a number of vested shares of restricted stock
and/or a number of shares otherwise issuable pursuant to stock options. During fiscal year 2018 we: repurchased common stock of $18.5 million; paid
dividends of $13.5 million; decreased the debt outstanding under our senior credit facility by $9.0 million; and paid $4.3 million in employee taxes in
connection with the vesting of restricted stock and the exercise of stock options.
Contractual Obligations
The following table summarizes our contractual obligations as of December 27, 2020:
Less than
1 year

Total

Long-term debt obligations
Operating lease obligations
Total

$
$

124.2
323.8
448.0

$
$

4.5
33.2
37.7

Payments due by period
1-3
years
(in millions)

$
$

119.7
51.4
171.1

3-5
years

$
$

More than
5 years

—
47.3
47.3

$
$

—
191.9
191.9

Long-term debt obligations include principal maturities and expected interest payments. Expected interest payments were estimated using the interest and
fee rates under our senior credit facility as of December 27, 2020. Operating lease obligations do not include contingent rent, common area maintenance,
property taxes and other pass through charges from our landlords. The above table does not include recorded liabilities to vendors or employees nor does it
include routine purchase commitments shorter than twelve months in duration for food and supplies.
Pursuant to the terms of the purchase agreement, upon closing of the sale of the Mitchell’s Restaurants in January 2015, Landry’s assumed the lease
obligations of the Mitchell’s Restaurants. However, the Company has guaranteed Landry’s lease obligations aggregating $22.7 million under five of the
leases. Separate from the purchase agreement Landry’s has agreed to indemnify the Company in the event of a default under any of the leases. The above
table does not include potential lease obligations for the Mitchell’s Restaurants.
Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
As of December 27, 2020, we do not have any off-balance sheet arrangements.
Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates
Our discussion and analysis of results of operations and financial condition is based upon our audited consolidated financial statements, which have been
prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. The preparation of these consolidated financial statements is based, in part, on
our critical accounting policies that require us to make estimates and judgments that affect the amounts reported in those consolidated financial statements.
Our significant accounting policies, which may be affected by our estimates and assumptions, are more fully described in Note 2 of the consolidated
financial statements. Critical accounting policies are those that we believe are most important to portraying our financial condition and results of operations
and also require the greatest amount of subjective or complex judgments by management. Judgments or uncertainties regarding the application of these
policies may result in materially different amounts being reported under different conditions or using different assumptions. We
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consider the following policies to be the most critical in understanding the judgments that are involved in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Deferred Gift Card Revenue and Gift Card Breakage Revenue
Revenue from restaurant sales is recognized when food and beverage products are sold. Deferred revenue primarily represents the Company’s liability for
gift cards that have been sold but not yet redeemed and is recorded at the expected redemption value. When the gift cards are redeemed, the Company
recognizes restaurant sales and reduces the deferred revenue liability. Company issued gift cards redeemed at franchisee-owned restaurants reduce the
deferred revenue liability but do not impact our restaurant sales. Gift card transactions involving franchisees are settled on a monthly basis through the
Company’s third-party gift card provider. The expected redemption value of gift cards represents the full value of all gift cards issued less the amount the
Company has recognized as other operating income for gift cards that are not expected to be redeemed.
The portion of gift cards sold to customers which are never redeemed is commonly referred to as gift card breakage. Gift card breakage produces a revenue
stream which is a key element of the profitability of the Company’s gift card program and is classified as a component of other operating revenue.
The Company’s accounting method for recognizing breakage revenue is the redemption method. Under the redemption method, breakage revenue is
recognized and the gift card liability is derecognized for unredeemed gift cards in proportion to actual gift card redemptions based on historical breakage
rates, including breakage rates during previous economic recessions. The Company continues to review historical gift card redemption information and
considers any changes in redemption patterns as a result of the current economic environment, to assess the reasonableness of projected gift card breakage
rates and patterns of redemption. Future gift card usage may be different than our historical experience and as result our estimate of cards not expected to
be redeemed is subject to inherent uncertainty. If actual redemption activity differs significantly from our historical experience our deferred revenue
liability and results of operations could be materially impacted.
Impairment of Long-Lived Assets
We review property and equipment (which includes leasehold improvements), purchased intangibles subject to amortization, and operating lease right-ofuse (ROU) assets for impairment when events or circumstances indicate these assets might be impaired. We test impairment using historical cash flows and
other relevant facts and circumstances as the primary basis for our estimates of future cash flows. The analysis is performed at the restaurant level for
indicators of permanent impairment. In determining future cash flows, we make significant estimates with respect to future operating results of each
restaurant over the expected remaining life of the primary asset in the restaurant. If assets are determined to be impaired, the loss on impairment is
measured by calculating the amount by which the asset-carrying amount exceeds its fair value. This process requires the use of estimates and assumptions,
which are subject to a high degree of judgment. If these assumptions change in the future, we may be required to record additional losses on impairment on
these assets. During fiscal year 2020, the Company recognized $16.5 million in impairment loss due to the decline in the estimated fair value of the longlived assets, including property, plant and equipment, inventory, liquor licenses, and lease right-of-use assets at thirteen locations. As a result of COVID19, the Company closed nine locations and estimated significant declines in restaurant profitability in several locations which resulted in a decrease in
estimated fair value attributable to these restaurants.
The judgments we make related to the expected useful lives of long-lived assets and our ability to realize undiscounted cash flows in excess of the carrying
amounts of these assets are affected by factors such as the ongoing maintenance and improvements of the assets, changes in economic conditions, changes
in usage or operating performance and desirability of the restaurant sites. As we assess the ongoing expected cash flows and carrying amounts of our longlived assets, significant adverse changes in these factors could cause us to recognize a material loss on impairment.
Generally, costs for exit or disposal activities, including restaurant closures, are expensed as incurred. The costs include the cost of disposing of the assets
as well as other facility-related expenses from previously closed restaurants. For restaurants operated under operating leases, on the date we commit to a
plan to either abandon the related ROU asset or sublease the underlying asset, we evaluate the ROU asset for potential impairment and determine the goforward accounting based on requirements in Topic 842.
Valuation and Recoverability of Goodwill and Franchise Rights
Goodwill and franchise rights arise primarily from our acquisition of franchisee-owned Ruth’s Chris restaurants. We recognized $7.1 million of franchise
rights and $9.0 million of goodwill related to the MBR Franchise Acquisition completed on July 29, 2019. During fiscal year 2020 a territory rights
impairment charge of $3.1 million was taken at two locations.
Prior to the MBR Franchise Acquisition, the most significant acquisitions were completed in 1996, 1999, 2006, 2007 and 2017. Goodwill is not subject to
amortization and franchise rights acquired prior to 2008 are also not subject to amortization. Such assets
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must be tested for impairment annually and whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. The
annual testing date for determining whether goodwill and other intangible assets are impaired is the last day of the Company’s 48th fiscal week, which in
fiscal year 2020 was November 29, 2020. A variety of inherently uncertain estimates, judgments and projections are used in both assessing whether there
has been an indicator that an impairment of an intangible asset may have occurred. We performed our annual impairment test of our goodwill and franchise
rights using a qualitative assessment. In using the qualitative approach, we evaluated factors, including but not limited to, recent financial performance;
forecasts for future cash flows; our stock price and market capitalization; recent impairment tests; legal factors; the business climate; and the competitive
environment. Adverse changes in these factors, as occurred during fiscal year 2020 as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic, had a significant impact on the
recoverability of these assets resulting in an impairment loss of $3.1 million against acquired territory rights. If we determine that it is more likely than not
that an intangible asset may be impaired, we are required to estimate its fair value. Because similar intangible assets are not bought and sold regularly in
public markets, estimates of fair value of our intangible assets are inherently uncertain.
We evaluate the useful lives of our intangible assets to determine if they are definite or indefinite-lived. Reaching a determination on useful life requires
significant judgments and assumptions regarding the future effects of obsolescence, demand, competition, other economic factors (such as the stability of
the industry, legislative action that results in an uncertain or changing regulatory environment, and expected changes in distribution channels), the level of
required capital expenditures, and the expected lives of other related groups of assets.
Insurance Liability
We maintain various insurance policies for workers’ compensation, health and welfare, general liability, professional liability and property damage.
Pursuant to those policies, we are responsible for losses up to certain limits and are required to estimate a liability that represents our ultimate exposure for
aggregate losses below those limits. The recorded liabilities are based on management’s estimates of the ultimate costs to be incurred to settle known
claims and claims not reported as of the balance sheet date. We use independent actuaries to develop the estimated workers’ compensation, general and
health and welfare liabilities. Our estimated liability is not discounted and is based on a number of assumptions and factors, including historical trends,
actuarial assumptions and economic conditions. If actual trends differ from our estimates, our financial results could be impacted.
Income Taxes
We account for income taxes in accordance with FASB Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) Topic 740, Income Taxes (Topic 740). Topic 740
establishes financial accounting and reporting standards for the effects of income taxes that result from an enterprise’s activities during the current and
preceding years. It requires an asset and liability approach for financial accounting and reporting of income taxes. We recognize deferred tax liabilities and
assets for the future consequences of events that have been recognized in our consolidated financial statements or tax returns. In the event the future
consequences of differences between financial reporting bases and tax bases of our assets and liabilities resulted in a net deferred tax asset, an evaluation is
made of the probability of our ability to realize the future benefits indicated by such asset. A valuation allowance related to a deferred tax asset is recorded
when it is more likely than not that some portion or the entire deferred tax asset will not be realized. The realization of such net deferred tax will generally
depend on whether we will have sufficient taxable income of an appropriate character within the carry-forward period permitted by the tax law. Without
sufficient taxable income to utilize the deductible amounts and carry forwards, the related tax benefits will expire unused. We have evaluated both positive
and negative evidence in making a determination as to whether it is more likely than not that all or some portion of the deferred tax asset will not be
realized. Measurement of deferred items is based on enacted tax laws.
Recent Accounting Pronouncements
In February 2016, the FASB issued ASC Topic 842, Leases (Topic 842), which requires a lessee to recognize a liability for future lease obligations and a
corresponding right-of-use (ROU) asset and replaces most existing lease guidance in GAAP. The Company adopted this new lease recognition standard on
December 31, 2018. See Note 4 for further information about our transition to this new lease recognition standard.
In June 2016 the FASB issued ASU 2016-13, Financial Instruments – Credit Losses. This update requires immediate recognition of management’s
estimates of current expected credit losses. This update was effective for the Company in the first quarter of fiscal year 2020. The adoption of ASU 201613 did not have a significant impact on the Company’s ongoing financial reporting.
In January 2017 the FASB issued ASU 2017-04, Intangibles – Goodwill and Other: Simplifying the Impairment Test for Goodwill. This update eliminated
the calculation of implied goodwill fair value. This update was effective for the Company in the first quarter of fiscal year 2020. The adoption of ASU
2017-04 did not have a significant impact on the Company’s ongoing financial reporting.
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In August 2018 the FASB issued ASU 2018-13, Fair Value Measurement – Disclosure Framework – Changes to the Disclosure Requirements for Fair
Value Measurement. This update eliminated the calculation of implied goodwill fair value. This update was effective for the Company in the first quarter
of fiscal year 2020. The adoption of ASU 2018-13 did not have a significant impact on the Company’s ongoing financial reporting.
In August 2018 the FASB issued ASU 2018-15, Intangibles – Goodwill and Other – Internal-Use Software (Subtopic 350-40). This update aligns the
requirements for capitalizing implementation costs incurred in a cloud computing arrangement that is a service contract with the requirements for
capitalizing implementation costs incurred to develop or obtain internal-use software. This update was effective for the Company in the first quarter of
fiscal year 2020. The adoption of ASU 2018-15 did not have a significant impact on the Company’s ongoing financial reporting.
In August 2018 the FASB issued ASU 2018-19, Codification Improvements to Topic 326, Financial Instruments – Credit Losses. This update clarifies that
receivables arising from operating leases are not within the scope of Subtopic 326-20. Instead, impairment of receivables arising from operating leases
should be accounted for in accordance with Topic 842. This update was effective for the Company in the first quarter of fiscal year 2020. The adoption of
ASU 2018-19 did not have a significant impact on the Company’s ongoing financial reporting.
Recent Accounting Pronouncements for Future Application
In December 2019 the FASB issued ASU 2019-12, Income Taxes (Topic 740): Simplifying the Accounting for Income Taxes. This update is effective for
the Company in the first quarter of fiscal year 2021. This update simplifies the accounting for interim period tax law changes and loss limitations,
ownership changes in equity investments, intraperiod tax allocations and the stepup of tax basis in goodwill that is not acquired during a business
combination. The adoption of ASU 2019-12 is not expected to have a significant impact on the Company’s ongoing financial reporting.
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Item 7A.

QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

Interest Rate Risk
The Company is exposed to market risk from fluctuations in interest rates. For fixed rate debt, interest rate changes affect the fair market value of such debt
but do not impact earnings or cash flows. Conversely for variable rate debt, including borrowings under the Company’s credit facility, interest rate changes
generally do not affect the fair market value of such debt, but do impact future earnings and cash flows, assuming other factors are held constant. At
December 27, 2020, the Company had $115.0 million in variable rate debt outstanding. The Company currently does not use financial instruments to hedge
its risk to market fluctuations in interest rates. Holding other variables constant (such as debt levels), a hypothetical 100 basis point change in interest rates
as of December 27, 2020 would be expected to have an impact on pre-tax earnings and cash flows for fiscal year 2021 of approximately $1.2 million.
Effects of Healthcare Inflation
The Company is exposed to market price fluctuations related to the cost of providing healthcare to its employees. Claim trends are predicted to outpace
inflation throughout the upcoming year. Pharmacy costs are also rising in excess of general and medical cost inflation. If prices increase, or the Company
experiences significantly more claims, operating margins could be materially adversely affected. Holding other variables constant, a hypothetical 10%
fluctuation in healthcare costs would have an approximate impact on pre-tax earnings of approximately $1.1 million for the 2021 fiscal year.
Foreign Currency Risk
The Company believes that fluctuations in foreign exchange rates do not present a material risk to its operations. Franchise fee revenue from international
locations aggregated $1.9 million in fiscal year 2020, $2.9 million in fiscal year 2019 and $2.7 million in fiscal year 2018.
Commodity Price Risk
The Company is exposed to market price fluctuations in beef and other food product prices. Given the historical volatility of beef and other food product
prices, this exposure can impact the Company’s food and beverage costs. As the Company typically sets its menu prices in advance of its beef and other
food product purchases, the Company cannot quickly react to changing costs of beef and other food items. To the extent that the Company is unable to pass
the increased costs on to its guests through price increases, the Company’s results of operations would be adversely affected. As of December 27, 2020, we
have negotiated set pricing on approximately 65% of our beef supply through March 2021 at an expected savings of approximately 15% in the first fiscal
quarter of 2021 compared to current market prices. The market for USDA Prime grade beef is particularly volatile. If prices increase, or the supply of beef
is reduced, operating margins could be materially adversely affected. Holding other variables constant, a hypothetical 10% fluctuation in beef prices would
have an approximate impact on pre-tax earnings ranging from $3 million to $4 million for fiscal year 2021.
From time to time, the Company enters into purchase price agreements for other lower-volume food products, including poultry and seafood. In the past,
certain types of poultry and seafood have experienced fluctuations in availability. Poultry and seafood are also subject to fluctuations in price based on
availability, which is often seasonal. If certain types of poultry and seafood are unavailable, or if the Company’s costs increase, the Company’s results of
operations could be adversely affected.
Effects of Inflation
Components of the Company’s operations subject to inflation include food, beverage, lease and labor costs. The Company’s leases require it to pay taxes,
maintenance, repairs, insurance and utilities, all of which are subject to inflationary increases. The Company believes that general inflation, excluding
increases in food, labor and employee health plan costs, has not had a material impact on its results of operations in recent years. Recently, governmental
entities acted to increase minimum wage rates in several jurisdictions where Company-owned restaurants are located, which will increase our operating
costs. The increased minimum wage rates are expected to increase employee compensation and related taxes by approximately $1 million to $2 million in
fiscal year 2021 compared to fiscal year 2020. Also, the U.S. government may act to increase the federal minimum wage rate and/or decrease or eliminate
the tip credit which could further increase employee compensation and related taxes in 2021 if adopted.
Item 8.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

The Company’s consolidated financial statements, together with the related notes and report of independent registered public accounting firm, are set forth
in the pages indicated in Item 15, Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules, of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
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Item 9.

CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None.
Item 9A.

CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures
Under the supervision and with the participation of the Company’s management, including the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer, the
Company conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of the design and operation of its disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rule 13a-15(e)
under the Exchange Act) as of December 27, 2020. Based on that evaluation, the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer concluded that
the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of December 27, 2020 to ensure that information required to be disclosed in reports
filed or submitted by the Company under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the SEC’s
rules and forms and that information required to be disclosed by the Company is accumulated and communicated to the Company’s management to allow
timely decisions regarding the required disclosure.
Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting
Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Rule 13a-15(f) under the
Exchange Act).
Management, including the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, assessed the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial
reporting as of December 27, 2020. In making this assessment, management applied the criteria based on the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of
the Treadway Commission in Internal Control – Integrated Framework (2013). The Company’s assessment included documenting, evaluating and testing
the design and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting. Based upon this evaluation, management concluded that
the Company’s internal control over financial reporting was effective as of December 27, 2020.
KPMG LLP, the Company’s independent registered public accounting firm, has audited the consolidated financial statements included herein and issued an
audit report on the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 27, 2020, which follows.
Our system of internal control over financial reporting was designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the preparation and fair presentation of
published financial statements in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. All internal control systems, no matter how well designed,
have inherent limitations. Therefore, even those systems determined to be effective can provide only reasonable assurance and may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting
During the fiscal quarter ending December 27, 2020, there was no change in the Company’s internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Rule
13a-15(f) under the Exchange Act) that in the Company’s judgment has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company’s
internal control over financial reporting.
38

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
To the Shareholders and Board of Directors
Ruth’s Hospitality Group, Inc.:
Opinion on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
We have audited Ruth’s Hospitality Group, Inc.’s and subsidiaries’ (the Company) internal control over financial reporting as of December 27, 2020, based
on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission. In our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 27, 2020,
based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission.
We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) (PCAOB), the consolidated
balance sheets of the Company as of December 27, 2020 and December 29, 2019, the related consolidated statements of operations, shareholders’ equity,
and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 27, 2020, and the related notes (collectively, the consolidated financial
statements), and our report dated March 5, 2021 expressed an unqualified opinion on those consolidated financial statements.
Basis for Opinion
The Company’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of
internal control over financial reporting, included in the accompanying Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit. We are a public accounting firm
registered with the PCAOB and are required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the
applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.
We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit of internal control over
financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. Our audit also included performing such other
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.
Definition and Limitations of Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting
and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control
over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.
Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
/s/ KPMG LLP
Orlando, Florida
March 5, 2021
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Item 9B.

OTHER INFORMATION

On March 1, 2021, the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors (the “Compensation Committee”) approved certain modifications to incentive
compensation payments for the fiscal year ended December 27, 2020 for each of our named executive officers and Home Office employees. The COVID19 pandemic has significantly affected the global economy and strained the restaurant industry, including the Company. The Compensation Committee has
taken these impacts into account in its evaluation of the Company’s compensation arrangements.
The Company’s performance results under its fiscal 2020 Bonus Plan and performance-based annual restricted stock grants were negatively impacted by
the COVID-19 pandemic. The Company’s 2020 financial results did not exceed 2019’s actual adjusted EBITDA and, therefore, the calculations for the
award of annual performance-based restricted stock grants would have resulted in no grant of annual performance-based restricted stock. The
Compensation Committee determined that it would not award to the management team any performance-based annual restricted stock grants for fiscal year
2020 under our 2018 Omnibus Incentive Plan.
Additionally, because of the negative impact of the COVID-19 pandemic, under the 2020 Bonus Plan, the Company’s 2020 financial results did not exceed
2019’s actual adjusted EBITDA and, therefore, the Bonus Plan calculations would have resulted in a bonus of zero for all Home Office employees,
including the management team. In reviewing and assessing the Company’s overall performance for fiscal year 2020 and the impact of the COVID-19
pandemic on the Company and its industry, the Compensation Committee reviewed and considered the following items in addition to the Company’s
financial results:
•

The significant work performed by the Company’s management team and Home Office employees to address the impacts of the COVID-19
pandemic, including:
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o

Implementation of safety measures in all of our Company-operated restaurants to protect guests and Team Members;
Modifications to the Company’s business operations to allow the Company to serve guests during the COVID-19 pandemic;
Management of uncertain and changing federal, state and local regulatory environments in connection with the COVID-19 pandemic;
Implementation of reductions in ongoing operating expenses;
Reductions of Home Office and field expenses;
Discussions and negotiations with landlords and vendors to reduce payments;
Facilitation of the successful reopening of the Company’s dining rooms;
Widespread implementation of the Ruth’s Anywhere program throughout the Company’s restaurants to enhance revenue in restaurants;
Increased workloads as a result of furloughed employees (as part of the reduction in Home Office and field expenses);

•

Actions by the management team to preserve and strengthen the Company’s liquidity and financial position, including entry into second, third,
fourth, fifth, and sixth amendments to the Company’s Credit Agreement; and

•

Retention of key employees and management.

Based on its evaluation of these items and all other considerations it deemed relevant and appropriate, and in conjunction with recommendations by the
Compensation Committee’s independent compensation consultants, the Compensation Committee decided to award cash bonuses under the Home Office
Bonus Program at 65% of each individual recipient’s full bonus potential for fiscal year 2020. With regard to each of our named executive officers and
other members of our management team, this results in the following cash bonus awards:
Name
Henry, Cheryl J.
Chipman, Kristy
Haak, Arne
Mirdamadi, Susan L.
Lynch, Marcy N.
Hyatt, David

100% of Potential
Bonus
$975,000
$315,000
$281,250
$255,000
$192,000
$142,500

Actual Award (65% of Full
Bonus Potential)
$633,750
$204,750
$182,813
$165,750
$124,800
$ 92,625

Further information regarding executive compensation will be set forth in the Company’s Proxy Statement for the 2021 Annual Meeting of Shareholders.
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On balance, the Compensation Committee believes that (a) the decision to award no performance-based stock grants to the management team and (b) the
discretionary bonus award to all Home Office employees balances the performance and retention objectives of the Company’s executive compensation
program during these unprecedented times.
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PART III
Item 10.

DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The information required by this Item is incorporated by reference to the Company’s Proxy Statement for the 2021 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission within 120 days after the end of the fiscal year covered by this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
We have adopted a Code of Conduct and Business Ethics that applies to our principal executive officer, principal financial officer and principal accounting
officer. The text of our Code of Conduct and Business Ethics is posted on our website: www.rhgi.com. We intend to disclose future amendments to, or
waivers from, certain provisions of the Code of Conduct and Business Ethics on our website within four business days following the date of such
amendment or waiver. Stockholders may request a free copy of the Code of Conduct and Business Ethics from: Ruth’s Hospitality Group, Inc., Attention:
Corporate Secretary, 1030 W. Canton Avenue, Suite 100, Winter Park, Florida 32789.
Item 11.

EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by this Item is incorporated by reference to the Company’s Proxy Statement for the 2021 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission within 120 days after the end of the fiscal year covered by this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
Item 12.

SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER
MATTERS

Information about security ownership is incorporated by reference to the Company’s Proxy Statement for the 2021 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission within 120 days after the end of the fiscal year covered by this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
Information as of December 27, 2020 concerning compensation plans under which our equity securities are authorized for issuance was as follows:

Plan Category

Equity compensation plans approved by
stockholders:
Amended and Restated 2005 Long-Term
Equity Incentive Plan
2018 Omnibus Incentive Plan

Number of Securities to
be Issued Upon Exercise
of Outstanding Awards
(a)

185,487
559,027

Weighted-Average
Exercise Price of
Outstanding Awards
(b)

Number of Securities
Remaining Available for
Future Issuance Under an
Equity Compensation Plan
(Excluding Securities
Reflected in Column (a))
(c)

N/A
N/A

—
2,218,469

(a) The number of securities to be issued includes outstanding restricted stock awards made to employees and officers of the Company and
outstanding restricted stock units awarded to non-employee directors.
(b) The outstanding awards in column (a) do not have an exercise price.
(c) The total reflects all shares available for grant and could include restricted stock as further described in Note 14 of the accompanying
consolidated financial statements.
Item 13.

CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The information required by this Item is incorporated by reference to the Company’s Proxy Statement for the 2021 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission within 120 days after the end of the fiscal year covered by this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
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Item 14.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by this Item is incorporated by reference to the Company’s Proxy Statement for the 2021 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission within 120 days after the end of the fiscal year covered by this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
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PART IV
Item 15.

EXHIBIT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

(a) Financial Statements and Financial Statement Schedules.
See Index to Consolidated Financial Statements appearing on page F-1. All schedules have been omitted because they are not required or applicable or the
information is included in the consolidated financial statements or notes thereto.
(b) Exhibits.
See Exhibit Index appearing on page 45 for a list of exhibits filed with or incorporated by reference as part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
Item 16.

FORM 10-K SUMMARY

None.
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EXHIBITS
In reviewing the agreements included as exhibits to this report, please remember they are included to provide you with information regarding their terms
and are not intended to provide any other factual or disclosure information about the Company, its subsidiaries or other parties to the agreements. The
agreements contain representations and warranties by each of the parties to the applicable agreement. These representations and warranties have been
made solely for the benefit of the other parties to the applicable agreement and:
•

should not in all instances be treated as categorical statements of fact, but rather as a way of allocating the risk to one of the parties if those
statements prove to be inaccurate;

•

have been qualified by disclosures that were made to the other party in connection with the negotiation of the applicable agreement, which
disclosures are not necessarily reflected in the agreement;

•

may apply standards of materiality in a way that is different from what may be viewed as material to you or other investors; and

•

were made only as of the date of the applicable agreement or such other date or dates as may be specified in the agreement and are subject to
more recent developments.

Accordingly, these representations and warranties may not describe the actual state of affairs as of the date they were made or at any other time. We
acknowledge that, notwithstanding the inclusion of the foregoing cautionary statement, we are responsible for considering whether additional specific
disclosures of material information regarding material contractual provisions are required to make the statements in this Annual Report on Form 10-K not
misleading. Additional information about the Company may be found elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K and the Company’s other public files,
which are available without charge through the SEC’s website at http://www.sec.gov.
Exhibit

Description

2.1

Asset Purchase Agreement, dated November 2, 2017, by and among RCSH Operations, Inc., Desert Island Restaurants, L.L.C., Honolulu
Steak House, LLC, Maui Steak House LLC, Wailea Steak House LLC, Beachwalk Steak House, LLC, Lava Coast Steak House, LLC,
Kauai Steak House, LLC and the individual listed on the signature page thereto (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the
Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed November 3, 2017) (Pursuant to Item 601(b)(2) of Regulation S-K, the schedules to the
Asset Purchase Agreement have been omitted and Ruth’s Hospitality Group Inc. agrees to furnish supplementally a copy of any such
omitted schedule to the SEC upon request.).

3.1.1

Certificate of Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Ruth’s Hospitality Group, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
3.1 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K filed March 5, 2010).

3.1.2

Certificate of Amendment to the Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Ruth’s Hospitality Group, Inc. (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed June 3, 2015).

3.1.3

Certificate of Amendment to Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Company (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
3.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed May 27, 2016).

3.2

Amended and Restated By-Laws of Ruth’s Hospitality Group, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to the Company’s Current
Report on Form 8-K filed October 25, 2019).

4.1

Description of Registrant Securities (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4-1 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K filed
February 27, 2020).

10.1

License Agreement dated July 16, 1999 between Ruth U. Fertel and the Company (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the
Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 filed April 25, 2005).

10.2*

Amended and Restated 2005 Long-Term Equity Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Appendix A to the Company’s Proxy
Statement filed April 19, 2013).

10.3*

Amendment No. 1 to Amended and Restated 2005 Long-Term Equity Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 of the
Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K filed March 8, 2017).

10.4*

Form of Stock Option Agreement under the Company’s 2005 Long-Term Equity Incentive Plan, as amended (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.22 of the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 filed August 8, 2005).
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Exhibit

Description

10.5*

Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 of the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K
filed March 8, 2017).

10.6*

Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement (Performance Award) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 of the Company’s Annual
Report on Form 10-K filed March 8, 2017).

10.7*

Omnibus Amendment to Award Agreements (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 of the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K
filed March 8, 2017).

10.8*

Ruth’s Hospitality Group, Inc. 2018 Omnibus Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Annex A of the registrant’s Definitive Proxy
Statement filed March 30, 2018).

10.9*

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement (Director’s Award) under the Company’s 2018 Omnibus Incentive Plan (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.3 of the Company Current Report on Form 10-Q filed August 10, 2018).

10.10*

Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement (Performance Award) under the Company’s 2018 Omnibus Incentive Plan (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.4 of the Company Current Report on Form 10-Q filed August 10, 2018).

10.11*

Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement (Tenure Award) under the Company’s 2018 Omnibus Incentive Plan (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.5 of the Company Current Report on Form 10-Q filed August 10, 2018).

10.12*

Ruth’s Hospitality Group 2018 Nonqualified Deferred Compensation Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the Company’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K filed March 4, 2016).

10.13

Multi-Site Sale Leaseback Purchase Agreement dated August 1, 2008 among the Company, RCSH Operations, LLC, RCSH Operations,
Inc. and RHG Kingfish, LLC and Sovereign Investment Company (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Company’s Current
Report on Form 8-K filed August 5, 2008).

10.14

Asset Purchase Agreement, dated May 1, 2019, by and among RCSH Operations, LLC, Marsha Brown Restaurants, L.P., Marsha
Brown Restaurants, Inc., M.R. Brown, Inc., Marsha Brown Development Corporation, and Ophelia May LLC, and the individuals listed
on the signature page thereto (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed May 1,
2019).

10.15

Credit Agreement, dated as of February 2, 2017, by and among the Company, the Guarantors, the Lenders and Wells Fargo Bank,
National Association, as administrative agent and Wells Fargo Securities, LLC, as sole lead arranger and sole bookrunner (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed February 8, 2017).

10.16

First Amendment, dated as of September 18, 2019, to Credit Agreement, dated as of February 2, 2017, by and among the Company,
the Guarantors, the Lenders and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as administrative agent and Wells Fargo Securities, LLC, as
sole lead arranger and sole bookrunner (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed
September 19, 2019).

10.17

Second Amendment, dated as of March 27, 2020, to Credit Agreement, dated as of February 2, 2017, by and among the Company,
the Guarantors, the Lenders and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as administrative agent and Wells Fargo Securities, LLC, as
sole lead arranger and sole bookrunner (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed
March 30, 2020).

10.18

Third Amendment, dated as of May 7, 2020, to Credit Agreement, dated as of February 2, 2017, by and among the Company,
the Guarantors, the Lenders and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as administrative agent and Wells Fargo Securities, LLC, as
sole lead arranger and sole bookrunner (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed
May 8, 2020).

10.19

Fourth Amendment, dated as of May 18, 2020, to Credit Agreement, dated as of February 2, 2017, by and among the Company,
the Guarantors, the Lenders and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as administrative agent and Wells Fargo Securities, LLC, as
sole lead arranger and sole bookrunner (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed
May 20, 2020).

10.20

Fifth Amendment, dated as of October 26, 2020, to Credit Agreement, dated as of February 2, 2017, by and among the Company,
the Guarantors, the Lenders and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as administrative agent and Wells Fargo Securities, LLC, as
sole lead arranger and sole bookrunner (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed
October 30, 2020).
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Exhibit

*

Description

10.21

Sixth Amendment, dated as of January 28, 2021, to Credit Agreement, dated as of February 2, 2017, by and among the Company,
the Guarantors, the Lenders and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as administrative agent and Wells Fargo Securities, LLC, as
sole lead arranger and sole bookrunner (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed
January 29, 2021).

10.22*

Terms of Employment/Letter of Understanding and Salary Continuation Agreement dated June 4, 2018, between the Company and
Cheryl Henry (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed June 4, 2018).

10.23*

Terms of Employment/Letter of Understanding and Salary Continuation Agreement dated June 4, 2018, between the Company and
Michael P. O’Donnell (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed June 4, 2018).

10.24*

Retirement, Transition, and Release of Claims Agreement, between the Company and Michael P. O’Donnell (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed July 9, 2020).

10.25*

Terms of Employment/Letter of Understanding and Salary Continuation Agreement, effective as of August 8, 2011, by and between
Ruth’s Hospitality Group, Inc. and Arne G. Haak (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form
8-K filed July 29, 2011).

10.26*

Terms of Employment/Letter of Understanding and Salary Continuation Agreement, effective as of October 24, 2018, by and between
Ruth’s Hospitality Group, Inc. and Susan G. Mirdamadi (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on
Form 8-K filed October 25, 2018).

10.27*

Form of Addendum to Employment Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8K filed March 30, 2020).

10.28*

Terms of Employment/Letter of Understanding and Salary Continuation Agreement, effective as of November 9, 2020, by and between
Ruth’s Hospitality Group, Inc. and Kristy Chipman (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on
Form 8-K filed November 12, 2020).

10.29*

Separation, Transition, and Release of Claims Agreement, effective as of December 2, 2020, by and between Ruth’s Hospitality Group,
Inc. and Arne G. Haak.

21.1

Subsidiaries of the Company.

23.1

Consent of KPMG LLP.

31.1

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

31.2

Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

32.1

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

32.2

Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

101.INS

Inline XBRL Instance Document - The instance document does not appear in the interactive data file because it's XBRL tags are
embedded within the Inline XBRL document.

101.SCH

Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document

101.CAL

Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document

101.DEF

Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document

101.LAB

Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document

101.PRE

Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document

104

Cover Page Interactive Date File (formatted as Inline XBRL and contained in Exhibit 101)
Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement
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SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its
behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.
March 5, 2021
RUTH’S HOSPITALITY GROUP, INC.
By:

/s/ CHERYL J. HENRY
Cheryl J. Henry
President and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed by the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in
the capacities and on the dates indicated.
Signatures

/s/ CHERYL J. HENRY
Cheryl J. Henry

/s/ KRISTY CHIPMAN
Kristy Chipman

/s/ MICHAEL P. O’DONNELL

Title

Dates

President, Chief Executive Officer and Director (Principal
Executive Officer)

March 5, 2021

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)

March 5, 2021

Chairman of the Board

March 5, 2021

Lead Director

March 5, 2021

Director

March 5, 2021

Director

March 5, 2021

Director

March 5, 2021

Director

March 5, 2021

Director

March 5, 2021

Michael P. O’Donnell

/s/ ROBIN P. SELATI
Robin P. Selati

/s/

GIANNELLA ALVAREZ
Giannella Alvarez

/s/ MARY BAGLIVO
Mary Baglivo

/s/ CARLA R. COOPER
Carla R. Cooper

/s/ STEPHEN M. KING
Stephen M. King

/s/ MARIE L. PERRY
Marie L. Perry

48

RUTH’S HOSPITALITY GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
INDEX TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Page

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

F-2

Consolidated Balance Sheets

F-4

Consolidated Statements of Operations

F-5

Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity

F-6

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

F-7

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

F-8
F-1

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
To the Shareholders and Board of Directors
Ruth’s Hospitality Group, Inc.:
Opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Ruth’s Hospitality Group, Inc. and subsidiaries (the Company) as of December 27, 2020
and December 29, 2019 the related consolidated statements of operations, shareholders’ equity and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period
ended December 27, 2020, and the related notes (collectively, the consolidated financial statements). In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company as of December 27, 2020 and December 29, 2019, and the results of its
operations and its cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 27, 2020, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles.
We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) (PCAOB), the Company’s
internal control over financial reporting as of December 27, 2020, based on criteria established in Internal Control – Integrated Framework (2013) issued
by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission, and our report dated March 5, 2021 expressed an unqualified opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.
Change in Accounting Principle
As discussed in Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company has changed its method of accounting for leases as of December 31, 2018 due
to the adoption of Accounting Standards Codification Topic 842, Leases.
Basis for Opinion
These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We are a public accounting firm registered with the PCAOB and are required to be independent with
respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange
Commission and the PCAOB.
We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether due to error or fraud. Our audits included
performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to error or fraud, and performing
procedures that respond to those risks. Such procedures included examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. Our audits also included evaluating the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.
Critical Audit Matters
The critical audit matters communicated below are matters arising from the current period audit of the consolidated financial statements that were
communicated or required to be communicated to the audit committee and that: (1) relate to accounts or disclosures that are material to the consolidated
financial statements and (2) involved our especially challenging, subjective, or complex judgments. The communication of critical audit matters does not
alter in any way our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, taken as a whole, and we are not, by communicating the critical audit matters below,
providing separate opinions on the critical audit matters or on the accounts or disclosures to which they relate.
Evaluation of the gift card breakage rate
As discussed in Notes 2(l) and 5 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company’s liability for gift cards sold but not yet redeemed as of
December 27, 2020 was $59.0 million. The liability represents the full value of all gift cards sold less the amount the Company has recognized
as income for gift cards that are not expected to be redeemed. The portion of gift cards sold to customers which are never redeemed is
commonly referred to as gift card breakage. Gift card breakage is estimated based on historical breakage rates, including breakage rates during
previous economic recessions, while considering any changes in redemption patterns as a result of the current economic environment.
We identified the evaluation of the gift card breakage rate as a critical audit matter. Testing the gift card breakage rate involved a high degree of
subjectivity, because future gift card usage may be different than historical experience and is subject to inherent uncertainty.
The following are the primary procedures we performed to address this critical audit matter. We evaluated the design and tested the operating
effectiveness of certain internal controls related to the critical audit matter. This included controls related to the Company’s gift card process
including the gift card issuance and redemption data used to develop the breakage rate. We assessed the Company’s estimated breakage rate,
including the underlying gift card issuance and redemption data. We
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compared an independent acceptable range to the amount recorded by the Company. We compared the historically estimated breakage, including
breakage during previous economic recessions, against actual breakage to assess the Company’s ability to accurately forecast gift card
breakage. We analyzed redemptions as a percentage of sales to identify any changes in redemption patterns as a result of the current economic
environment.
Evaluation of long-lived assets impairment
As discussed in Notes 2(j), 6, 7 and 8 to the consolidated financial statements, property and equipment, net, amortizing franchise rights, and
operating lease right-of-use assets, were $119.9 million, $12.3 million and $188.4 million, respectively, as of December 27, 2020. The Company
tests for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset group may not be recoverable. If
the carrying amount of an asset group exceeds its estimated future cash flows, an impairment charge is recognized for the amount by which the
carrying amount of the asset group exceeds the fair value of the asset group. Based upon the analyses performed primarily resulting from several
coronavirus disease 2019 (COVID-19) pandemic factors, including significant reduction in guest traffic at the restaurants, state and local
government mandated restrictions including suspension of dine-in operations, and resulting changes in consumer behavior, the Company
recognized pre-tax impairment charges for long-lived assets of $12.7 million in fiscal year 2020.
We identified the evaluation of long-lived assets for impairment as a critical audit matter. Subjective auditor judgment was required to evaluate
the forecasted sales, including the effects of the COVID-19 pandemic and resulting duration of the economic downturn.
The following are the primary procedures we performed to address this critical audit matter. We evaluated the design and tested the operating
effectiveness of certain internal controls related to the critical audit matter. This included controls related to the Company’s long-lived assets
impairment process and a control related to the forecasted sales. To test the Company’s impairment assessment, we evaluated the Company’s
ability to accurately forecast future sales by comparing the Company’s forecasts to historical results, to actual results from take-out and delivery
services, to actual results from restaurants that had resumed dine-in services, and to market and industry data. We performed sensitivity analyses
over the forecasted sales to evaluate the change in the impairment analysis of each asset group resulting from changes in forecasted sales.
/s/ KPMG LLP
We have served as the Company’s auditor since 1994.
Orlando, Florida
March 5, 2021
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RUTH'S HOSPITALITY GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Balance Sheets
(Amounts in thousands, except share and per share data)
December 27,
2020

Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, less allowance for doubtful accounts 2020 - $322; 2019 - $241
Inventory
Prepaid expenses and other
Total current assets
Property and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation 2020 - $177,277; 2019 $173,845
Operating lease right of use assets
Goodwill
Franchise rights, net of accumulated amortization 2020 - $6,534; 2019 - $4,401
Other intangibles, net of accumulated amortization 2020 - $1,569; 2019 - $1,439
Deferred income taxes
Other assets
Total assets
Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued payroll
Accrued expenses
Deferred revenue
Current operating lease liabilities
Other current liabilities
Total current liabilities
Long-term debt
Operating lease liabilities
Unearned franchise fees
Other liabilities
Total liabilities
Commitments and contingencies (Note 11)
Shareholders' equity:
Common stock, par value $.01 per share; 100,000,000 shares authorized, 34,256,921
shares issued and outstanding at December 27, 2020, 28,418,691 shares issued and
outstanding at December 29, 2019
Additional paid-in capital
Retained earnings
Treasury stock, at cost; 71,950 shares at December 27, 2020 and December 29, 2019
Total shareholders' equity
Total liabilities and shareholders' equity

$

$

$

$

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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95,402
24,309
6,930
3,653
130,294
119,887
188,386
45,549
44,484
4,114
8,616
1,344
542,674

4,101
15,344
6,449
59,030
20,854
2,543
108,321
115,000
209,654
2,186
69
435,230
—

343
83,424
23,677
—
107,444
542,674

December 29,
2019

$

$

$

$

5,567
23,769
9,623
3,052
42,011
142,962
206,358
45,549
49,916
4,449
4,929
702
496,876

13,598
17,303
10,574
52,856
14,313
4,237
112,881
64,000
223,292
2,489
69
402,731
—

284
40,462
53,399
—
94,145
496,876

RUTH'S HOSPITALITY GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Operations
(Dollar amounts in thousands, except share and per share data)
Fiscal Year Ended
December 29,
2019

December 27,
2020

Revenues:
Restaurant sales
Franchise income
Other operating income
Total revenues

$

Costs and expenses:
Food and beverage costs
Restaurant operating expenses
Marketing and advertising
General and administrative costs
Depreciation and amortization expenses
Pre-opening costs
Gain on lease modifications
Loss on impairment
Total costs and expenses
Operating income (loss)
Other income (expense):
Interest expense, net
Other
Income (loss) from continuing operations before income tax expense
Income tax expense (benefit)
Income (loss) from continuing operations
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of income taxes
Net income (loss)

$

75,831
150,420
6,859
33,248
21,964
1,633
(206)
16,548
306,297
(28,549)
(4,681)
26
(33,204)
(7,910)
(25,294)
—
(25,294)

Basic earnings (loss) per common share:
Continuing operations
Discontinued operations
Basic earnings (loss) per share

$
$

Diluted earnings (loss) per common share:
Continuing operations
Discontinued operations
Diluted earnings (loss) per share

$
$

Shares used in computing earnings (loss) per common share:
Basic
Diluted
Cash dividends declared per common share

260,763
11,737
5,248
277,748

$

$

(0.80)
—
(0.80)

$

$

$

31,683,920
31,683,920
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$

127,597
214,715
15,432
34,643
21,354
1,824
—
—
415,565
52,461

(0.80)
—
(0.80)

$
0.15
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

441,361
17,879
8,786
468,026

December 30,
2018

(2,197)
115
50,379
8,173
42,206
—
42,206

120,112
206,258
16,639
37,253
18,538
1,875
—
—
400,675
51,659

$

1.46
—
1.46

$

1.44
—
1.44

$

$

$

28,998,382
29,376,980
$

0.52

427,433
17,919
6,982
452,334

(1,739)
(73)
49,847
8,247
41,600
80
41,680

1.40
0.01
1.41

1.37
0.01
1.38

29,659,461
30,273,841
$

0.44

RUTH'S HOSPITALITY GROUP, INC AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders' Equity
(Amounts in thousands)

Additional
Paid-in
Capital

Common Stock
Shares
Value

Balance at December 31, 2017
Net income
Cash dividends
Repurchase of common stock
Shares issued under stock compensation plan net
of shares withheld for tax effects
Stock-based compensation
Cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle
(Note 5)
Balance at December 30, 2018
Net income
Cash dividends
Repurchase of common stock
Shares issued under stock compensation plan net
of shares withheld for tax effects
Stock-based compensation
Cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle
(Note 4)
Balance at December 29, 2019
Net loss
Stock issuance
Cash dividends
Repurchase of common stock
Shares issued under stock compensation plan net
of shares withheld for tax effects
Stock-based compensation
Balance at December 27, 2020

29,646 $
—
—
(689)

Retained
Earnings

296 $ 77,017 $
2,191
—
—
41,680
—
—
(13,527)
(7)
(18,532)
—

312
—

3
—

(4,313)
7,647

—
293
—
—
(12)

—
61,819
—
—
(25,806)

3
—

(3,707)
8,157

—
28,419
—
6,455
—
(902)

—
284
—
65
—
(9)

—
40,462
—
49,493
—
(13,217)

285
—
34,257

3
—
343

—
29,269
—
—
(1,149)
299
—

$

$

(1,576)
8,261
83,424 $

—
—

72
—
—
—

$

Shareholders'
Equity

—
—
—
—

$

79,504
41,680
(13,527)
(18,539)

—
—

—
—

(4,310)
7,647

—
72
—
—
—

—
—
—
—
—

(2,324)
90,132
42,206
(15,566)
(25,818)

—
—

—
—

(3,704)
8,157

(1,261)
53,399
(25,294)

—
72
—

—
—
—

(4,428)
—

—
—

—
—

(1,261)
94,145
(25,294)
49,558
(4,428)
(13,226)

—
—
23,677

—
—
72

—
—
—

(1,573)
8,261
107,444

(2,324)
28,020
42,206
(15,566)
—
—
—

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Treasury Stock
Shares
Value

$

$

RUTH'S HOSPITALITY GROUP, INC AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(Dollar amounts in thousands)
Fiscal Year Ended
December 29,
2019

December 27,
2020

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Deferred income taxes
Non-cash interest expense
Loss on impairment
Amortization of below market lease
Stock-based compensation expense
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and other
Other assets
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Deferred revenue
Deferred rent
Operating lease liabilities and assets
Other liabilities
Net cash provided by operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities:
Acquisition of property and equipment
Acquisition of franchise restaurant, net of cash acquired
Net cash used in investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities:
Principal borrowings on long-term debt
Principal repayments on long-term debt
Principal borrowings from the CARES Act loan
Principal repayments on the CARES Act loan
Repurchase of common stock
Net proceeds from the sale of common stock
Cash dividend payments
Tax payments from the vesting of restricted stock and option exercises
Proceeds from the exercise of stock options
Deferred financing costs
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year
Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:
Cash paid (received) during the period for:
Interest, net of capitalized interest
Income taxes
Noncash investing and financing activities:
Accrued acquisition of property and equipment

$

(25,294)

42,206

$

41,680

21,964
(3,688)
346
16,548
—
8,261

21,354
837
86
—
—
8,157

18,538
341
82
—
79
7,647

1,939
1,983
(603)
(25)
(13,340)
6,174
—
5,530
290
20,085

343
(52)
(417)
(150)
(2,624)
3,761
—
608
(1,199)
72,910

2,151
(608)
151
(42)
2,590
5,383
1,462
—
(1,160)
78,294

(10,620)
—
(10,620)

(31,668)
(18,613)
(50,281)

(31,907)
—
(31,907)

$

85,000
(34,000)
20,000
(20,000)
(13,226)
49,558
(4,428)
(1,573)
—
(961)
80,370
89,835
5,567
95,402

$

54,000
(31,000)
—
—
(25,818)
—
(15,566)
(3,720)
16
(36)
(22,124)
505
5,062
5,567

$

33,000
(42,000)
—
—
(18,539)
—
(13,527)
(4,342)
32
—
(45,376)
1,011
4,051
5,062

$
$

4,299
(1,428)

$
$

1,988
8,265

$
$

1,658
8,467

$

4,374

$

2,390

$

72

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
F-7

$

December 30,
2018

RUTH’S HOSPITALITY GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(1) The Company, Organization and Description of Business
Ruth’s Hospitality Group, Inc. and its subsidiaries (the Company) operate Ruth’s Chris Steak House restaurants and sell franchise rights to Ruth’s Chris
Steak House franchisees giving the franchisees the exclusive right to operate similar restaurants in a particular area designated in the franchise agreement.
As of December 27, 2020, there were 149 Ruth’s Chris Steak House restaurants, of which 74 were Company-owned, 72 were franchisee-owned, and three
locations were operating under contractual agreements. All Company-owned restaurants are located in the United States. The franchisee-owned restaurants
include 21 international restaurants in Aruba, Canada, China, Hong Kong, Indonesia, Japan, Mexico, Singapore and Taiwan. One Company-owned Ruth’s
Chris Steak House restaurant was relocated in Washington D.C. and nine Ruth’s Chris Steak House locations were permanently closed during fiscal year
2020. Franchisees relocated one Ruth’s Chris Steak House location from St. Louis, MO to Chesterfield, MO and closed one Ruth’s Chris Steak House in
Charleston, SC.
On July 29, 2019, the Company completed the acquisition of substantially all of the assets of three franchisee-owned Ruth’s Chris Steak House restaurants
located in Philadelphia, PA, King of Prussia, PA and Garden City, NY (the “MBR Franchise Acquisition”) for a cash purchase price of $18.6 million. The
acquisition was funded with borrowings under the Company’s senior credit facility. The results of operations, financial position and cash flows of the
MBR Franchise Acquisition are included in the Company’s consolidated financial statements as of the date of the acquisition. For additional information,
see Note 3.
The following table summarizes the changes in the number of Company-owned Ruth’s Chris Steak House restaurants and franchisee-owned restaurants
during the thirteen and fifty-two weeks ended December 27, 2020.
13 Weeks Ending
December 27, 2020

Ruth's Chris Steak House
Beginning of period
Acquired
Sold
New
Closed
End of period
% of total

Company

Franchised

52 Weeks Ending
December 27, 2020

Managed

Total

Company

Franchised

Managed

Total

74
0
0
0
0
74

72
0
0
0
0
72

3
0
0
0
0
3

149
0
0
0
0
149

83
0
0
0
9
74

73
0
0
0
1
72

3
0
0
0
0
3

159
0
0
0
10
149

50%

48%

2%

100%

50%

48%

2%

100%

COVID-19 Impact
In March 2020 the World Health Organization declared the novel coronavirus 2019 (COVID-19) a pandemic and the United States declared it a National
Public Health Emergency, which has resulted in a significant reduction in revenue at the Company’s restaurants due to mandatory restaurant closures,
capacity limitations, social distancing guidelines or other restrictions mandated by governments across the world, including federal, state and local
governments in the United States. As a result of these developments, the Company experienced a significant negative impact on its revenues, results of
operations and cash flows.
In response to the business disruption caused by the COVID-19 outbreak, the Company has taken the following actions, which management expects will
enable it to meet its obligations over the next twelve months.
Operating Initiatives. Due to the government mandates regarding limiting or prohibiting in-restaurant dining due to COVID-19, the Company is
leveraging its Ruth’s Anywhere program to enhance revenue in restaurants that have open dining rooms or in markets where take-out and delivery sales are
sufficient to cover the costs of management staffing those locations. As of December 27, 2020, 70 of the 77 Company-owned and -managed restaurants
were open, which included 51 restaurants offering limited capacity dining service and 19 restaurants offering to-go and delivery service only. As of
December 27, 2020, seven Company-owned restaurants were temporarily closed. All of the franchisee-owned locations experienced disruptions to their
business from COVID-19, and as a result, the Company waived franchise royalty requirements until their dining rooms were re-opened.
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The Company has and expects to continue re-opening restaurants with the safety and wellbeing of its guests and Team Members as the top priority. As
such, the Company has taken several steps to ensure it complies with relevant requirements at state, city or local levels, which are changing on a regular
basis. These steps include:
•
•

an overall enhancement to its already robust sanitation and food safety standards;
requiring all restaurant team members to wear masks and gloves at all times, regularly wash their hands, and undergo health and wellness
screenings prior to every shift, including temperature checks;
•
assigning a dedicated Team Member to clean restaurants at all times they are open; and
•
reconfiguring floor plans to accommodate social distancing.
The Company has also taken measures to ensure its guests feel comfortable during their dining experience. For example,
•
dinner and wine menus are available via a Quick Response (QR) code for access on personal devices;
•
the Company is offering new personal side options in addition to its shareables;
•
the Company has created opportunities for private seating for small groups to experience personal Taste Maker wine dinners; and
•
for guests who would prefer to have Ruth’s at home, the Company added take-out and delivery options including online ordering, payment and
curbside pickup, where available, which allow for a convenient and minimal contact experience.
As these precautions and measures may change from time to time as local conditions and health mandates change, and since it is also possible that as local
conditions and/or applicable health mandates change, the Company may be required to re-close restaurants or otherwise limit its operations.
Capital and Expense Reductions. The Company suspended in fiscal year 2020 all new restaurant construction and non-essential capital expenditures. The
Company has also made significant reductions in ongoing operating expenses, including curtailing operations in restaurants where take-out and delivery is
not viable and furloughing a significant number of Team Members in the field and in the Company’s home office. In addition, the Company also
implemented reductions of home office and field expenses. The Company took measures to reduce payments to its landlords and vendors during fiscal
year 2020 and is still in discussions with approximately 20% of its landlords to reduce its payments. With payments being delayed, landlords may terminate
our leases or could take other actions that restrict the Company’s ability to access or re-open its stores in a timely manner. The Company currently owes
$6.9 million in past due rent related payments to its landlords. The Company negotiated with its vendors during fiscal year 2020 to secure reductions and
deferrals on obligated payments while its locations were operating in take-out and delivery status. These negotiations were concluded prior to the end of
fiscal year 2020. The Board of Directors chose to forego payment of the cash retainer fees of non-employee members of the Board that were temporarily
suspended from March 30, 2020 to August 3, 2020.
Dividends and Share Buybacks. The Company suspended the quarterly cash dividend, and there are no plans for share buybacks in the foreseeable future.
Balance Sheet. In March 2020, the Company entered into a second amendment to its Credit Agreement, which increased the Company’s borrowing
capacity to $150.0 million and relaxed the leverage covenant restrictions to 4.0 times Bank Adjusted EBITDA through the first quarter of 2021. The
Company borrowed the remaining available amount under the revolving credit facility as a precautionary measure in order to increase the Company’s cash
position and preserve financial flexibility. On May 7, 2020, the Company entered into a third amendment to its Credit Agreement which waived financial
covenants until the first quarter of 2021, further relaxed the leverage covenant restrictions during the first and second quarters of 2021 and added a monthly
liquidity covenant. On May 18, 2020, the Company entered into a fourth amendment to its Credit Agreement which limits the amount by which the
monthly liquidity covenant escalates due to net cash proceeds received from an equity offering. On October 26, 2020, the Company entered into a fifth
amendment to its Credit Agreement which extended the term of the agreement to February 2023, adjusted the monthly liquidity covenant and reduced the
revolving credit commitment to $120.0 million. Subsequent to the end of the year the Company entered into a sixth amendment to its Credit Agreement
which reduces the revolving credit commitment to $110.0 million, waives the financial covenants during the first quarter of 2021, extends the monthly
liquidity covenant through June 2021 and limits the amount of growth related capital expenditures to $5.0 million in fiscal year 2021. See Note 9 for further
information on recent Credit Agreement amendments. During May 2020, the Company issued 6,454,838 shares of common stock for net proceeds of $49.6
million to further improve its liquidity. The Company used $9.8 million of the proceeds from the issuance of its common stock to repay debt.
This is an unprecedented event in the Company’s history, and it is uncertain how the conditions surrounding COVID-19 will continue to change, including
the timing of lifting any restrictions or closure requirements, when additional dining room capacity will re-open at greater capacity at Company-owned
restaurants, what level of customer demand the Company will experience once the dining
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rooms are permitted to re-open, and whether there will be additional restaurant closures from state and local governments restricting restaurant operations.
The Company’s operating results, financial position and liquidity over the next twelve months will depend upon a series of factors, including the duration
of restaurant shutdowns; the speed with which, and the extent to which, customers return to its restaurants; the Company’s success in obtaining rent and
other payment concessions from landlords and vendors; and the Company’s ability to meet its Credit Agreement obligations. If the Company’s business
performance does not improve to a point where it can comply with its leverage ratio, fixed charge coverage ratio and capital expenditure covenants in 2021,
the Company may need to seek an amendment to, or refinance, its Credit Agreement. If the Company is able to successfully amend, extend or refinance its
Credit Agreement, it may also be required to agree to additional covenants in connection with any future amendment, extension or refinancing of its Credit
Agreement.
(2) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(a) Basis of Presentation
The Company utilizes a 52- or 53-week reporting period ending on the last Sunday of December. The periods ended December 27, 2020 (fiscal year 2020),
December 29, 2019 (fiscal year 2019) and December 30, 2018 (fiscal year 2018) each had a 52-week reporting period. The consolidated financial
statements are prepared in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles and include the financial statements of Ruth’s Hospitality Group,
Inc. and its wholly owned subsidiaries. All significant inter-company balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.
The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.
(b) Recent Accounting Pronouncements
In June 2016 the FASB issued ASU 2016-13, Financial Instruments – Credit Losses. This update requires immediate recognition of management’s
estimates of current expected credit losses. This update was effective for the Company in the first quarter of fiscal year 2020. The adoption of ASU 201613 did not have a significant impact on the Company’s ongoing financial reporting.
In January 2017 the FASB issued ASU 2017-04, Intangibles – Goodwill and Other: Simplifying the Impairment Test for Goodwill. This update eliminated
the calculation of implied goodwill fair value. This update was effective for the Company in the first quarter of fiscal year 2020. The adoption of ASU
2017-04 did not have a significant impact on the Company’s ongoing financial reporting.
In August 2018 the FASB issued ASU 2018-13, Fair Value Measurement – Disclosure Framework – Changes to the Disclosure Requirements for Fair
Value Measurement. This update eliminated the calculation of implied goodwill fair value. This update was effective for the Company in the first quarter
of fiscal year 2020. The adoption of ASU 2018-13 did not have a significant impact on the Company’s ongoing financial reporting.
In August 2018 the FASB issued ASU 2018-15, Intangibles – Goodwill and Other – Internal-Use Software (Subtopic 350-40). This update aligns the
requirements for capitalizing implementation costs incurred in a cloud computing arrangement that is a service contract with the requirements for
capitalizing implementation costs incurred to develop or obtain internal-use software. This update was effective for the Company in the first quarter of
fiscal year 2020. The adoption of ASU 2018-15 did not have a significant impact on the Company’s ongoing financial reporting.
In August 2018 the FASB issued ASU 2018-19, Codification Improvements to Topic 326, Financial Instruments – Credit Losses. This update clarifies that
receivables arising from operating leases are not within the scope of Subtopic 326-20. Instead, impairment of receivables arising from operating leases
should be accounted for in accordance with Topic 842. This update was effective for the Company in the first quarter of fiscal year 2020. The adoption of
ASU 2018-19 did not have a significant impact on the Company’s ongoing financial reporting.
In December 2019 the FASB issued ASU 2019-12, Income Taxes (Topic 740). This update modifies Topic 740 to simplify the accounting for income
taxes. This update is effective for the Company in the first quarter of fiscal year 2021. The adoption of ASU 2019-12 is not expected to have a significant
impact on the Company’s ongoing financial reporting.
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(c) Contingencies
The Company recognizes liabilities for contingencies when there is an exposure that indicates it is both probable that an asset has been impaired or that a
liability has been incurred and that the amount of impairment or loss can be reasonably estimated.
(d) Cash Equivalents
For purposes of the consolidated financial statements, the Company considers all highly liquid investments purchased with an original maturity of three
months or less to be cash equivalents.
(e) Accounts Receivable
Accounts receivable consists primarily of bank credit cards receivable, landlord contributions, franchise royalty payments receivable, receivables from gift
card sales, banquet billings receivable and other miscellaneous receivables.
(f) Allowance for Doubtful Accounts
The Company performs a specific review of account balances and applies historical collection experience to the various aging categories of receivable
balances in establishing an allowance.
(g) Inventories
Inventories consist of food, beverages and supplies and are stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out
method.
(h) Property and Equipment, net
Property and equipment are stated at cost. Expenditures for improvements and replacements are capitalized and maintenance and repairs are charged to
expense. Depreciation is computed on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets. Leasehold improvements are amortized on the
straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term or the estimated useful lives of the assets. The estimated useful lives for assets are as follows: Building
and Building Improvements, 20 to 40 years; Equipment, 5 years; Furniture and Fixtures, 5 to 7 years; Computer Equipment, 3 to 5 years; and Leasehold
Improvements, 5 to 20 years (limited by the lease term).
(i) Goodwill and Franchise Rights
Goodwill and intangible assets acquired in a business combination that are determined to have an indefinite useful life are not amortized, but reviewed for
impairment at least annually in accordance with the provisions of FASB Accounting Standards Committee (ASC) Topic 350, Intangibles-Goodwill and
Other. The annual testing date for determining whether goodwill and other intangible assets are impaired is the last day of the Company’s 48th fiscal week,
which in fiscal year 2020 was November 29, 2020. Goodwill is reviewed annually for impairment on a reporting unit basis and more frequently if events
and circumstances indicate that the asset might be impaired. For purposes of testing goodwill impairment, a reporting unit is defined as a group of
restaurants with similar economic characteristics. All Company-owned restaurants are deemed to have similar economic characteristics and are deemed to
be one reporting unit. An impairment loss is recognized to the extent that the financial statement carrying amount exceeds the asset’s fair value.
Franchise rights acquired prior to 2008 in a business combination that are determined to have an indefinite useful life are not amortized, but are reviewed
for impairment at least annually and more frequently if events and circumstances indicate that the asset might be impaired. The Company allows and
expects these franchisees to renew agreements indefinitely ensuring consistent cash flows. An impairment loss is recognized to the extent that the carrying
amount exceeds the asset’s fair value. Franchise rights acquired after 2007 are no longer considered to have indefinite useful lives and are amortized in
accordance with FASB ASC Topic 350 and reviewed for impairment under ASC Topic 360-10, Property, Plant and Equipment – Impairment and Disposal
of Long-Lived Assets (Topic 360-10).
(j) Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets
In accordance with Topic 360-10, long lived assets, such as property and equipment, operating lease right-of-use (ROU) assets and purchased intangibles
subject to amortization, are reviewed for impairment on a restaurant-by-restaurant basis whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. Recoverability of assets to be held and used is measured by a comparison of the carrying amount of an
asset to estimated undiscounted future cash flows expected to be
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generated by the asset. If the financial statement carrying amount of an asset exceeds its estimated future cash flows, an impairment charge is recognized in
the amount by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds the fair value of the asset. Fair value is determined through various valuation techniques
including discounted cash flow models, quoted market values and third-party independent appraisals, as considered necessary. Key assumptions in the
determination of fair value are the future after-tax cash flows of the restaurant and discount rate. The after-tax cash flows incorporate reasonable sales
growth and margin improvement assumptions that would be expected by a franchisee in the determination of a purchase price for the restaurant. Estimates
of future cash flows are highly subjective judgments and can be significantly impacted by changes in the business or economic conditions. The discount
rate used in the fair value calculations is our estimate of the required rate of return that a market participant would expect to receive when purchasing a
similar restaurant or groups of restaurants and the related long-lived assets. The discount rate incorporates rates of returns for historical refranchising
market transactions and is commensurate with the risks and uncertainty inherent in the forecasted cash flows.
We account for exit or disposal activities, including restaurant closures, in accordance with Topic 360-10. Such costs include the cost of disposing of the
assets as well as other facility-related expenses from previously closed restaurants. These costs are generally expensed as incurred. For restaurants operated
under operating leases, on the date we commit to a plan to either abandon the related ROU asset or sublease the underlying asset, we evaluate the ROU
asset for potential impairment and determine the go-forward accounting based on the requirements in ASC Topic 842, Leases.
(k) Deferred Financing Costs
Deferred financing costs represent fees paid in connection with obtaining bank and other long-term financing. The Company paid $961 thousand in
financing costs in fiscal year 2020, $36 thousand in financing costs in fiscal year 2019 and no financing costs during fiscal year 2018. The Company
amortizes deferred financing costs using a method that approximates the effective interest method over the term of the related financing. Amortization of
deferred financing costs was $346 thousand in fiscal year 2020, $86 thousand in fiscal year 2019 and $82 thousand in fiscal year 2018 and is included in
interest expense on the consolidated statements of operations.
(l) Revenues
Revenues are derived principally from food and beverage sales. The Company does not rely on any major customers as a source of revenue.
Restaurant Sales. Restaurant sales consist of food and beverage sales by Company-owned restaurants. Revenue from restaurant sales is recognized when
food and beverage products are sold. Restaurant sales are presented net of sales taxes and discounts. Gratuities remitted by customers for the benefit of
restaurant staff are not included in either revenues or operating expenses. Restaurant sales are primarily influenced by total operating weeks in the relevant
period and comparable restaurant sales growth. Total operating weeks is the total number of Company-owned restaurants multiplied by the number of
weeks each is in operation during the relevant period. Comparable restaurant sales growth reflects the change in year-over-year or quarter-over-quarter, as
applicable, sales for the comparable restaurants. The Company defines comparable restaurants to be those Company-owned restaurants in operation for not
less than eighteen months prior to the beginning of the fiscal year.
Franchise Income. Franchise income includes (1) franchise and development fees charged to franchisees, (2) sales-based royalty income and (3) salesbased advertising fees charged to franchisees. Franchise royalties consist of 5.0% of adjusted gross sales from each franchisee-owned restaurant. In
addition, our more recent franchise agreements require up to a 1.0% of adjusted gross sales advertising fee to be paid by the franchisee, which is applied to
national advertising expenditures. Both the 5.0% royalty and the sales-based advertising fees are included in franchise income on the consolidated
statements of operations. The Company recognizes franchise development and opening fees over the life of the applicable franchise agreements.
Other Operating Income. Other operating income consists primarily of breakage income associated with gift cards, and also includes fees earned from
management agreements, banquet-related guarantee and services revenue and other incidental guest fees. The Company’s accounting method for
recognizing gift card breakage revenue is the redemption method. Under the redemption method, gift card breakage revenue is recognized and the gift card
liability is derecognized for unredeemed gift cards in proportion to actual gift card redemptions. Gift card breakage rates are estimated based on historical
breakage rates, including breakage rates during previous economic recessions, while also considering any changes in redemption patterns as a result of the
current economic environment.
Deferred Revenue. Deferred revenue primarily includes (1) the Company’s liability for gift cards that have been sold but not yet redeemed and (2) the
Company’s liability for franchise development and opening fees that will be recognized over the life of the applicable franchise agreements. When gift
cards are redeemed (typically within five years), the Company recognizes restaurant sales and reduces the deferred revenue liability. A portion of gift cards
redeemed are used by customers to pay for sales taxes and
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gratuities, neither of which results in Company restaurant sales. Company issued gift cards redeemed at franchisee-owned restaurants result in royaltybased franchise income and reduce the deferred revenue liability. The expected redemption value of gift cards represents the full consideration received for
all gift cards issued less the amount the Company has recognized as other operating income for gift cards that are not expected to be redeemed (gift card
breakage). The Company recognized gift card breakage revenue of $2.3 million in fiscal year 2020, $3.9 million in fiscal year 2019 and $2.9 million in
fiscal years 2018.
(m) International Revenues
The Company currently has 21 international franchisee-owned restaurants in Aruba, Canada, China, Hong Kong, Indonesia, Japan, Mexico, Singapore and
Taiwan. In accordance with its franchise agreements relating to these international restaurants, the Company receives royalty revenue from these
franchisees in U.S. dollars. Franchise fee revenues from international restaurants were $1.9 million, $2.9 million and $2.7 million in fiscal years 2020, 2019
and 2018, respectively.
(n) Rent
Certain of the Company’s operating leases contain predetermined fixed escalations of the minimum rent during the term of the lease. For these leases, the
Company recognizes the related rent expense on a straight-line basis over the life of the lease and records the difference between amounts charged to
operations and amounts paid as an operating lease right-of-use (ROU) asset.
Additionally, certain of the Company’s operating leases contain clauses that provide additional contingent rent based on a percentage of sales greater than
certain specified target amounts. The Company recognizes contingent rent expense prior to the achievement of the specified target that triggers the
contingent rent, provided achievement of that target is considered probable.
(o) Marketing and Advertising
Marketing and advertising expenses in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations include expenses related to advertising, online initiatives,
traditional public relations and consumer research. Advertising expenses were $2.9 million, $6.3 million and $6.8 million in fiscal years 2020, 2019 and
2018, respectively. Advertising costs are expensed as incurred.
(p) Insurance Liability
The Company maintains various policies for workers’ compensation, employee health, general liability and property damage. Pursuant to those policies,
the Company is responsible for losses up to certain limits. The Company records liabilities for the estimated exposure for aggregate losses below those
limits. The recorded liabilities are based on estimates of the ultimate costs to be incurred to settle known claims and claims incurred but not reported as of
the balance sheet date. The estimated liabilities are not discounted and are based on a number of assumptions and factors, including historical trends,
actuarial assumptions and economic conditions. Independent actuaries are used to develop estimates of the workers’ compensation, general and employee
health care liabilities.
(q) Stock-Based Compensation
The Company recognizes stock-based compensation in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 718, Compensation—Stock Compensation, (Topic 718). Stockbased compensation cost includes compensation cost for all share-based payments granted based on the grant date fair value estimated in accordance with
the provisions of Topic 718. Compensation cost is recognized on a straight-line basis over the requisite service period of each award. The Company does
not estimate forfeitures when recognizing compensation expense. Forfeitures are accounted for as they occur.
(r) Pre-Opening Costs
Pre-opening costs incurred with the opening of new restaurants are expensed as incurred. These costs include rent expense, wages, benefits, travel and
lodging for the training and opening management teams, and food, beverage and other restaurant operating expenses incurred prior to a restaurant opening
for business.
(s) Income Taxes
Income taxes are accounted for under the asset and liability method. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences
attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are
expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period that
includes the enactment date.
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The Company applies the provisions of FASB ASC Topic 740, Income Taxes (Topic 740). Topic 740 requires that a position taken or expected to be taken
in a tax return be recognized (or derecognized) in the financial statements when it is more likely than not that the position would be sustained upon
examination by tax authorities. A recognized tax position is then measured at the largest amount of benefit that is greater than 50% likely of being realized
upon ultimate settlement. The Company’s continuing practice is to recognize interest and penalties related to uncertain tax positions in income tax expense.
(t) Discontinued Operations
The Company accounts for its closed restaurants in accordance with the provisions of FASB ASC Topic 360, Property, Plant and Equipment. For fiscal years
2020, 2019 and 2018, all impairment charges, loss on disposal and remeasurement of lease liabilities along with restaurant sales, direct recurring costs and
expenses and income taxes attributable to restaurants classified as discontinued operations have been aggregated to a single caption entitled loss from
discontinued operations, net of tax benefit in the consolidated statements of operations for all periods presented. Cash flows from discontinued operations are
combined with the cash flows from continuing operations within each of the categories on our consolidated statements of cash flows.
(u) Earnings (Loss) Per Share
Basic earnings (loss) per share is calculated by dividing net income (loss) by the weighted average number of shares of common stock outstanding during
each period. Diluted earnings (loss) per share is calculated by dividing net income (loss) by the diluted weighted average shares of common stock
outstanding during each period. Potentially dilutive securities include shares of non-vested stock awards. Diluted earnings (loss) per share considers the
impact of potentially dilutive securities except in periods in which there is a loss because the inclusion of the potential common shares would have an
antidilutive effect. Stock awards are excluded from the calculation of diluted earnings (loss) per share in the event they are antidilutive.
(3) Franchisee Acquisition
On July 29, 2019, the Company completed the acquisition of substantially all of the assets of the MBR Franchise Acquisition restaurants for a cash
purchase price of $18.6 million. The acquisition was funded with borrowings under the Company’s senior credit facility. The results of operations,
financial position and cash flows of the MBR Franchise Acquisition restaurants are included in the Company’s consolidated financial statements as of the
date of the acquisition.
The assets and liabilities of the MBR Franchise Acquisition restaurants were recorded at their respective fair values as of the date of the acquisition.
The allocation of purchase price was as follows (in thousands):
Balances at
December 29, 2019
Current assets
Property and equipment
Goodwill
Franchise rights
Other intangibles
Total assets acquired
Current liabilities
Other liabilities
Total liabilities assumed
Net assets acquired

$

$

$
$
F-14

387
2,398
9,027
7,100
475
19,387
725
43
768
18,619

The goodwill for the MBR Franchise Acquisition is all deductible for federal income tax purposes. Goodwill was measured as the excess of the
consideration transferred over the net of the amounts assigned to identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed as of the acquisition date, and
includes the economic value of expected future cash flows not assigned to identifiable assets, efficiencies from combining the operations of the acquired
restaurants with other Company-owned restaurants and an assembled workforce. The goodwill for the MBR Franchise Acquisition, which is included with
the goodwill for the reporting unit identified as the steakhouse operating segment, will be reviewed for potential impairment annually or more frequently if
triggering events are detected. The determination of the acquisition date fair value of the franchise and territory rights was based on a multi-period excess
earnings approach and involved projected after-royalty future earnings discounted using a market discount rate, from which a contributory asset charge for
net working capital, property and equipment and assembled workforce was subtracted. During fiscal year 2020 $3.1 million in reacquired territory rights
were impaired. The remaining rights will be amortized over a weighted average term of 3.8 years, which reflects the remaining terms of the related
franchise agreements, not including renewal options. Property and equipment will be depreciated over a period of two to twenty years.
As a result of the acquisition and related integration efforts, the Company incurred expenses of approximately $536 thousand during the fiscal year 2019,
which are included in general and administrative expenses in the Company’s consolidated statements of operations. Pro-forma financial information
reflecting the impact of the MBR Franchise Acquisition for periods prior to the acquisition are not presented due to the immaterial impact of the financial
results of the MBR Franchise Acquisition on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.
(4) Leases
Effective December 31, 2018, the Company adopted Topic 842 using the modified retrospective method for all leases in effect at the date of adoption. This
new lease standard requires a lessee to recognize on the balance sheet a liability for future lease obligations and a corresponding operating lease ROU
asset. The guidance also requires certain qualitative and quantitative disclosures about the amount, timing and uncertainty of cash flows arising from
leases. The Company chose the effective date as its initial date of adoption. Consequently, the comparative information has not been restated and
continues to be reported under the accounting standards in effect for those periods.
The Company elected the package of practical expedients permitted under the transition guidance, which allowed the Company to carry forward prior
conclusions regarding lease identification, lease classification and initial indirect costs for existing leases. The Company did not elect the hindsight
practical expedient.
In addition to the recognition of a liability for future lease obligations and a corresponding ROU asset, upon adoption, the Company:
-

Derecognized existing deferred rent and tenant allowance balances totaling $25.4 million.

-

Derecognized existing assets related to below market leases of $758 thousand.

-

Derecognized existing deferred gains on previous sale-leaseback transactions of $1.8 million. The deferred gain associated with this change in
accounting was recognized through opening retained earnings as of December 31, 2018.

-

Recognized a retained earnings adjustment of $3.5 million related to the write-off of the ROU asset from a previously impaired Ruth’s Chris Steak
House restaurant.

-

Recognized $413 thousand of additional deferred income taxes from the previously mentioned adoption related equity adjustments.
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The Company did not experience material changes to either the consolidated statements of operations or the consolidated statements of cash flows due to
the adoption of Topic 842. The following table summarizes the impacts of adopting Topic 842 on the Company’s condensed consolidated balance sheet as
of December 31, 2018 (in thousands):
December 30,

Adjustments Due

2018

to the Adoption

December 31,

As Reported

of ASC 842

2018

Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, less allowance for doubtful accounts
Inventory
Prepaid expenses and other
Total current assets
Property and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation
Operating lease right of use assets
Goodwill
Franchise rights, net of accumulated amortization
Other intangibles, net of accumulated amortization
Deferred income taxes
Other assets
Total assets

$

$

5,062
19,476
9,296
2,528
36,362
125,991
—
36,522
44,919
4,862
5,353
604
254,613

$

10,273
19,475
10,535
48,370
—
6,619
95,272
41,000
—
23,692
2,680
1,837
164,481

$

$

—
812
—
—
812
—
166,040
—
—
(758)
413
—
166,507

$

—
—
—
—
16,707
(1,698)
15,009
—
178,256
(23,692)
—
(1,805)
167,768

$

$

5,062
20,288
9,296
2,528
37,174
125,991
166,040
36,522
44,919
4,104
5,766
604
421,120

Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued payroll
Accrued expenses
Deferred revenue
Current operating lease liabilities
Other current liabilities
Total current liabilities
Long-term debt
Operating lease liabilities
Deferred rent
Unearned franchise fees
Other liabilities
Total liabilities
Commitments and contingencies (Note 12 to condensed consolidated balance sheet as of
December 31, 2018)
Shareholders' equity:
Common stock, par value $.01 per share; 100,000,000 shares authorized, 29,268,776 shares
issued and outstanding at December 30, 2018
Additional paid-in capital
Retained earnings
Treasury stock, at cost; 71,950 shares at December 30, 2018
Total shareholders' equity
Total liabilities and shareholders' equity

$

—

$

293
61,819
28,020
—
90,132
254,613

—

$

—
—
(1,261)
—
(1,261)
166,507

10,273
19,475
10,535
48,370
16,707
4,921
110,281
41,000
178,256
—
2,680
32
332,249
—

$

293
61,819
26,759
—
88,871
421,120

The Company leases restaurant facilities and equipment. The Company determines whether an arrangement is or contains a lease at contract
inception. The Company’s leases are all classified as operating leases, which are included as ROU assets and operating lease liabilities in the Company’s
consolidated balance sheet. Operating lease liabilities are recognized based on the present value of future minimum lease payments over the expected lease
term at commencement date. ROU assets are measured based on the operating lease liabilities adjusted for lease incentives, initial indirect costs and
impairments of operating lease assets. Minimum lease payments
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include only the fixed lease components of the agreements, as well as any variable rate payments that depend on an index, which are measured initially
using the index at the lease commencement dates. To determine the present value of future minimum lease payments, the Company estimates incremental
secured borrowing rates based on the information available at the lease commencement dates, or the transition date at adoption. The Company estimates its
incremental borrowing rates by determining the synthetic credit rating of the Company using quantitative and qualitative analysis and then adjusting the
synthetic credit rating to a collateralized credit rating. A spread curve is then developed using the U.S. corporate bond yield curve of the same credit rating
and the U.S. Treasury curve to determine the rate for different terms. The expected lease terms include options to extend when it is reasonably certain the
Company will exercise the options up to a total term of 20 years. For financial reporting purposes, minimum rent payments are expensed on a straight-line
basis over the lives of the leases. Additionally, incentives received from landlords used to fund leasehold improvements reduce the ROU assets related to
those leases and are amortized as reductions to rent expense over the lives of the leases. Variable lease payments that do not depend on a rate or index,
payments associated with non-lease components and short-term rentals (leases with terms less than 12 months) are expensed as incurred.
On April 10, 2020, the FASB issued a staff Q&A (the “Staff Q&A”) to provide guidance on its remarks at the April 8, 2020 Board meeting about
accounting for rent concessions resulting from the COVID-19 pandemic. The Staff Q&A affirmed the discussion at the April 8, 2020 meeting by allowing
entities to forgo performing the lease-by-lease legal analysis to determine whether contractual provisions in an existing lease agreement provide
enforceable rights and obligations related to lease concessions as long as the concessions are related to COVID-19 and the changes to the lease do not result
in a substantial increase in the rights of the lessor or the obligations of the lessee. In addition, the Staff Q&A affirmed that entities may make an election to
account for eligible concessions, regardless of their form, either by (1) applying the modification framework for these concessions in accordance with
Topic 842 or (2) accounting for the concessions as if they were made under the enforceable rights included in the original agreement.
Due to the impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic, the Company initiated negotiations with its landlords to modify its restaurant lease agreements. During the
fiscal year 2020, the Company amended 41 leases and terminated eight leases. Where applicable, the Company has elected to account for eligible lease
concessions as if they were made under the enforceable rights included in the original agreement pursuant to the Staff Q&A. The Company has an
immaterial amount of deferred rent amounts that will come due outside of what would have been normal course as a result of the lease agreements that
were modified in fiscal year 2020.
At December 27, 2020, all of the Company-owned Ruth’s Chris Steak House restaurants operated in leased premises, with the exception of the restaurant in
Ft. Lauderdale, FL, which is an owned property, and the restaurants in Anaheim, CA, Lake Mary, FL Princeton, NJ and South Barrington, IL, which
operate on leased land. The leases generally provide for minimum annual rental payments with scheduled minimum rent payments increases during the
terms of the leases. Certain leases also provide for rent deferral during the initial term, lease incentives in the form of tenant allowances to fund leasehold
improvements, and/or contingent rent provisions based on the sales at the underlying restaurants. Most of the Company’s restaurant leases have remaining
lease terms of 1 year to 20 years, some of which include options to extend the leases for 5 years or more. The Company’s lease agreements do not contain
any material residual value guarantees or material restrictive covenants. The weighted average term and discount rate for operating leases is 13.2 years and
5.2%, respectively.
The components of lease expense are as follows (in thousands):
Fiscal Year Ended
Classification

Operating lease cost
Variable lease cost
Total lease cost

December 27, 2020

Restaurant operating expenses and
General and administrative costs
Restaurant operating expenses and
General and administrative costs
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December 29, 2019

$

27,636

$

27,141

$

9,358
36,994

$

10,736
37,877

As of December 27, 2020, maturities of lease liabilities are summarized as follows (in thousands):
Company Total

2021
2022
2023
2024
2025
Thereafter

$

33,162
26,631
24,742
24,380
22,951
191,960
323,826
(93,318)
230,508

Imputed interest
$
Supplemental cash flow information related to leases was as follows (in thousands):
Fiscal Year Ended
December 27, 2020

Cash paid for amounts included in the measurement of lease liabilities:
Operating cash flows from operating leases
Right-of-use assets obtained in exchange for lease obligations:
Operating leases

December 28, 2019

$

26,368

$

26,660

$

4,659

$

56,608

Additionally, as of December 27,2020, the Company has executed five leases for new Ruth’s Chris Steak House Restaurant locations with undiscounted
fixed payments over the initial term of $22.9 million. Three of these leases have commenced as the landlord made the properties available to the
Company. The remaining two leases will commence when the landlords make the properties available to the Company. These leases are expected to
commence during the next 24 months. All of the signed leases are expected to have an economic lease term of 20 years. The Company will assess the
reasonably certain lease term at the lease commencement date.
The Company previously operated eighteen Mitchell’s Fish Markets and three Mitchell’s/Cameron’s Steakhouse restaurants (collectively, the Mitchell’s
Restaurants). The sale of the Mitchell’s Restaurants to Landry’s, Inc. and Mitchell’s Entertainment, Inc., an affiliate of Landry’s Inc. (together with
Landry’s Inc., Landry’s) closed on January 21, 2015. The assets sold consisted primarily of leasehold interests, leasehold improvements, restaurant
equipment and furnishings, inventory, and related intangible assets, including brand names and trademarks associated with the 21 Mitchell’s Restaurants.
Pursuant to the terms of the Agreement, upon closing of the sale of the Mitchell’s Restaurants, Landry’s assumed the lease obligations of the Mitchell’s
Restaurants. The Company guaranteed Landry’s lease obligations aggregating $22.7 million under five of the Mitchell’s Restaurants’ leases which extend
until the leases terminate which may continue into 2040, including remaining lease options. The Company did not record a financial accounting liability
for the lease guarantees, because the likelihood of Landry’s defaulting on the lease agreements was deemed to be remote. Separate from the purchase
agreement, Landry’s has agreed to indemnify the Company in the event of a default under any of the leases. The above tables do not include potential lease
obligations for the Mitchell’s Restaurants.
(5) Revenue
The Company adopted Topic 606 with an initial date of application of January 1, 2018. As a result, the Company changed its accounting policy for revenue
recognition. The Company applied Topic 606 using the cumulative effect method to contracts that were not completed at January 1, 2018, which resulted
in the recognition of the cumulative effect of initially adopting Topic 606 as an adjustment to the opening balance of shareholders’ equity at January 1,
2018.
In the following tables, the Company’s revenue is disaggregated by major component for each category on the consolidated statements of operations (in
thousands).
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52 Weeks Ended December 27, 2020:
Restaurant sales
Franchise income
Other operating income
Total revenue

52 Weeks Ended December 29, 2019:
Restaurant sales
Franchise income
Other operating income
Total revenue

52 Weeks Ended December 30, 2018:
Restaurant sales
Franchise income
Other operating income
Total revenue

$

$

$

$

$

$

Domestic
260,763
9,880
5,248
275,891

Domestic
441,361
15,004
8,786
465,151

Domestic
427,433
15,194
6,982
449,609

International
$

—
1,857
—
1,857

$

International
$

—
2,875
—
2,875

$

International
$

—
2,725
—
2,725

$

Total Revenue
260,763
11,737
5,248
$
277,748
$

Total Revenue
441,361
17,879
8,786
$
468,026
$

Total Revenue
427,433
17,919
6,982
$
452,334
$

The following table provides information about receivables and deferred revenue liabilities from contracts with customers (in thousands).
December 27,
December 29,
2020
2019
Accounts receivable, less allowance for doubtful accounts 2020 - $322; 2019 - $241
$
16,578
$
19,615
Deferred revenue

$

59,030

$

52,856

Unearned franchise fees

$

2,186

$

2,489

Significant changes in the deferred revenue balance and the unearned franchise fees balance during the fifty-two weeks of fiscal years 2020 and 2019 are
presented in the following table (in thousands).
Deferred
Unearned
Revenue
Franchise Fees
Balance at December 30, 2018
$
48,370 $
2,680
Decreases in the beginning balance from gift card redemptions
(30,970)
—
Increases due to proceeds received, excluding amounts recognized during the
period
34,903
—
MBR Franchisee Acquisition assumed liability, excluding amounts recognized
during the period
563
—
Decreases due to recognition of franchise development and opening fees
—
(191)
Other
(10)
—
Balance at December 29, 2019
52,856
2,489
Decreases in the beginning balance from gift card redemptions
(24,579)
—
Increases due to proceeds received, excluding amounts recognized during the
period
30,365
—
Decreases due to recognition of franchise development and opening fees
—
(303)
Other
388
—
Balance at December 27, 2020
$
59,030 $
2,186
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The projected recognition of revenue related to deferred franchise development and opening fees is as follows (in thousands).
Balance as
of
December
27, 2020
$
2,186

Franchise development and opening fees

Fiscal
Year 2021
$
231

Fiscal
Years
20232025
$
686

Fiscal
Year 2022
$
231

More
Than 5
Years
$ 1,038

(6) Fair Value Measurements
Fair value is defined under FASB ASC Topic 820, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures (Topic 820), as the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in the principal or most advantageous market in an orderly transaction between market participants on the measurement
date. Topic 820 also establishes a three-level hierarchy, which requires an entity to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of
unobservable inputs when measuring fair value.
The valuation hierarchy is based upon the transparency of inputs to the valuation of an asset or liability on the measurement date. The three levels of inputs
are:
•

Level 1—quoted prices (unadjusted) for an identical asset or liability in an active market.

•

Level 2—quoted prices for a similar asset or liability in an active market or model-derived valuations in which all significant inputs are observable
for substantially the full term of the asset or liability.

•

Level 3—unobservable and significant to the fair value measurement of the asset or liability.

The following were used to estimate the fair value of each class of financial instruments:
•

The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents, receivables, accounts payable and accrued expenses and other current liabilities are a reasonable
estimate of their fair values due to their short duration.

•

Borrowings under the senior credit facility as of December 27, 2020 and December 29, 2019 have variable interest rates that reflect currently
available terms and conditions for similar debt. The carrying amount of this debt is a reasonable estimate of its fair value (Level 2).

During fiscal year 2020, primarily due to the impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic and certain permanent restaurant closures, the Company determined that
triggering events had occurred requiring an impairment evaluation of long-lived and inventory assets. In fiscal year 2020, the Company recorded $12.7
million of impairment losses related to long-lived assets at thirteen restaurant locations, $711 thousand of impairment losses related to inventory at nine
closed restaurants and a $3.1 million impairment loss related to territory rights. The impairments of long-lived assets and territory rights were measured
based on the amount by which the carrying amount of the assets exceeded fair value. Fair value was estimated based on both the market and income
approaches utilizing market participant assumptions reflecting all available information as of the balance sheet date. The impairment losses are included in
the loss on impairment caption in the accompanying condensed consolidated statement of operations. See Note 2(j) for a description of the valuation
techniques used to measure fair value of long-lived assets, as well as information used to develop the inputs to the fair value measurements.
The Company’s non-financial assets measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis as of December 27, 2020 were as follows (in thousands):
Significant Other
Observable Inputs
(Level 2)

Fair Value as of
December 27, 2020

Long-lived assets
Territory rights

Significant
Unobservable Inputs
(Level 3)

Total Losses on
Impairment

$

1,708

$

1,708

$

—

$

12,736

$

—

$

—

$

—

$

3,101

The Company did not have any non-financial assets measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis as of the end of fiscal year 2019.
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(7) Franchise Rights and Goodwill
In accordance with FASB ASC Topic 350, goodwill and owned franchise rights with indefinite useful lives must be reviewed for potential impairment
annually and when triggering events are detected. The Company performed its annual impairment test of its goodwill and franchise rights as of November
29, 2020 using a qualitative assessment. Using the qualitative approach, the Company evaluated factors, including but not limited to, recent financial
performance; forecasts for future cash flows; the Company’s stock price and market capitalization; recent impairment tests; legal factors; the business
climate; and the competitive environment. Based on the results of the qualitative assessment, the Company determined that it is not more likely than not
that the carrying values of goodwill and franchise rights exceed the fair values. During the first quarter of fiscal year 2020, primarily due to the impacts of
the COVID-19 pandemic, the Company determined that a triggering event had occurred requiring an impairment evaluation of its franchise rights and
goodwill. After performing the impairment evaluation, the Company determined there was no impairment of goodwill and franchise rights with indefinite
lives in the first quarter of fiscal year 2020.
If the qualitative assessment is not performed, or if the Company determines that it is not more likely than not that the fair values of the intangible assets
exceed the carrying values, then the Company performs the following analysis for franchise rights and goodwill to measure fair values.
The financial statement carrying values of the Company’s franchise rights and other intangible assets were as follows (amounts in thousands):
Weighted Average
Amortization Period
Amortizing intangible assets:
Franchise rights
Lease assets
Other assets

5.7 yrs
9.9 yrs
1.9 yrs

Gross Carrying
Value
$

18,818
2,000
491
21,309

Indefinite-lived intangible assets:
Franchise rights
Liquor licenses
Other assets
Total intangible assets

Accumulated
Amortization
$

32,200
3,074
118
35,392
56,701

$

$

(6,534)
(1,167)
(402)
(8,103)
(8,103)

Net Carrying
Value
$

12,284
833
89
13,206
32,200
3,074
118
35,392
48,598

$

Aggregate amortization expense for amortizing intangible assets was $2.5 million for the fiscal year 2020, $2.2 million for the fiscal year 2019 and $2.1
million for the fiscal year 2018. Estimated amortization expense for the next five years is: $2.4 million in fiscal years 2021 and 2022, $2.3 million in fiscal
year 2023, $2.2 million in fiscal year 2024 and $1.6 million in fiscal year 2025.
The financial statement carrying values of the Company’s goodwill was as follows (amounts in thousands):
Gross Goodwill

Accumulated Goodwill
Impairment Losses

Net Carrying Value of
Goodwill

Balance as of December 29, 2019

$

56,107

$

(10,558)

$

45,549

Balance as of December 27, 2020

$

56,107

$

(10,558)

$

45,549
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(8) Property and Equipment, net
The Company recognized $19.5 million, $19.1 million and $16.5 million in depreciation expense during fiscal years 2020, 2019 and 2018, respectively.
Property and equipment consist of the following (amounts in thousands):
December 27,
2020

Land
Building and building improvements
Equipment
Computer equipment
Furniture and fixtures
Leasehold improvements
Construction-in-progress

$

Less accumulated depreciation
$

December 29,
2019

616 $
25,503
41,771
16,500
26,076
181,206
5,492
297,164
(177,277)
119,887 $

616
25,477
44,227
16,472
27,758
192,096
10,161
316,807
(173,845)
142,962

(9) Long-term Debt
Long-term debt consists of the following (amounts in thousands):
December 27,
2020

Senior Credit Facility:
Revolving credit facility
Less current maturities

$
$

115,000
—
115,000

December 29,
2019

$
$

64,000
—
64,000

As of December 27, 2020, prior to the Sixth Amendment (as defined and described below), the Company had $115.0 million of outstanding indebtedness
under its senior credit facility with approximately $201 thousand of borrowings available, net of outstanding letters of credit of approximately $4.8 million.
As of December 27, 2020, the weighted average interest rate on the Company’s outstanding debt was 3.8% and the weighted average interest rate on our
outstanding letters of credit was 2.9%. In addition, the commitment fee on the daily unused average portion of the Company’s senior credit facility was
0.4%.
On February 2, 2017, the Company’s senior credit facility is available pursuant to a credit agreement entered into with Wells Fargo Bank, National
Association as administrative agent, and certain other lenders (as amended, as of the end of fiscal year 2020, the “Credit Agreement”). The Credit
Agreement provides for a revolving credit facility of $120.0 million with a $5.0 million subfacility of letters of credit and a $5.0 million subfacility for
swingline loans. The Credit Agreement has a maturity date of February 2, 2023.
At the Company’s option, revolving loans may bear interest at (i) LIBOR, plus an applicable margin or (ii) the highest of (a) the rate publicly announced by
Wells Fargo as its prime rate, (b) the average published federal funds rate in effect on such day plus 0.50% and (c) one month LIBOR plus 1.00%, plus an
applicable margin (the rate described in this clause (ii) prior to adding the applicable margin, the “Base Rate”). The applicable margin is based on the
Company’s actual leverage ratio as defined in the Credit Agreement (“Consolidated Leverage Ratio”), ranging (a) from 1.50% to 2.50% above the
applicable LIBOR rate or (b) 0.50% to 1.50% above the applicable Base Rate. From May 7, 2020, the date of the Third Amendment to the Credit
Agreement (the “Third Amendment”), until the Calculation Date for the fiscal quarter ending March 28, 2021, interest rates on loans under the Credit
Agreement are 2.75% and 1.75% above the LIBOR Rate and Base Rate, respectively, and the fee for the daily unused availability under the revolving credit
facility is 0.40%. Thereafter, interest rate margins and the fee for the unused commitment will be calculated based on the Consolidated Leverage Ratio in
accordance with the Credit Agreement. The term “Calculation Date” means the date five (5) business days after the day on which the Company provides a
compliance certificate required for its most recently ended fiscal quarter.
The Credit Agreement contains customary representations and affirmative and negative covenants (including limitations on indebtedness and liens) as well
as financial covenants, as described below, requiring a minimum fixed coverage charge ratio as defined in the Credit Agreement (“Fixed Charge Coverage
Ratio”) limiting the Company’s Consolidated Leverage Ratio and requiring the Company to hold a certain specified amount of cash. The Credit
Agreement also contains events of default customary for credit facilities of this type (with customary grace periods, as applicable), including nonpayment
of principal or interest when due; material incorrectness of representations and warranties when made; breach of covenants; bankruptcy and insolvency;
unsatisfied ERISA
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obligations; unstayed material judgment beyond specified periods; default under other material indebtedness; and certain changes of control of the
Company. If any event of default occurs and is not cured within the applicable grace period or waived, the outstanding loans may be accelerated by lenders
holding a majority of the commitments and the lenders’ commitments may be terminated. The obligations under the Credit Agreement are guaranteed by
certain of the Company’s subsidiaries and are secured by a lien on substantially all of the Company’s personal property assets other than any equity interest
in current and future subsidiaries of the Company.
Among the covenant obligations with which the Company must comply, the Credit Agreement requires the Company to comply with the following:
•

Minimum aggregate cash holding requirements through March 2021 in an amount equal to the following amount for each month set forth below:
October 2020
November 2020
December 2020
January 2021
February 2021
March 2021

$44,000,000
$44,000,000
$53,000,000
$55,000,000
$56,000,000
$58,000,000

•

Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio of at least 1.25 to 1.00. The Third Amendment waived the requirement to maintain any Fixed Charge Coverage
Ratio for the remainder of fiscal year 2020 but, commencing with the fiscal quarter ending March 28, 2021, requires that the Company maintain a
Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio of not less than 1.25 to 1.00 on an annualized basis, which will exclude the impact of fiscal year 2020. Under the
Third Amendment, the Company is limited in its ability to complete acquisitions until it can demonstrate compliance with the minimum Fixed
Charge Coverage Charge Ratio following the end of the fiscal quarter ending March 28, 2021.

•

Consolidated Leverage Ratio of not more than 2.75 to 1.00. The Third Amendment waived any Consolidated Leverage Ratio requirement for the
remainder of fiscal year 2020 but, commencing with the fiscal quarter ending March 28, 2021, requires a Consolidated Leverage Ratio based on
annualized calculations, which will exclude the impact of fiscal year 2020, not to exceed the following thresholds for the periods indicated:
Period
The last day of the first Fiscal Quarter of the 2021 Fiscal Year
The last day of the second Fiscal Quarter of the 2021 Fiscal
Year
The last day of the third Fiscal Quarter of the 2021 Fiscal Year
The last day of the fourth Fiscal Quarter of the 2021 Fiscal
Year and thereafter

Maximum Ratio
5.00 to 1.00
4.50 to 1.00
4.00 to 1.00
3.00 to 1.00
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Under the Credit Agreement, the Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio and Consolidated Leverage Ratio requirements remain in effect through maturity of the
loan on February 2, 2023 but the minimum cash holding requirement ends in March 2021. The Credit Agreement allows for non-maintenance capital
expenditures when the Consolidated Leverage Ratio is 2.50 to 1.00 or greater in an amount not to exceed 75% of the amount by which Consolidated
EBITDA earned during the immediately preceding fiscal quarter exceeds $7.5 million (“Excess EBITDA”). The Company and its subsidiaries may make
non-maintenance capital expenditures with Excess EBITDA at any time after such Excess EBITDA is earned until the Consolidated Leverage Ratio has
been reduced to less than 2.50 to 1.00. The Credit Agreement provides that the Company and its subsidiaries may make capital expenditures in any fiscal
year in an amount equal to 75% of consolidated EBITDA for the immediately preceding fiscal year when the Consolidated Leverage Ratio is equal to or
greater than 1.50 to 1.00 but less than 2.50 to 1.00. When the Consolidated Leverage Ratio is less than 1.50 to 1.00, the Company and its subsidiaries may
make capital expenditures in an unlimited amount.
The Company currently is prohibited from paying any dividends or repurchasing any shares of its common stock if the Company cannot demonstrate that
its Consolidated Leverage Ratio is less than 2.50 to 1.00 (both before and after giving effect to the proposed repurchase or dividend), as determined
commencing with the second fiscal quarter of 2020.
During the second quarter of fiscal year 2020 the Company received and repaid $20.0 million in loans under the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic
Security Act (CARES Act).
Subsequent to the end of fiscal year 2020, the Company entered into a Sixth Amendment to Credit Agreement (“Sixth Amendment” and the Credit
Agreement as amended by the Sixth Amendment, the “Amended Credit Agreement”) which makes certain amendments to the Credit Agreement. The
Sixth Amendment provides for a $10.0 million commitment reduction from the $120.0 million available under the Credit Agreement so that the Amended
Credit Agreement will provide for a $110.0 revolving credit facility. The commitment reduction will be effective as of March 29, 2021, the first day of the
Company’s second fiscal quarter for 2021, and if on such date, extensions of credit under the Amended Credit Agreement exceed $110 million, the
Company will immediately repay the amount of such excess. Like the Credit Agreement, the Amended Credit Agreement has a $5.0 million subfacility of
letters of credit and a $5.0 million subfacility for swingline loans.
From January 28, 2021 until the Calculation Date for the fiscal quarter ending December 26, 2021, interest rates on loans under the Amended Credit
Agreement are 3.00% and 2.00% above the LIBOR Rate and Base Rate, respectively, and the fee for the daily unused availability under the revolving credit
facility is 0.40%. Thereafter, interest rate margins and the fee for the unused commitment will be calculated based on the Consolidated Leverage Ratio
(calculated on an actual rather than annualized basis).
Under the Credit Agreement, the Company had to have a Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio of at least 1.25 to 1.00 as of the Company’s fiscal quarter ending on
March 28, 2021. The Sixth Amendment waives such requirement but provides that commencing with the fiscal quarter ending June 27, 2021, the
Company must maintain a Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio of not less than 1.25 to 1.00. For purposes of required compliance with the 1.25 to 1.00 ratio,
Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio will be calculated on an annualized basis, which will exclude the impact of fiscal year 2020 and first fiscal quarter of 2021,
through the end of fiscal year 2021, and on an actual basis thereafter.
The Credit Agreement required the Company to have a Consolidated Leverage Ratio of not more than 5.00 to 1.00 as of the last day of the first fiscal
quarter of 2021. The Sixth Amendment waives such requirement but provides that commencing with the fiscal quarter ending June 27, 2021, the Company
must maintain a Consolidated Leverage Ratio not to exceed the following thresholds for the periods indicated:

Period
The last day of the second Fiscal Quarter of the 2021 Fiscal
Year
The last day of the third Fiscal Quarter of the 2021 Fiscal Year
The last day of the fourth Fiscal Quarter of the 2021 Fiscal
Year
The last day of the first Fiscal Quarter of the 2022 Fiscal Year
and thereafter

Maximum Ratio
5.00 to 1.00
4.50 to 1.00
4.00 to 1.00
3.00 to 1.00

For purposes of calculating required compliance with the maximum ratio, Consolidated Leverage Ratio will be calculated on an annualized basis, which
will exclude the impact of fiscal year 2020 and first fiscal quarter of 2021, through the end of fiscal year 2021, and on an actual basis thereafter.
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The Sixth Amendment requires the Company and its subsidiaries to meet minimum aggregate cash holding requirements through June 2021 in an amount
equal to the following amount for each month set forth below:
January 2021
February 2021
March 2021
April 2021
May 2021
June 2021

$50,000,000
$50,000,000
$50,000,000
$40,000,000
$40,000,000
$40,000,000

Pursuant to the Amended Credit Agreement, the Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio and Consolidated Leverage Ratio requirements remain in effect through
maturity of the loan on February 2, 2023 but the minimum cash holding requirement ends in June 2021. The Sixth Amendment limits non-maintenance
capital expenditures by the Company and its subsidiaries to no more than $5.0 million during fiscal year 2021. The Company and its subsidiaries may fund
such non-maintenance capital expenditures during fiscal year 2021 with (i) 75% of consolidated EBITDA earned during a fiscal quarter in excess of $7.5
million (“Capital Expenditure Basket Amount”) and/or (ii) net cash proceeds from the sale-leaseback of a real property located in Florida. If the Company
and its subsidiaries do not use the entire Capital Expenditure Basket Amount in any fiscal quarter, such unutilized amount may be carried forward to
increase the aggregate amount of consolidated capital expenditures permitted to be made until the Company can demonstrate that the Consolidated
Leverage Ratio is less than 2.50 to 1.00 for the period of four fiscal quarters most recently ended.
Beginning in fiscal year 2022, the Amended Credit Agreement provides that the Company and its subsidiaries may make capital expenditures in any fiscal
year in an amount equal to 75% of consolidated EBITDA for the immediately preceding fiscal year when the Consolidated Leverage Ratio is equal to or
greater than 1.50 to 1.0 but less than 2.50 to 1.0. When the Consolidated Leverage Ratio is less than 1.50 to 1.0, the Company and its subsidiaries may
make capital expenditures in an unlimited amount.
For purposes of determining to what extent capital expenditures may be made, the Consolidated Leverage Ratio will be calculated on an actual rather than
on an annualized basis.
(10) Franchise Operations
The Company franchises Ruth’s Chris Steak House restaurants. The Company executes franchise agreements for each franchisee-owned restaurant, which
sets out the terms of its arrangement with the franchisee. The franchise agreements typically require the franchisee to pay an initial, non-refundable fee and
continuing fees based upon a percentage of sales. The Company collects ongoing royalties of 5% of sales at franchisee-owned restaurants plus a 1%
advertising fee applied to national advertising expenditures. The Company recognizes sales-based royalties when the royalties are due from the franchisee
on a monthly basis. These ongoing royalties are reflected in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations as franchise income. The Company
records advertising contributions from franchisees as franchise income on the consolidated statement of operations. Due to the impacts of COVID-19 on
the franchise community sales-based franchise royalties and advertising fees were waived beginning in March 2020 until their dining rooms were reopened.
The Company executes area development agreements with franchisees that gives each franchisee exclusive rights to develop a specific number of
restaurants within a specified area. The Company receives a development fee at the time that an area development agreement is executed. The Company
now recognizes franchise development over the life of the applicable franchise agreements. The Company also executes separate, site-specific franchise
agreements for each restaurant developed by a franchisee under an area development agreement. The Company charges a site-specific fee at the time the
franchise agreement is executed. This fee is related to construction assistance and consulting regarding operating procedures and purchasing. These
services are performed prior to the restaurant opening. These site-specific franchise fees are recognized as revenue over the life of the applicable franchise
agreements where the franchisee is deemed to benefit from the franchise agreement evenly over the life of the agreement.
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The Company currently has 72 franchisee-owned Ruth’s Chris Steak House restaurants, including 21 international restaurants. One franchisee-owned
restaurant relocated in fiscal year 2020 from Clayton, MO to Chesterfield, MO in November. One new franchisee-owned restaurant opened in fiscal year
2019 in Chongqing, China in February. Two new franchisee-owned restaurants opened in fiscal year 2018 including Ft. Wayne, IN in May and a Markham,
Ontario, Canada location in November. One franchisee-owned Ruth’s Chris Steak House restaurant closed in fiscal year 2020 in Charleston, SC in March.
Three franchisee-owned Ruth’s Chris Steak House restaurants closed in fiscal year 2018 including Ridgeland, MS in March; Dubai, United Arab Emirates
in April and Panama City, Panama in October. In July 2019, the Company acquired the restaurants associated with the MBR Franchise Acquisition. No
franchisee-owned restaurants were sold or purchased during fiscal years 2020 or 2018. Franchise income includes opening and development fees and
income generated from existing franchisee-owned restaurants. The Company classifies franchise income separately in the consolidated statements of
operations (in thousands):
Fiscal Year
2019

2020

Franchise income:
Income from existing franchise locations
Opening, closing and development fee income
Total franchise income:

$
$

11,663
74
11,737

$
$

17,689
190
17,879

2018

$
$

17,500
419
17,919

(11) Commitments and Contingencies
The Company is subject to various claims, possible legal actions and other matters arising in the normal course of business. Management does not expect
disposition of these other matters to have a material adverse effect on the financial position, results of operations or liquidity of the Company. The
Company expenses legal fees as incurred.
The legislation and regulations related to tax and unclaimed property matters are complex and subject to varying interpretations by both government
authorities and taxpayers. The Company remits a variety of taxes and fees to various governmental authorities, including excise taxes, property taxes, sales
and use taxes, and payroll taxes. The taxes and fees remitted by the Company are subject to review and audit by the applicable governmental authorities
which could assert claims for additional assessments. Although management believes that the tax positions are reasonable and consequently there are no
accrued liabilities for claims which may be asserted, various taxing authorities may challenge certain of the positions taken by the Company which may
result in additional liability for taxes and interest. These tax positions are reviewed periodically based on the availability of new information, the lapsing of
applicable statutes of limitations, the conclusion of tax audits, the identification of new tax contingencies, or the rendering of relevant court decisions. An
unfavorable resolution of assessments by a governmental authority could negatively impact the Company’s results of operations and cash flows in future
periods.
The Company is subject to unclaimed or abandoned property (escheat) laws which require the Company to turn over to certain state governmental
authorities the property of others held by the Company that has been unclaimed for specified periods of time. The Company is subject to audit by
individual U.S. states with regard to its escheatment practices. The Company has a pending voluntary disclosure agreement with the State of Delaware to
resolve potential liability surrounding gift cards.
On February 26, 2018, a former restaurant hourly employee filed a class action lawsuit in the Superior Court of the State of California for the County of
Riverside, alleging that the Company violated the California Labor Code and California Business and Professions Code, by failing to pay minimum wages,
pay overtime wages, permit required meal and rest breaks and provide accurate wage statements, among other claims. On September 2, 2020, the class
action lawsuit was amended to include two additional proposed class representatives. This lawsuit seeks unspecified penalties under the California’s
Private Attorney’s General Act in addition to other monetary payments (Quiroz Guerrero, et al. v. Ruth’s Hospitality Group, Inc., et al.; Case No
RIC1804127). Although the ultimate outcome of this matter, including any possible loss, cannot be predicted or reasonably estimated at this time, we have
vigorously defended this matter and intend to continue doing so.
The Company currently buys a majority of its beef from two suppliers. Although there are a limited number of beef suppliers, management believes that
other suppliers could provide similar product on comparable terms. A change in suppliers, however, could cause supply shortages and a possible loss of
sales, which would affect operating results adversely.
The COVID-19 outbreak has affected and will continue to adversely affect our revenue, operating costs and liquidity, and we cannot predict how long the
outbreak will last or what other government responses may occur.
The COVID-19 outbreak has also adversely affected our ability to open new restaurants. Due to the uncertainty in the economy and to preserve liquidity
during the pandemic in fiscal year 2020, we paused all construction of new restaurants and major remodel projects
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at existing restaurants. These changes may materially adversely affect our ability to grow our business, particularly if these construction pauses are in place
for a significant amount of time.
As a result of the COVID-19 outbreak, we may be unable to secure additional liquidity. The COVID-19 outbreak is adversely affecting the availability of
liquidity generally in the credit markets, and there can be no guarantee that additional liquidity will be readily available or available on favorable terms,
especially the longer the COVID-19 outbreak lasts. The equity markets in the United States have been extremely volatile due to the COVID-19 outbreak,
and the Company’s stock price has fluctuated significantly. Continued volatility in the equity markets and our stock price could negatively impact our
ability to raise capital.
Our restaurant operations could be further disrupted if large numbers of our employees are diagnosed with COVID-19. If a significant percentage of our
workforce is unable to work, whether because of illness, quarantine, limitations on travel or other government restrictions in connection with COVID19, our operations may be negatively impacted, potentially materially adversely affecting our liquidity, financial condition or results of operations. Team
Members might seek and find other employment during the COVID-19 business interruption, which could materially adversely affect our ability to
properly staff and re-open our restaurants with experienced Team Members when the business interruptions caused by COVID-19 abate or end.
Our suppliers could be adversely impacted by the COVID-19 outbreak. If our suppliers’ employees are unable to work, whether because of illness,
quarantine, limitations on travel or other government restrictions in connection with COVID-19, we could face shortages of food items or other supplies at
our restaurants, and our operations and sales could be adversely impacted by such supply interruptions. We did not pay or delayed rent payments to many
of our landlords during the second, third and fourth quarters of fiscal year 2020. We have had discussions with our landlords to reduce or defer our rent
payments. With some rent payments being delayed, landlords may terminate our leases or could take other actions that restrict our ability to access or reopen our stores in a timely manner.
Additional government regulations or legislation as a result of COVID-19 in addition to decisions we have made and may make in the future relating to the
compensation of and benefit offerings for our restaurant Team Members could also have an adverse effect on our business. We cannot predict the types of
additional government regulations or legislation that may be passed relating to employee compensation or benefits as a result of the COVID-19 outbreak.
The Company could experience other potential impacts as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic that are not completely known at this time, including, but
not limited to, charges from potential adjustments to the carrying amount of goodwill, indefinite-lived intangibles and long-lived asset impairment charges.
Our actual results may differ materially from the Company’s current estimates as the scope of the COVID-19 pandemic evolves, depending largely though
not exclusively on the duration of the disruption to its business.
(12) Shareholders’ Equity
The holders of the Company’s common stock are entitled to one vote per share on all matters to be voted on by the Company’s shareholders.
In October 2019, our Board of Directors approved a new share repurchase program authorizing the Company to repurchase up to $60 million of
outstanding common stock from time to time. The new share repurchase program replaces the previous share repurchase program announced in October
2017, which has been terminated. During fiscal year 2020, 902,000 shares were purchased at an aggregate cost of $13.2 million or an average cost of
$14.66 per share under this new program. All repurchased shares were retired and cancelled. As of December 27, 2020, $41.6 million remained available
for future purchases under the new program. Share repurchases under both programs were accounted for under the cost method and all repurchased shares
were retired and cancelled. The excess of the purchase price over the par value of the shares was recorded as a reduction in additional paid-in capital.
The Company repurchased 902,000; 1,148,515; and 689,000 shares under all share repurchase programs during fiscal years 2020, 2019, and 2018,
respectively.
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The Company’s Board of Directors declared the following dividends during the periods presented (amounts in thousands, except per share amounts):
Declaration Date

Dividend per Share

Record Date

Total Amount

Payment Date

Fiscal Year 2020
February 21, 2020

$

0.15

March 6, 2020

$

4,428

March 20, 2020

Fiscal Year 2019
February 22, 2019
May 3, 2019
August 2, 2019
November 1, 2019

$
$
$
$

0.13
0.13
0.13
0.13

March 7, 2019
May 23, 2019
August 22, 2019
November 21, 2019

$
$
$
$

3,967
3,931
3,854
3,814

March 21, 2019
June 6, 2019
September 5, 2019
December 5, 2019

Fiscal Year 2018
February 21, 2018
May 4, 2018
August 10, 2018
November 2, 2018

$
$
$
$

0.11
0.11
0.11
0.11

March 8, 2018
May 24, 2018
August 23, 2018
November 15, 2018

$
$
$
$

3,390
3,397
3,389
3,351

March 22, 2018
June 7, 2018
September 6, 2018
November 29, 2018

As a result of the impacts to our business arising from the COVID-19 pandemic, the Company has suspended its share repurchase program and dividend
payments. Amendments to the Company’s Credit Agreement currently prohibit the payment of dividends and share repurchases until our Consolidated
Leverage Ratio (as defined in the Credit Agreement) is less than 2.50:1.00 times Bank Adjusted EBITDA.
Under the Credit Agreement, restricted junior payments, which include cash dividend payments, repurchases of the Company’s equity securities and
payments and prepayments of subordinated indebtedness, made subsequent to February 2, 2017 are limited to $100.0 million if the Company’s
consolidated leverage ratio is greater than or equal to 2.00:1.00, and are not limited in amount if our consolidated leverage ratio is less than or equal to
2.00:1.00. During fiscal year 2020 the Company’s consolidated leverage ratio exceeded 2.00:1.00. As of the date of this Annual Report on Form 10-K,
$126.4 million in restricted junior payments have been made since February 2, 2017.
(13) Employee Benefit Plan
In 2000, the Company established a 401(k) and Profit Sharing Plan. The Company may make matching contributions in an amount determined by the
Board of Directors. In addition, the Company may contribute each period, at its discretion, an additional amount from profits. The Company matches the
employees’ contributions at year end. Employees vest in the Company’s contributions based upon their years of service. The Company’s expenses relating
to matching contributions were approximately $240 thousand, $357 thousand and $354 thousand for fiscal years 2020, 2019 and 2018, respectively.
(14) Incentive and Stock Option Plans
Long-Term Equity Incentive Plans
In connection with the initial public offering, the Company adopted the Ruth’s Chris Steak House, Inc. 2005 Long-Term Equity Incentive Plan (the 2005
Equity Incentive Plan), which allows the Company’s Board of Directors to grant stock options, restricted stock, restricted stock units, deferred stock units
and other equity-based awards to non-employee directors, officers, key employees and other key individuals performing services for the Company. The
restricted stock units are settled in shares upon vest. Initially, 2.4 million shares were authorized for issuance under the 2005 Equity Incentive Plan. The
2005 Equity Incentive Plan provides for granting of options to purchase shares of common stock at an exercise price not less than the fair value of the stock
on the date of grant. Options are exercisable, and restricted stock vests, at various periods ranging from one to five years from date of grant. Effective
May 22, 2008, the 2005 Equity Incentive Plan was amended, with stockholder approval, to increase the number of shares authorized for issuance under the
plan by 1.5 million shares. The Amended and Restated 2005 Equity Incentive Plan was adopted on October 26, 2012, and the number of shares authorized
for issuance under the Amended and Restated 2005 Long-Term Equity Incentive Plan was increased by 2.0 million shares at the 2013 annual meeting of
stockholders. On May 15, 2018, the Company’s stockholders approved a new 2018 Omnibus Incentive Plan (the 2018 Equity Incentive Plan) which
replaces the Amended and Restated 2005 Equity Incentive Plan which expired on May 30, 2018. The 2018 Equity Incentive Plan authorizes 2.5 million
shares reserved for future grants. Awards that were previously awarded under the 2005 Equity Incentive Plan that are forfeited or cancelled in the future
will be made available for grant or issuance under the 2018 Equity Incentive Plan. The 1,649,394 shares that were authorized but unissued under the 2005
Equity Incentive Plan as of May 15, 2018 were cancelled. As of December 27, 2020, there are
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185,487 currently outstanding unvested restricted stock awards under the 2005 Equity Incentive Plan. Under the 2018 Equity Incentive Plan there are
559,027 shares of currently outstanding unvested restricted stock awards and units outstanding under the 2018 Equity Incentive Plan at December 27, 2020,
and 2.2 million shares available for future grants.
During fiscal year 2018, the Company issued 357,508 awards of restricted stock awards to certain non-employee directors, employees and executive
officers from available shares under the Amended and Restated 2005 Equity Incentive Plan and the 2018 Plan. The shares were issued with a grant date fair
market value equal to the closing price of the stock on the date of the grants. Of the 357,308 shares of restricted stock issued during 2018, 37,273 shares
will vest in fiscal year 2019, 100,255 shares will vest in fiscal year 2020, 97,648 shares will vest in fiscal year 2021, 41,666 shares will vest in fiscal year
2022 and 80,666 shares will vest in fiscal year 2023.
During fiscal year 2019, the Company issued 274,453 awards of restricted stock awards to certain employees and executive officers and 22,824 awards of
restricted stock units to non-employee directors from available shares under the 2018 Plan. The shares were issued with a grant date fair market value equal
to the closing price of the stock on the date of the grants. Of the 297,277 shares of restricted stock issued during 2019, 55,834 shares will vest in fiscal year
2020, 152,189 shares will vest in fiscal year 2021, 66,544 shares will vest in fiscal year 2022, and 22,710 shares will vest in fiscal year 2024.
During fiscal year 2020, the Company issued 251,934 awards of restricted stock awards and 31,108 performance stock awards (in the form of market stock
units) to certain employees and executive officers. The Company also issued 35,676 awards of restricted stock units to non-employee directors from
available shares under the 2018 Plan. The restricted stock award shares were issued with a grant date fair market value equal to the closing price of the
stock on the date of the grants. The performance stock award shares were issued with a grant date fair market value based on a Monte Carlo valuation
model. Of the 318,718 shares of restricted stock and market stock units issued during 2020, 66,493 shares will vest in fiscal year 2021, 100,932 shares will
vest in fiscal year 2022, 89,146 shares will vest in 2023, 15,554 will vest in fiscal year 2024 and 8,364 will vest in fiscal year 2025. Additionally, 38,229
shares of restricted stock granted during fiscal year 2020 were also fully vested in fiscal year 2020 in accordance with the modification of an existing
employment agreement. This modification resulted in an additional $1.4 million in stock compensation expense during fiscal year 2020.
The Company recorded $8.3 million, $8.2 million and $7.6 million in total stock option and restricted stock compensation expense during fiscal years
2020, 2019, and 2018, respectively that was classified primarily as general and administrative costs. The Company recognized $494 thousand in income tax
expense and $466 thousand and $634 thousand in income tax benefit related to stock-based compensation plans during fiscal years 2020, 2019, and 2018,
respectively.
A summary of the status of non-vested restricted stock and market stock units as of December 27, 2020 and changes during fiscal year 2020 is presented
below.
2020
Shares

Non-vested shares at beginning of year
Granted
Vested
Forfeited
Non-vested shares at end of year

922,422
319,656
(446,525)
(51,039)
744,514

Weighted-Average
Grant-Date Fair Value Per Share

$

$

23.13
17.51
9.87
22.75
22.22

As of December 27, 2020, there was $8.9 million of total unrecognized compensation cost related to 744,514 shares of non-vested restricted stock and
market stock units. This cost is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of approximately 1.4 years. The total grant date fair value of
restricted stock vested in fiscal years 2020, 2019, and 2018 was $4.4 million, $7.9 million and $7.7 million, respectively.
As of December 27, 2020, there was no activity and no unrecognized compensation cost related to non-vested stock options. The total intrinsic value of
options exercised in fiscal years 2019 and 2018 was $89 thousand and $231 thousand, respectively.
During fiscal years 2019 and 2018, the Company received $16 thousand and $32 thousand, respectively, in cash related to the exercise of options. The
exercise of shares was fulfilled from shares reserved for issuance under the Amended and Restated 2005 Equity Incentive Plan and resulted in an increase
in issued shares outstanding.
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(15) Income Taxes
Total income tax expense (benefit) for fiscal years 2020, 2019, and 2018 was (in thousands):
2020

Income tax expense (benefit) from continuing operations
Income tax expense (benefit) from discontinued operations
Total consolidated income tax expense (benefit)

$

2019

(7,910) $
—
(7,910) $

$

2018

8,173
—
8,173

$

8,247
26
8,273

$

Income tax expense (benefit) from continuing operations consists of the following (in thousands):
Current

Year ended December 27, 2020
U.S. Federal
State
Foreign

$

(4,061) $
(364)
203
(4,222) $

$
Year ended December 29, 2019
U.S. Federal
State
Foreign

$

$
Year ended December 30, 2018
U.S. Federal
State
Foreign

Deferred

$

$

4,350
2,685
301
7,336

$

4,851
2,723
333
7,907

$

Total

(4,986) $
1,298
—
(3,688) $

$

$

563
274
—
837

$

326
14
—
340

$

(9,047)
934
203
(7,910)
4,913
2,959
301
8,173

$

5,177
2,737
333
8,247

$

Income tax expense (benefit) differs from amounts computed by applying the federal statutory income tax rate to income from continuing operations before
income taxes as follows (in thousands):
2020

Income tax expense (benefit) at statutory rates
Increase (decrease) in income taxes resulting from:
State income taxes, net of federal benefit
Employment-related tax credits, net
Non-deductible executive compensation
Stock-based compensation
Impact of federal carryback under CARES Act
Change in valuation allowance
Other
Effective tax rate

2019

$

(6,973)

$

(1,410)
(2,827)
1,160
377
(1,026)
2,630
159
(7,910)
23.8%

2018

$

10,580

$

2,317
(4,976)
1,023
(392)
—
29
(408)
8,173
16.2%

$

10,468

$

1,886
(4,628)
1,234
(542)
—
419
(590)
8,247
16.5%

On March 27, 2020, the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security (CARES) Act was enacted. Intended to provide economic relief to those
impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic, the CARES Act include provisions, among others, addressing the carryback of net operating losses (NOL)s,
temporary modifications to the interest expense deduction limits, and technical amendments for qualified improvement property (QIP). Additionally, the
CARES Act provides for refundable employee retention payroll tax credits, and the deferral of the employer-paid portion of social security taxes. The
Company has taken and intends to take advantage of certain employment tax incentives contained in the Act, as well as the ability to carry-back to prior
years federal NOLs generated in fiscal year 2020.
The Employment-related tax credits line in the effective tax rate schedule above is comprised mainly of federal FICA tip credits which the Company
utilizes to reduce its periodic federal income tax expense. A restaurant company employer may claim a credit against the company’s federal income taxes
for FICA taxes paid on certain tip wages (the FICA tip credit). The credit against income tax liability is for the full amount of eligible FICA taxes.
Employers cannot deduct from taxable income the amount of FICA taxes taken into account in determining the credit.
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Income taxes applicable to discontinued operations are comprised of taxes calculated at the composite federal and state statutory tax rate times the pre-tax
loss. A reconciliation of the U.S. statutory tax rate to the effective tax rate applicable to discontinued operations for fiscal years 2020, 2019 and 2018
follows (in thousands):
2020

Income tax benefit at statutory rates
Increase (decrease) in income taxes resulting from:
State income taxes at state statutory rate, net of federal
impact
Effective tax rate

2019

2018

$

—

$

—

$

22

$

—
—

$

—
—

$

4
26

N/A

N/A

24.6%

The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to significant portions of the deferred tax assets are presented below (in thousands):
2020

Deferred tax assets:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Operating lease liabilities
Net state operating loss carryforwards
Tax credit carryforwards
Other
Total gross deferred tax assets
Less valuation allowance
Net deferred tax assets
Deferred tax liabilities:
Property and equipment
Intangible assets
Operating lease right of use assets
Total gross deferred tax liabilities
Net deferred tax assets

$

$

2019

11,855 $
55,862
4,736
4,241
61
76,755
(4,549)
72,206

9,171
60,473
3,598
450
60
73,752
(1,926)
71,826

(3,279)
(12,617)
(47,694)
(63,590)
8,616 $

(1,590)
(12,533)
(52,774)
(66,897)
4,929

In assessing the realizability of deferred tax assets, management considers whether it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred tax
assets will not be realized. The ultimate realization of deferred tax assets is dependent upon the generation of future taxable income during the periods in
which those temporary differences become deductible. Management considers the scheduled reversal of deferred tax liabilities and projected future taxable
income in making this assessment. Based on this evaluation, management has recorded a valuation allowance against the Company’s gross deferred tax
assets of $4.5 million and $1.9 million as of December 27, 2020 and December 29, 2019, respectively, related to certain state net operating loss and state
tax credit carryforwards that are not likely to be offset by future state taxable income. Based upon the level of historical taxable income and projections for
future taxable income over the periods in which the deferred tax assets are deductible, management believes it is more likely than not that the Company
will realize the benefits of the net deferred tax assets.
As of December 27, 2020, the Company has federal net operating loss carry-overs of $7.7 million, which it intends to carry-back to its five preceding tax
years, as permitted under the CARES Act. As of that date, the Company has federal tax credit carry-forwards of $3.8 million, which are available to offset
federal taxable income with the last of such benefit expiring in 2040.
As of December 27, 2020, the Company has state net operating loss carry-forwards of $89.1 million and state tax credit carry-forwards of $580 thousand,
which are available to offset state taxable income with the last of such benefit expiring in 2040.
As of December 27, 2020, the Company’s gross unrecognized tax benefits totaled approximately $291 thousand, of which $230 thousand, if recognized,
would impact the effective tax rate. The Company does not anticipate there will be any material changes in the unrecognized tax benefits within the next 12
months. Our continuing practice is to recognize interest and penalties related to uncertain tax positions in income tax expense.
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A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amount of unrecognized tax benefits follows (amounts in thousands):
Unrecognized tax benefits balance at December 29, 2019
Gross increases for tax positions of prior years
Unrecognized tax benefits balance at December 27, 2020

$

283
8
291

$

The Company files consolidated and separate income tax returns in the United States Federal jurisdiction and many state jurisdictions. With few
exceptions, the Company is no longer subject to U.S. Federal or state and local income tax examinations for fiscal years before 2016.
(16) Earnings (Loss) Per Share
Basic earnings (loss) per share is calculated by dividing net income (loss) by the weighted average number of shares of common stock outstanding during
each period. Diluted earnings (loss) per share is calculated by dividing net income (loss) by the diluted weighted average shares of common stock
outstanding during each period. Potentially dilutive securities include shares of non-vested stock awards. Diluted earnings (loss) per share considers the
impact of potentially dilutive securities except in periods in which there is a loss because the inclusion of the potential common shares would have an
antidilutive effect. Stock awards are excluded from the calculation of diluted earnings (loss) per share in the event they are antidilutive.
The following table sets forth the computation of basic earnings (loss) per common share (amounts in thousands, except share and per share data):
Fiscal Year
2020

Income (loss) from continuing operations
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of income taxes
Net income (loss)

$
$

Shares:
Weighted average number of common shares
outstanding - basic

2019

(25,294) $
—
(25,294) $

31,683,920

Basic earnings (loss) per common share:
Continuing operations
Discontinued operations
Basic earnings (loss) per common share

$
$
F-32

(0.80) $
—
(0.80) $

2018

42,206
—
42,206

$
$

28,998,382

1.46
—
1.46

41,600
80
41,680

29,659,461

$
$

1.40
0.01
1.41

Diluted earnings (loss) per share for fiscal years 2020, 2019 and 2018 excludes 162,043, 25,915 and 9,591restricted shares with no exercise price,
respectively, which were outstanding during the periods but were anti-dilutive. Fiscal year 2020 does not have any dilutive shares due to the fact that the
Company has a net loss.
The following table sets forth the computation of diluted earnings (loss) per share (amounts in thousands, except share and per share data):
Fiscal Year
2020

Income (loss) from continuing operations
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of income taxes
Net income (loss)

$
$

Shares:
Weighted average number of common shares
outstanding - basic
Dilutive shares
Weighted average number of common shares
outstanding - diluted
Diluted earnings (loss) per common share:
Continuing operations
Discontinued operations
Diluted earnings (loss) per common share

$
$

2019

(25,294) $
—
(25,294) $

2018

42,206
—
42,206

$
$

41,600
80
41,680

31,683,920
—

28,998,382
378,598

29,659,461
614,380

31,683,920

29,376,980

30,273,841

(0.80) $
—
(0.80) $

1.44
—
1.44

$
$

1.37
0.01
1.38

(17) Segment Information
The Company has two reportable segments – the Company-owned steakhouse segment and the franchise operations segment. The Company does not rely
on any major customers as a source of revenue.
F-33

The Company-owned Ruth’s Chris Steak House restaurants, all of which are located in North America, operate within the full-service dining industry,
providing similar products to similar customers. Revenues are derived principally from food and beverage sales. As of December 27, 2020, (i) the
Company-owned steakhouse restaurant segment included 74 Ruth’s Chris Steak House restaurants and three Ruth’s Chris Steak House restaurants
operating under a management agreement and (ii) the franchise operations segment included 72 franchisee-owned Ruth’s Chris Steak House restaurants.
Segment profits for the Company-owned steakhouse restaurant segments equal segment revenues less segment expenses. Segment revenues for the
Company-owned steakhouse restaurants include restaurant sales, management agreement income and other restaurant income. Gift card breakage revenue
is not allocated to operating segments. Not all operating expenses are allocated to operating segments. Segment expenses for the Company-owned
steakhouse segment include food and beverage costs and restaurant operating expenses. No other operating costs are allocated to the segments for the
purpose of determining segment profits because such costs are not directly related to the operation of individual restaurants. The accounting policies
applicable to each segment are consistent with the policies used to prepare the consolidated financial statements. The profit of the franchise operations
segment equals franchise income, which consists of franchise royalty fees and franchise opening fees. No costs are allocated to the franchise operations
segment. Segment information related to the Company’s two reportable business segments follows.

2020

Revenues:
Company-owned steakhouse restaurants
Franchise operations
Unallocated other revenue and revenue discounts
Total revenues

$

$

Segment profits:
Company-owned steakhouse restaurants
Franchise operations
Total segment profit

$

Unallocated operating income
Marketing and advertising expenses
General and administrative costs
Depreciation and amortization expenses
Pre-opening costs
Gain on lease modifications
Loss on impairment
Interest expense, net
Other income
Income (loss) from continuing operations before income tax
expense
Capital expenditures:
Company-owned steakhouse restaurants
Corporate assets
Total capital expenditures

263,731
11,737
2,280
277,748

$

37,480
11,737
49,217

$

$

2,280
(6,859)
(33,248)
(21,964)
(1,633)
206
(16,548)
(4,681)
26
$

$
$
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Fiscal Year
2019
(dollar amounts
in thousands)

446,257
17,879
3,890
468,026

$

103,945
17,879
121,824

$

$

3,890
(15,432)
(34,643)
(21,354)
(1,824)
—
—
(2,197)
115

(33,204) $

10,294
326
10,620

2018

$
$

431,536
17,919
2,879
452,334

105,166
17,919
123,085
2,879
(16,639)
(37,253)
(18,538)
(1,875)
—
—
(1,739)
(73)

50,379

$

49,847

30,026
1,642
31,668

$

29,433
2,474
31,907

$

December 27,
2020

Total assets:
Company-owned steakhouse restaurants
Franchise operations
Corporate assets - unallocated
Deferred income taxes - unallocated
Total assets

$

$

420,245
1,705
112,108
8,616
542,674

Fiscal Year
December 29,
2019
(dollar amounts
in thousands)

$

$

471,756
2,435
17,756
4,929
496,876

December 30,
2018

$

233,446
2,911
12,903
5,353
254,613

$

(18) Supplemental Consolidated Financial Statement Information

(a)

Accounts Receivable, net

Accounts receivable, net consists of the following (amounts in thousands):
December 27,
2020

Bank credit card receivables
Landlord contributions
Franchise fees
Trade receivables
Receivable from gift card issuances
Income tax receivable
Other
Allowance for doubtful accounts

$

$

December 29,
2019

6,643 $
4,108
1,600
662
7,845
3,371
402
(322)
24,309 $

7,669
3,565
2,354
1,065
8,802
—
555
(241)
23,769

(b) Other Assets
Other assets consist of the following (amounts in thousands):
December 27,
2020

Deposits
Deferred financing costs, net

$
$
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524
820
1,344

December 29,
2019

$
$

497
205
702

(19) Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)
Summarized unaudited quarterly financial data (amounts in thousands, except per share information):
Quarter Ended
June 28,
September 27,
2020
2020

March 29,
2020

Total revenues
Cost and expenses
Operating income (loss)
Interest expense, net
Other
Income (loss) from continuing operations before income
tax expense
Income tax expense (benefit)
Net income (loss)

$

108,536
(112,645)
(4,109)
(628)
33

$

(4,704)
(886)
(3,818)

Basic earnings (loss) per share:
Basic earnings (loss) per share

$

Diluted earnings (loss) per share:
Diluted earnings (loss) per share
Dividends declared per common share

$

$

(25,348)
(7,750)
(17,598)

(0.13)

$

$

(0.13)

$

$

0.15

$

$

119,741
(102,898)
16,843
(405)
2

$

63,423
(68,538)
(5,115)
(1,422)
(48)

$

(6,585)
(1,284)
(5,301)

(0.59)

$

(0.59)

$

—

$

$

$

110,243
(98,597)
11,646
(417)
13

Total

$

277,748
(306,297)
(28,549)
(4,681)
26

$

$

(33,204)
(7,910)
(25,294)

(0.15)

$

0.04

$

(0.80)

(0.15)

$

0.04

$

(0.80)

$

—

$

0.15

—

103,009
(97,438)
5,571
(638)
18

$

4,951
423
4,528

December 29,
2019

$

135,033
(116,633)
18,400
(737)
82

Total

$

468,026
(415,565)
52,461
(2,197)
115

$

16,440
2,529
13,911

Basic earnings per share:
Basic earnings per share

$

0.48

$

0.32

$

0.16

$

0.51

$

1.46

Diluted earnings per share:
Diluted earnings per share

$

0.47

$

0.31

$

0.16

$

0.50

$

1.44

Dividends declared per common share

$

0.13

$

0.13

$

0.13

$

0.13

$

0.52
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$

11,242
1,933
9,309

$

77,372
(72,637)
4,735
(1,340)
38
3,433
2,010
1,423

Quarter Ended
June 30,
September 29,
2019
2019

March 31,
2019

Total revenues
Cost and expenses
Operating income
Interest expense, net
Other
Income from continuing operations before income
tax expense
Income tax expense
Net income

28,417
(52,477)
(24,060)
(1,291)
3

December 27,
2020

$

17,745
3,287
14,458

$

50,379
8,173
42,206

Exhibit 10.29
SEPARATION, TRANSITION, AND RELEASE OF CLAIMS AGREEMENT
This Separation, Transition, and Release of Claims Agreement (the “Agreement”) is made as of the Agreement
Effective Date (as defined in Section 6 below) by and between Ruth’s Hospitality Group, Inc. (the “Company”) and Arne G.
Haak (“Mr. Haak”) (together, the “Parties”).
WHEREAS, the Company and Mr. Haak are parties to the Terms of Employment/Letter of Understanding and Salary
Continuation Agreement dated as of August 8, 2011 (the “Employment Agreement”), pursuant to which Mr. Haak currently
serves as Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer;
WHEREAS, Mr. Haak is separating from the Company and the Parties wish to establish mutually agreeable terms for
such separation and a smooth and orderly transition of his responsibilities as Chief Financial Officer to his successor;
WHEREAS, the Parties agree that the payments, benefits and rights set forth in this Agreement shall be the exclusive
payments, benefits and rights due to Mr. Haak, and the Parties acknowledge and agree that Mr. Haak shall not be eligible to
receive any other payments or benefits in connection with his separation from employment.
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements contained herein, and for other good
and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the Parties hereby agree as follows:
1.

Separation Date; Transition Period; Equity. Provided Mr. Haak signs and returns this Agreement on or before
November 26, 2020 and does not revoke his acceptance of this Agreement, the following terms shall apply:
a.

Mr. Haak’s effective date of separation will be March 15, 2021 (the “Separation Date”). As of the Separation
Date, Mr. Haak will resign from any and all positions he holds as of such date as an officer or employee of
the Company or any of its subsidiaries or affiliates, and further agrees to execute and deliver any documents
reasonably necessary to effectuate such resignations, as requested by the Company.

b.

Mr. Haak will, through November 29, 2020, continue to serve as Executive Vice President and Chief
Financial Officer pursuant to the terms of the Employment Agreement. As of November 30, 2020, Mr. Haak
will transition from his position as Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer to the role of
Strategic Advisor, and will provide transitional support to the successor Chief Financial Officer as the
Company’s CEO and Board of Directors deem appropriate. The period from November 30, 2020 through the
Separation Date will be a transition period (the “Transition Period”), during which Mr. Haak will use his best
efforts to professionally, timely and cooperatively perform his duties as Strategic
1

Advisor and will provide transitional support to the successor Chief Financial Officer, as well as such
additional transition duties as may be requested by and at the direction of the Chief Executive Officer and the
Board (the “Transition Duties”). During the Transition Period, Mr. Haak shall not engage in any business or
perform any services in any capacity that would, in the reasonable judgment of the Company, interfere with
the full and proper performance by Mr. Haak of his duties.
c.

As of November 29, 2020, the Employment Agreement will terminate and be of no further force or effect
other than Sections 8 and 9 thereof, which shall remain in full force and effect in accordance with their terms
(the “Surviving Sections”).
During the Transition Period, Mr. Haak will remain an employee of the Company, and will receive a base
salary at the annualized rate of $375,000, less all applicable taxes and withholdings, to be paid in accordance
with the Company’s regular payroll practices. Mr. Haak shall, during the Transition Period, continue to
participate in the Company’s benefit plans (pursuant to the terms and conditions of such plans).

d.

On his last day of employment, Mr. Haak shall be paid all unpaid base salary earned through such date,
including any amounts for accrued but unused vacation time (e.g., four (4) weeks less any vacation taken
from August 1, 2020 through his last day), and shall be reimbursed for any business expenses properly
incurred through such date for which he has sought reimbursement (together, the “Accrued
Obligations”). All salary payments from the Company will cease as of Mr. Haak’s last day of employment
and any benefits Mr. Haak had as of such date under Company-provided benefit plans, programs, or practices
will terminate, except as required by federal or state law and as set forth in Section 2, below.

e.

Pursuant to the 2020 Home Office Bonus Program for Ruth’s Hospitality Group, Inc. (the “2020 Bonus
Program”), to the extent FY2020 EBITDA is less than the prior year EBITDA, no bonus will be awarded for
FY2020 and Mr. Haak will not be entitled to receive any bonus compensation. However, due to the
extraordinary circumstances brought about by the COVID-19 pandemic, to the extent the Board of Directors
of the Company and/or the Compensation Committee implements an alternative discretionary bonus for its
executives for FY2020, Mr. Haak shall receive such a discretionary bonus, to be paid in an amount and
manner determined by the Compensation Committee, provided that any discretionary bonus awarded to Mr.
Haak for FY2020 shall be no less than the ratio of said discretionary bonus to current target bonus utilized in
the calculation of any FY2020 discretionary bonus awarded to other senior executives of the Company. If
Mr. Haak is not awarded a discretionary bonus for FY2020 pursuant to this section, or if the value of any
discretionary bonus for FY2020 that may be awarded to Mr. Haak is less than fifty percent (50%) of his 2019
bonus compensation, Mr. Haak shall be awarded an additional bonus amount such that his total bonus
compensation for FY2020 equals fifty percent (50%) of his 2019 bonus compensation, which bonus shall be
paid in a lump sum no later than
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March 15, 2021. For the avoidance of doubt, Mr. Haak shall not be eligible to receive any bonus amount for
FY2021.
2.

3.

Separation Benefits. Provided that Mr. Haak (i) has timely signed and returned this Agreement and has not revoked
his acceptance of this Agreement, (ii) signs and returns the Additional Release of Claims attached hereto as Attachment
A (the “Additional Release”) on, but not before, the Separation Date and does not revoke the Additional Release, (iii)
remains employed by the Company as a Strategic Advisor through the Separation Date, and (iv) complies with the
terms of this Agreement, Mr. Haak shall receive the following separation benefits (the “Separation Benefits”):
a.

Base Salary Compensation. The Company shall, between the Separation Date and the twelve (12)-month
anniversary thereof, pay to Mr. Haak a monthly payment of $31,250.00, less all applicable taxes and
withholdings (an amount equal in the aggregate to his prior twelve (12) months’ base salary).

b.

Restricted Stock. All restricted stock awards granted to Mr. Haak during his employment that are scheduled
to vest on or before March 15, 2022 shall become vested and free from forfeiture effective as of the
Separation Date. It is acknowledged and understood that any shares of restricted stock that do not become
vested pursuant to this Section shall be forfeited to the Company without any consideration and Mr. Haak
shall no longer have any rights with respect thereto.

c.

COBRA. Should Mr. Haak timely elect and be eligible to continue receiving group health insurance
pursuant to the provisions of the Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 1985, as amended
(“COBRA”), the Company will, until the twelve (12)-month anniversary of the Separation Date (the
“COBRA Contribution Period”), continue to pay the share of the premiums for such coverage to the same
extent it was paying such premiums on his behalf immediately prior to the Separation Date. The remaining
balance of any premium costs during the COBRA Contribution Period, and all premium costs thereafter, shall
be paid by Mr. Haak on a monthly basis for as long as, and to the extent that, he remains eligible for COBRA
continuation.

d.

Life Insurance. Should Mr. Haak timely convert his coverage under the company’s group life insurance
policy to an individual policy following the Separation Date, the Company shall pay Mr. Haak an amount
equal to the annual premium for said policy, less applicable taxes and withholdings, for the period March 15,
2021 through March 15, 2022.

e.

Automobile Allowance. The Company shall, until the twelve (12)-month anniversary of the Separation
Date, pay to Mr. Haak a monthly automobile allowance of $900.00, less all applicable taxes and
withholdings.

Release of Claims. In exchange for the consideration set forth in this Agreement, which Mr. Haak acknowledges he
would not otherwise be entitled to receive, Mr. Haak hereby
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fully, forever, irrevocably and unconditionally releases, remises and discharges the Company, its affiliates, subsidiaries,
parent companies, predecessors, and successors, and all of their respective past and present officers, directors,
stockholders, partners, members, employees, agents, representatives, plan administrators, attorneys, insurers and
fiduciaries (each in their individual and corporate capacities) (collectively, the “Released Parties”) from any and all
claims, charges, complaints, demands, actions, causes of action, suits, rights, debts, sums of money, costs, accounts,
reckonings, covenants, contracts, agreements, promises, doings, omissions, damages, executions, obligations, liabilities,
and expenses (including attorneys’ fees and costs), of every kind and nature that Mr. Haak ever had or now has against
any or all of the Released Parties up to the date on which Mr. Haak signs this Agreement, whether known or unknown,
including, but not limited to, any and all claims arising out of or relating to Mr. Haak’s employment with, separation
from, and/or ownership of securities of the Company, including, but not limited to, all claims under Title VII of the
Civil Rights Act of 1964, 42 U.S.C. § 2000e et seq., the Americans With Disabilities Act of 1990, 42 U.S.C. § 12101 et
seq., the Age Discrimination in Employment Act, 29 U.S.C. § 621 et seq., the Genetic Information Nondiscrimination
Act of 2008, 42 U.S.C. § 2000ff et seq., the Family and Medical Leave Act, 29 U.S.C. § 2601 et seq., the Worker
Adjustment and Retraining Notification Act (“WARN”), 29 U.S.C. § 2101 et seq., the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, 29
U.S.C. § 701 et seq., Executive Order 11246, Executive Order 11141, the Fair Credit Reporting Act, 15 U.S.C. § 1681
et seq., and the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 (“ERISA”), 29 U.S.C. § 1001 et seq., all as
amended; all claims arising out of the Florida Civil Rights Act of 1992, Fla. Stat. § 760.01 et seq., Fla. Stat. §§ 448.07
and 725.07 (Florida equal pay laws), Fla. Stat. § 250.481 (Florida military leave law), Fla. Stat. § 760.40 (Florida
genetic testing law), and Fla. Stat. § 448.101 et seq. (Florida anti-retaliation law), all as amended; all common law
claims including, but not limited to, actions in defamation, intentional infliction of emotional distress,
misrepresentation, fraud, wrongful discharge, and breach of contract (including, without limitation, all claims arising
out of or related to the Employment Agreement); all claims to any non-vested ownership interest in the Company or its
affiliates, contractual or otherwise; all state and federal whistleblower claims to the maximum extent permitted by law;
and any claim or damage arising out of Mr. Haak’s employment with and/or separation from the Company (including a
claim for retaliation) under any common law theory or any federal, state or local statute or ordinance not expressly
referenced above; provided, however, that this release of claims shall not (i) prevent Mr. Haak from filing a charge
with, cooperating with, or participating in any investigation or proceeding before, the Equal Employment Opportunity
Commission or a state fair employment practices agency (except that Mr. Haak acknowledges that he may not recover
any monetary benefits in connection with any such charge, investigation, or proceeding, and Mr. Haak further waives
any rights or claims to any payment, benefit, attorneys’ fees or other remedial relief in connection with any such
charge, investigation or proceeding), or (ii) deprive Mr. Haak of any rights Mr. Haak may have to be indemnified by the
Company as provided in any agreement between the Company and Mr. Haak, including, but not limited to, this
Agreement, or pursuant to the Company’s Certificate of Incorporation or By-Laws.
4.

Continuing Obligations. Mr. Haak acknowledges and reaffirms his continuing confidentiality, non-competition, and
non-solicitation obligations (the “Restrictive
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Covenant Obligations”), as set forth in the Surviving Sections, which survive his separation from employment and
remain in full force and effect.
5.

Non-Disparagement. Mr. Haak understands and agrees that, except as otherwise permitted by Section 12 below, he will
not, in public or private, make any false, disparaging, negative, critical, adverse, derogatory or defamatory statements,
whether orally or in writing, including online (including, without limitation, on any social media, networking, or
employer review site) or otherwise, to any person or entity, including, but not limited to, any media outlet, industry
group, key opinion leader, financial institution, or current or former employee, board member, consultant, shareholder,
client or customer of the Company, regarding the Company or any of the other Released Parties, or regarding the
Company’s business affairs, business prospects, or financial condition.

6.

Time for Consideration and Revocation. Mr. Haak acknowledges that he was initially presented with this Agreement
on November 5, 2020 (the “Receipt Date”). Mr. Haak understands that this Agreement shall be of no force or effect
unless he signs and returns this Agreement on or before November 26, 2020 and does not revoke his acceptance of this
Agreement within the seven day period after his execution (the eighth day following such execution, the “Agreement
Effective Date”). Mr. Haak further understands that he is not eligible to receive the Separation Benefits unless he timely
signs, returns, and does not revoke the Additional Release.

7.

Acknowledgements. Mr. Haak acknowledges that he has been given at least twenty-one (21) days from the Receipt
Date to consider this Agreement and the Additional Release (the “Consideration Period”), and that he is hereby advised
to consult with an attorney of his own choosing prior to signing this Agreement and the Additional Release. Mr. Haak
acknowledges that he is entering into this Agreement with full knowledge of his right to obtain such counsel, and that he
is entering into this Agreement and the Additional Release on a voluntary basis and has relied upon no promises or
representations by anyone except as contained in this document. Mr. Haak further acknowledges and agrees that any
changes made to this Agreement or any attachments hereto following his initial receipt of this Agreement on the
Receipt Date, whether material or immaterial, shall not re-start or affect in any manner the Consideration Period. Mr.
Haak understands that he may revoke this Agreement and the Additional Release for a period of seven (7) days after he
signs each document by notifying the Company in writing, and that neither this Agreement nor the Additional Release
shall be effective or enforceable until the expiration of the document’s respective seven (7) day revocation period. Mr.
Haak understands and agrees that by entering into this Agreement and Additional Release he will be waiving any and
all rights or claims he might have under the Age Discrimination in Employment Act, as amended by the Older Workers
Benefit Protection Act, and that he has received consideration beyond that to which he was previously entitled.

8.

Voluntary Assent. Mr. Haak affirms that no other promises or agreements of any kind have been made to or with him
by any person or entity whatsoever to cause him to sign this Agreement, and that he fully understands the meaning and
intent of this Agreement. Mr. Haak further states and represents that he has carefully read this Agreement,
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understands the contents herein, freely and voluntarily assents to all of the terms and conditions hereof, and signs his
name of his own free act.
9.

Dispute Resolution. This Agreement shall be interpreted and construed by the laws of the State of Florida, without
regard to conflict of laws provisions. Any dispute arising out of or relating to this Agreement shall be resolved by
arbitration held in Orange County, Florida and conducted in accordance with the rules then existing of the American
Arbitration Association (other than a dispute pertaining to the Restrictive Covenant Obligations, in which event a Party
may seek injunctive relief in a court of competent jurisdiction). The Company and Mr. Haak agree to select an
arbitrator with experience in employment law and executive compensation and benefits.

10.

Cooperation. Mr. Haak agrees that, through March 15, 2022, and to the extent permitted by law, he shall cooperate
fully with the Company in the investigation, defense or prosecution of any claims or actions which already have been
brought, are currently pending, or which may be brought in the future against the Company by a third party or by or on
behalf of the Company against any third party, whether before a state or federal court, any state or federal government
agency, or a mediator or arbitrator. Mr. Haak’s full cooperation in connection with such claims or actions shall include,
but not be limited to, being available to meet with the Company’s counsel, at reasonable times at locations designated
by the Company in Orange County, Florida or within 10 miles of Mr. Haak’s residence, to investigate or prepare the
Company’s claims or defenses, to prepare for trial or discovery or an administrative hearing, mediation, arbitration or
other proceeding, to provide any relevant information in his possession, and to act as a witness when requested by the
Company. In the event the Company requests Mr. Haak to travel outside the geographic limits set forth in this Section
10, the Company will promptly reimburse Mr. Haak for any travel expenses he incurs in connection with his
compliance with this Section 10. Mr. Haak further agrees that, to the extent permitted by law, he will notify the
Company promptly in the event that he is served with a subpoena (other than a subpoena issued by a government
agency), or in the event that he is asked to provide a third party (other than a government agency) with information
concerning any actual or potential complaint or claim against the Company.

11.

Indemnification. In the event Mr. Haak is made, or threatened to be made a party to any legal action or proceeding,
whether civil or criminal or administrative, by reason of the fact that Mr. Haak is, or was, an officer of the Company or
serves or served any other affiliate or subsidiary of the Company in any capacity at the request of the Company, Mr.
Haak shall be indemnified by the Company, and the Company shall pay Mr. Haak’s related expenses including, but not
limited to, attorneys’ fees and costs and travel expenses, when and as incurred, to the full extent permitted by the
General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware, if he acted in good faith and in a manner he believed to be in or not
opposed to the best interests of the Company and, in the case of any criminal proceeding, he had no reasonable cause to
believe his conduct was unlawful. In all cases, such payments shall be made prior to the end of the calendar year
following the year such expenses were incurred, or such sooner date as required to avoid penalties under Code Section
409.
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12.

Confidentiality. Mr. Haak understands and agrees that, except as otherwise permitted by Section 13 below, the
contents of the negotiations and discussions resulting in this Agreement shall be maintained as confidential by Mr.
Haak and his agents and representatives and shall not be disclosed except as otherwise agreed to in writing by the
Company and except to his immediate family, legal, financial and tax advisors, on the condition that any individuals so
informed must hold the above information in strict confidence.

13.

Scope of Disclosure Restrictions. Nothing in this Agreement or elsewhere (including, without limitation, in the
Surviving Sections) prohibits Mr. Haak from communicating with government agencies about possible violations of
federal, state, or local laws or otherwise providing information to government agencies, filing a complaint with
government agencies, or participating in government agency investigations or proceedings. Mr. Haak is not required to
notify the Company of any such communications; provided, however, that nothing herein authorizes the disclosure of
information Mr. Haak obtained through a communication that was subject to the attorney-client privilege. Further,
notwithstanding Mr. Haak’s confidentiality and nondisclosure obligations, Mr. Haak is hereby advised as follows
pursuant to the Defend Trade Secrets Act: “An individual shall not be held criminally or civilly liable under any Federal
or State trade secret law for the disclosure of a trade secret that (A) is made (i) in confidence to a Federal, State, or local
government official, either directly or indirectly, or to an attorney; and (ii) solely for the purpose of reporting or
investigating a suspected violation of law; or (B) is made in a complaint or other document filed in a lawsuit or other
proceeding, if such filing is made under seal. An individual who files a lawsuit for retaliation by an employer for
reporting a suspected violation of law may disclose the trade secret to the attorney of the individual and use the trade
secret information in the court proceeding, if the individual (A) files any document containing the trade secret under
seal; and (B) does not disclose the trade secret, except pursuant to court order.”

14.

Death. In the event Mr. Haak should die prior to the twelve (12) month anniversary of the Separation Date, the
Separation Benefits shall be paid to Mr. Haak’s spouse or, if Mr. Haak’s spouse predeceases him or they die together,
then to Mr. Haak’s estate, until the twelve (12) month anniversary of the Separation Date.

15.

Amendment and Waiver. This Agreement shall be binding upon the Parties and may not be modified in any manner,
except by an instrument in writing of concurrent or subsequent date signed by duly authorized representatives of the
Parties. This Agreement is binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of the Parties and their respective agents,
assigns, heirs, executors, administrators, personal representatives, and successors. No delay or omission by the
Company in exercising any right under this Agreement shall operate as a waiver of that or any other right. A waiver or
consent given by the Company on any one occasion shall be effective only in that instance and shall not be construed as
a bar to or waiver of any right on any other occasion.

16.

Validity. Should any provision of this Agreement be declared or be determined to be illegal or invalid, the validity of
the remaining parts, terms or provisions shall not be
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affected thereby and said illegal or invalid part, term or provision shall be deemed not to be a part of this Agreement.
17.

Nature of Agreement. Mr. Haak understands and agrees that this Agreement is a separation and transition agreement
and does not constitute an admission of liability or wrongdoing on the part of the Company. The Parties acknowledge
that this Agreement is a joint product and shall not be construed for or against any Party on the ground of sole
authorship.

18.

Entire Agreement. This Agreement sets forth the entire agreement between the Parties and fully supersedes any and all
prior agreements or understandings between them pertaining to the subject matter hereof, including the Employment
Agreement; provided, however, for the avoidance of doubt, that nothing in this Section 18 shall modify, cancel or
supersede the Surviving Sections (including the Restrictive Covenant Obligations), which shall remain in full force and
effect both during the Transition Period and following Mr. Haak’s separation from employment.

19.

Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in several counterparts, each of which shall be deemed
to be an original, but all of which together will constitute one and the same Agreement. Facsimile and
PDF signatures shall be deemed to be of equal force and effect as originals.

20.

Breach. Mr. Haak acknowledges and agrees that his compliance with his obligations under this
Agreement is a condition to the Company’s obligation to provide (or continue providing, as applicable)
the Severance Benefits. Mr. Haak understands and agrees that any material breach of his obligations
under this Agreement will immediately render the Company’s obligations hereunder null and void, the
Severance Benefits shall immediately cease, and Mr. Haak shall be obligated to immediately repay to the
Company the net amount of any Severance Benefits previously paid pursuant to this Agreement. For the
avoidance of doubt, neither Mr. Haak’s material breach of this Agreement nor the Company’s subsequent
termination of its obligations hereunder shall affect Mr. Haak’s release of claims against the Company
pursuant to Section 3 hereof. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, Mr. Haak shall not be
deemed in breach or material breach of this Agreement unless the Company has first provided Mr. Haak
with at least 30 calendar days’ written notice and opportunity to cure any alleged breach and reasonably
concluded that Mr. Haak failed to cure within the cure period.

21.

Tax Acknowledgment. In connection with the Separation Benefits provided to Mr. Haak pursuant to this
Agreement, the Company shall withhold and remit to the tax authorities the amounts required under
applicable law, and Mr. Haak shall be responsible for all applicable taxes owed by him with respect to
such Separation Benefits under applicable law. Mr. Haak acknowledges that he is not relying upon the
advice or representation of the Company with respect to the tax treatment of any of the Separation
Benefits set forth in this Agreement. It is intended that the Separation Benefits shall be exempt from or
compliant with Section 409A of the Internal Revenue Code (“Section 409A”) and that each installment of
the Separation Benefits under this Agreement shall be treated as a separate “payment” for purposes of
Section 409A. Mr. Haak acknowledges and agrees that the Company is not making any representations or
warranties to him and shall have no liability
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to him or any other person if any provisions of or payments and benefits provided under this Agreement
are determined to constitute deferred compensation subject to Section 409A but not to satisfy an
exemption from, or the conditions of, that section.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have set their hands and seals to this Agreement as of the date(s) written below.
RUTH’S HOSPITALITY GROUP, INC.
By:
Name:
Title:

/s/ Cheryl J. Henry_________________________
Cheryl J. Henry
President & CEO

Date: December 1, 2020

I hereby agree to the terms and conditions set forth above. I have been given at least twenty-one (21) days to consider this
Agreement and I have chosen to execute this on the date below. I understand that I will have seven (7) days following my
execution of this Agreement in which to revoke my acceptance. I further understand that the Separation Benefits and other
consideration set forth in this Agreement are contingent upon my timely execution, return and non-revocation of the Additional
Release, and that I have been given at least twenty-one (21) days to consider such Additional Release, and will have seven (7)
days in which to revoke my acceptance after I sign such Additional Release.

ARNE G. HAAK
/s/ Arne G. Haak__________
Signature
Date

November 24, 2020
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Attachment A
Additional Release of Claims
This Additional Release of Claims (the “Additional Release”) is made as of the date set forth opposite the below
signature of Arne G. Haak (“Mr. Haak”). Capitalized terms used but not defined herein have the meanings set forth in the
Separation, Transition, and Release of Claims Agreement (the “Separation Agreement”) to which this Additional Release is
attached as Attachment A.
WHEREAS, Mr. Haak is entering into this Additional Release in accordance with the terms and conditions set forth in
the Separation Agreement.
NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby
acknowledged, Mr. Haak hereby agrees as follows:
1.
Release. In consideration of the Separation Benefits set forth in the Separation Agreement, which Mr. Haak
acknowledges he would not otherwise be entitled to receive, Mr. Haak hereby fully, forever, irrevocably and unconditionally
releases, remises and discharges the Company, its affiliates, subsidiaries, parent companies, predecessors, and successors, and all
of their respective past and present officers, directors, stockholders, partners, members, employees, agents, representatives, plan
administrators, attorneys, insurers and fiduciaries (each in their individual and corporate capacities) (collectively, the “Released
Parties”) from any and all claims, charges, complaints, demands, actions, causes of action, suits, rights, debts, sums of money,
costs, accounts, reckonings, covenants, contracts, agreements, promises, doings, omissions, damages, executions, obligations,
liabilities, and expenses (including attorneys’ fees and costs), of every kind and nature that Mr. Haak ever had or now has against
any or all of the Released Parties up to the date on which Mr. Haak signs this Additional Release, whether known or unknown,
including, but not limited to, any and all claims arising out of or relating to Mr. Haak’s employment with, separation from, and/or
ownership of securities of the Company, including, but not limited to, all claims under Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964,
42 U.S.C. § 2000e et seq., the Americans With Disabilities Act of 1990, 42 U.S.C. § 12101 et seq., the Age Discrimination in
Employment Act, 29 U.S.C. § 621 et seq., the Genetic Information Nondiscrimination Act of 2008, 42 U.S.C. § 2000ff et seq.,
the Family and Medical Leave Act, 29 U.S.C. § 2601 et seq., the Worker Adjustment and Retraining Notification Act (“WARN”),
29 U.S.C. § 2101 et seq., the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, 29 U.S.C. § 701 et seq., Executive Order 11246, Executive Order 11141,
the Fair Credit Reporting Act, 15 U.S.C. § 1681 et seq., and the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 (“ERISA”),
29 U.S.C. § 1001 et seq., all as amended; all claims arising out of the Florida Civil Rights Act of 1992, Fla. Stat. § 760.01 et seq.,
Fla. Stat. §§ 448.07 and 725.07 (Florida equal pay laws), Fla. Stat. § 250.481 (Florida military leave law), Fla. Stat. § 760.40
(Florida genetic testing law), and Fla. Stat. § 448.101 et seq. (Florida anti-retaliation law), all as amended; all common law
claims including, but not limited to, actions in defamation, intentional infliction of emotional distress, misrepresentation, fraud,
wrongful discharge, and breach of contract; all claims to any non-vested ownership interest in the Company or its affiliates,
contractual or otherwise; all state and federal whistleblower claims to the maximum extent permitted by law; and any claim or
damage arising out of Mr. Haak’s employment with and/or
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separation from the Company (including a claim for retaliation) under any common law theory or any federal, state or local
statute or ordinance not expressly referenced above; provided, however, that this release of claims shall not (i) prevent Mr. Haak
from filing a charge with, cooperating with, or participating in any investigation or proceeding before, the Equal Employment
Opportunity Commission or a state fair employment practices agency (except that Mr. Haak acknowledges that he may not
recover any monetary benefits in connection with any such charge, investigation, or proceeding, and Mr. Haak further waives any
rights or claims to any payment, benefit, attorneys’ fees or other remedial relief in connection with any such charge, investigation
or proceeding), or (ii) deprive Mr. Haak of any rights Mr. Haak may have to be indemnified by the Company as provided in any
agreement between the Company and Mr. Haak, including, but not limited to, the Separation Agreement, or pursuant to the
Company’s Certificate of Incorporation or By-Laws.
2.
Return of the Company Property. Mr. Haak confirms that he has returned to the Company all property of the
Company, tangible or intangible, including but not limited to keys, files, records (and copies thereof), and equipment (including,
but not limited to, computer hardware, software and printers, wireless handheld devices, cellular phones, tablets, etc.), and that he
has left intact all, and has otherwise not destroyed, deleted, or made inaccessible to the Company any, electronic Company
documents, including but not limited to those that he developed or helped to develop during his employment. Mr. Haak further
confirms that he has canceled all accounts for his benefit, if any, in the Company’s name, including but not limited to, credit
cards, cellular phone and/or wireless data accounts and computer accounts. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, Mr.
Haak may retain and use his mobile phone number currently linked to the Company’s Verizon account. The Company agrees to
use reasonable efforts to allow Mr. Haak to port the foregoing mobile phone number to a carrier and device of his choosing.
3.Business Expenses; Final Compensation. Mr. Haak acknowledges that he has been reimbursed by the Company for all
business expenses incurred in conjunction with the performance of his employment and that no other reimbursements are owed to
him. Mr. Haak further acknowledges that he has received all compensation due to him from the Company, including, but not
limited to, all wages, bonuses and accrued, unused vacation time, and that he is not eligible or entitled to receive any additional
payments or consideration from the Company, other than the Accrued Obligations and the Separation Benefits.
4.
Time for Consideration; Acknowledgments. Mr. Haak acknowledges that, in order to receive the Separation Benefits,
he must sign and return this Additional Release on, but not before, the Separation Date. Mr. Haak acknowledges that he has been
given at least twenty-one (21) days to consider this Additional Release, and that the Company advised him to consult with an
attorney of his own choosing prior to signing this Additional Release. Mr. Haak understands that he may revoke this Additional
Release for a period of seven (7) days after he signs it by notifying the Company in writing, and the Additional Release shall not
be effective or enforceable until the expiration of this seven (7) day revocation period. Mr. Haak understands and agrees that by
entering into this Additional Release, he is waiving any and all rights or claims he might have under the Age Discrimination in
Employment Act, as amended by the Older Workers Benefit Protection Act, and that he has received consideration beyond that to
which he was previously entitled.
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5.
Voluntary Assent. Mr. Haak affirms that no other promises or agreements of any kind have been made to or with him
by any person or entity whatsoever to cause him to sign this Additional Release, and that he fully understands the meaning and
intent of this Additional Release. Mr. Haak states and represents that he has had an opportunity to fully discuss and review the
terms of this Additional Release with an attorney. Mr. Haak further states and represents that he has carefully read this
Additional Release, understands the contents herein, freely and voluntarily assents to all of the terms and conditions hereof, and
signs his name of his own free act.
For the avoidance of doubt, this Additional Release supplements, and in no way limits, the Separation Agreement.

I hereby provide this Additional Release as of the current date. I intend that this Additional Release will become a binding
agreement between me and the Company if I do not revoke my acceptance in seven (7) days.
Arne G. Haak

/s/ Arne G. Haak__________
Signature
Date

November 24, 2020
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Exhibit 21.1
Subsidiaries of the Company
Entity

Jurisdiction

Ruth’s Chris Steak House Franchise, LLC
RCSH Management, Inc.
RCSH Operations, LLC
RCSH Operations, Inc.
Ruth’s Chris Steak House Boston, LLC
RHG Kingfish, LLC
RHG Fish Market, Inc.
MFM Winter Park, LLC
RHGI Giftco, Inc.

Louisiana
Louisiana
Louisiana
California
Louisiana
Florida
Florida
Florida
Florida

Exhibit 23.1
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
The Board of Directors
Ruth’s Hospitality Group, Inc.:
We consent to the incorporation by reference in the registration statements (No. 333‑171485 and 333‑160231) on Form S-3and (No. 333‑127681, 333182845, 333-196836 and 333-225183) on Forms S-8 of Ruth’s Hospitality Group, Inc. of our reports dated March 5, 2021 with respect to the consolidated
balance sheets of Ruth’s Hospitality Group, Inc. as of December 27, 2020 and December 29, 2019, and the related consolidated statements of income,
shareholders’ equity and cash flows for each of the years in the three‑year period ended December 27, 2020, and the effectiveness of internal control over
financial reporting as of December 27, 2020, which reports appear in the December 27, 2020 annual report on Form 10‑K of Ruth’s Hospitality Group,
Inc.
Our report on the consolidated financial statements contains an explanatory paragraph relating to the Company changing its method of accounting for
leases and revenue.

/s/ KPMG LLP
Orlando, Florida
March 5, 2021

Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF
THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
I, Cheryl J. Henry, certify that:
1.

I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Ruth’s Hospitality Group, Inc.;

2.

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this
report;

3.

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4.

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d15(f)) for the registrant and have:

5.

(a)

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b)

Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

(c)

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d)

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent
fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of this annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
(a)

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b)

Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting.

Date: March 5, 2021
By:

/S/ CHERYL J. HENRY
Cheryl J. Henry
President and Chief Executive Officer
of Ruth’s Hospitality Group, Inc.

Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF
THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
I, Kristy Chipman, certify that:
1.

I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Ruth’s Hospitality Group, Inc.;

2.

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this
report;

3.

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4.

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d15(f)) for the registrant and have:

5.

(a)

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b)

Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

(c)

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d)

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent
fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of this annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
(a)

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b)

Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting.

Date: March 5, 2021
By

/s/ KRISTY CHIPMAN
Kristy Chipman
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
of Ruth’s Hospitality Group, Inc.

Exhibit 32.1
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF
THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
In connection with the annual report on Form 10-K of Ruth’s Hospitality Group, Inc. (the “Company”) for the year ended December 27, 2020, as filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), the undersigned, the Chief Executive Officer of the Company, certifies,
pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:
(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and
(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.
Date: March 5, 2021
By:

/S/ CHERYL J. HENRY
Cheryl J. Henry
President and Chief Executive Officer of Ruth’s Hospitality Group, Inc.

Exhibit 32.2
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF
THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
In connection with the annual report on Form 10-K of Ruth’s Hospitality Group, Inc. (the “Company”) for the year ended December 27, 2020, as filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), the undersigned, the Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of
the Company, certifies, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:
(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and
(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.
Date: March 5, 2021
/s/ KRISTY CHIPMAN
Kristy Chipman
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of Ruth’s Hospitality Group,
Inc.

